BEEXHEERESROER2F

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

~1===b>

==
MEIEANAIRPORT

Stock Code B335 : 0357

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)
(R ZEARHFE T MK L2 RIS BRA A])

Annual Report %k 2013

B R A

BE NICE is a demanding self-requirement of Meilan
International Airport, a four-star SKYTRAX airport, and also a
sincere commitment made towards our passengers. With
empathy, we provide our passengers with superb services that
elicit a cozy feeling. For Meilan employees, honouring this
commitment is not only a target, but also a mission.
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CORPORATE MISSION
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company in China, and offer quality and safe
airport services.
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Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited (the “Meilan
Airport” or the “Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”) with limited
liability on 28 December 2000. The H shares of the Company
were issued and listed on the Main Board (the “Main Board”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 November 2002. On 6 November 2003, the
Company was approved by the Ministry of Commerce (“MOC”) of
the PRC to convert into a foreign invested joint stock company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
currently engaged in both aeronautical and non-aeronautical
businesses at the Haikou Meilan International Airport, Haikou,
Hainan Province, the PRC. The aeronautical businesses of the
Company consist of the provision of terminal facilities, ground
handling services and passenger services. The non-aeronautical
businesses of the Company include the leasing of commercial and
retail spaces at Haikou Meilan International Airport, franchising of
airport related business, advertising, car parking, cargo handling
and sales of consumable goods.

Major awards of the Company in 2013 were as follows:
° “The World’s Best Airport in ASQ (Airport Service Quality)”
awarded by ACI (Airports Council International)

o “Chinese Green Benefit Enterprise — Best Practice” awarded
by the World economic and Environmental Conference
Organizing Committee

° Ranked Second in Skytrax Best Regional Airport in China
and Fourth in Asia Region

o “Awards of the Best Airport Operations” granted by the
Airport Development Association of China

° “National Advanced Port for Operation Management”
awarded by the National Port Administrative Office
° “National Customer Satisfaction Enterprise” granted by

China Product Quality Association Committee
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NAME IN CHINESE
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Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.mlairport.com
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Liang Jun

STRATEGIC COMMITTEE
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LEGAL ADDRESS AND HEAD OFFICE

Office Building of Meilan Airport
Haikou City
Hainan Province, the PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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72 Gloucester Road
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LEGAL ADVISER

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe

43rd Floor, Gloucester Tower, the Landmark
15 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road,
Huangpu District

Shanghai China

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank of China, Haikou Jinyu
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Hainan Province, the PRC
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Hainan Province, the PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East
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Financial Highlights
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TWO-YEAR COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES
MEEBRMBRBIS LR

For the year ended 31 December

(RMB’000) HE+-A=+—HLLFE
(ARETT) 2013 2012 Change #8) (%)
Revenue WA 760,277 684,069 11.14
Gross profit EF 458,184 438,293 4.54
Net profit attributable to =N AINANGS|

shareholders of the Company A% 3 FI) B 342,034 297,963 14.79
Earnings per share — basic (RMB) FlRAEMN -EX(ARET) 0.72 0.63 14.29
Net cash generated from BEEDEERFRS

operating activities 504,967 447,738 12.78
Current ratio B & 7.52 3.83 96.34
Asset-liability ratio BEHEX 52.90% 36.93% 15.97
EBITDA (Earnings before interest, EBITDA(F BITE K

taxes, depreciation and amortisation) BIERIAE) 527,880 467,822 12.84

Revenue

LAUN

Gross profit
EA

M 2013 M 2012
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For the year ended 31 December

(RMB’000) HET-_A=T—HILFE
(AR®ETT) 2012 2011 2010 2009
Revenue g A 684,069 564,892 487,415 400,721
Net profit attributable to BRENAAR]

shareholders of the Company 1% 58 ) 297,963 289,778 238,231 182,701
EBITDA (Earnings before interest, EBITDA(F: EITE K

taxes, depreciation and BESHATAE)

amortisation) 467,822 405,745 313,633 247,805

For the year ended 31 December

(RMB’000) HE+-A=1+—HILFE
(AR¥EFTT) 2012 2011 2010 2009
Total assets WEE 3,867,245 2,855,003 2,297,967 2,073,823
Total liabilities FEN=E 1,428,049 639,358 246,345 124,452
Shareholders’ equity PR ER A 2,439,196 2,215,645 2,051,622 1,949,371

Two-year comparison of key operation data

MFEEBXFELEIBRILE

For the year ended 31 December

HET_A=+—BILFE

2012 Change & &) (%)

Passenger throughput RERLS
(headcount in ten thousand) (Bfy : BAKR)
in which: Domestic He o R
International and regional PR % b 2
Aircraft movement (flights) FRAEEE PR ZEIR (BB & ZRIR)
in which: Domestic He: FlR
International and regional B PR K b [
Cargo throughput (tons) EWITHEULE (B - W)
in which: Domestic He o EHR
International and regional B B fe b

1,069.67
1,026.67
43.00
87,247
83,363
3,884
175,364.50
169,769.00
5,6956.50

11.58
11.63
10.37
8.24
8.23
8.32
11.94
11.73
18.34
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In order to further enhance its service quality and management standard for
providing quality service to the travellers, further establish the international
brand image of Meilan Airport and facilitate the establishment of Hainan
International Tourism Island, Meilan Airport sets its strategic goal to become a
“Five-Star Airport”.
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Chairman’s Statement
T ERSE

To all shareholders:

2013 is a year with complex international situations. The world economy was still in a period of deep
adjustment after was financial crisis, which showed signs of recovery and on the other hand faced problems
such as instable basis, lack of power and uneven speed. The world’s major developed economies needed
to effectively solve structural problems and remained weak demand, and the necessity to strengthen
macroeconomic policy regulation was highlighted; emerging economies were plagued by slow growth, and
there existed considerable inflationary pressure and increased external risks and challenges; international
trade was plagued by a depressed overall situation and rampant protectionism, especially barriers that
emerged in an endless stream from European and American countries and regions to some extent hindered
the recovery process of world trade. At the same time, the international political situation is generally
stable, local geopolitics were under ongoing tensions and unceasing conflicts, and the trend of international
balance of power became gradually obvious. Facing such a complex external environment and unfavorable
conditions such as domestic economic restructuring, weak growth and continuous high inflation, the
PRC Government drastically and comprehensively deepened reforms, capitalized on its proactive fiscal
policies and prudent monetary policies, insisted on the general tone of “seeking improvement in stability”
and focused on the development idea of “steady growth, inflation control and risk resistance”, to promote
China’s economy to achieve comprehensive upgrade and transformation and into the track of stable and
healthy development.
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During the year under review, keeping up the pace of domestic
economic reform and capitalizing on the opportunity brought by
Hainan International Tourism Island construction and offshore
duty-free policy, the Group further strengthened the development
and marketing of the aviation market, deeply excavated
commercial resources, enhanced the earning capacity of non-
aviation business, strengthened cost control, and comprehensively
implemented specialized and sophisticated management, thereby
achieving good financial income.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the passenger throughput
of the Group reached 11.9355 million and exceeded 10 million
for the three consecutive year, consolidating its leading position
among major airports in China. The Group also achieved its
15th year of safe operation in its history. The Group also made
outstanding achievements in international brand building, business
development and security management.

In 2013, the Group’s total revenue amounted to RMB760,276,774,
representing an increase of 11.14% as compared to the same
period of last year. Income from aviation business amounted
to RMB433,635,137, representing an increase of 10.10% as
compared to the same period of last year. Income from non-
aviation business amounted to RMB326,641,637, representing an
increase of 12.55% as compared to the same period of last year.

In 2013, despite the challenges from transformation of domestic
economy in the phase of growth and the continued deepening of
adjustment by the government, both tourism and transportation
industries in Hainan continued a steady development. The
Group made a correct assessment of the situation, focused on
network design based on market demand and capacity of the
airline companies, capitalized on the East Ring Railway and other
convenient ancillaries in the vicinity. Inspired by government
support, the Group formulated plans and conducted preparation
work, and actively expanded the aviation market. The Group
developed 57 new routes, including 52 domestic routes and 5
international routes, and achieved annual passenger throughput
up to 11,935,500, aircraft movements up to 94,434 and cargo
throughput up to 196,300 tons, with a year-on-year growth
of 11.58%, 8.24% and 11.94% vyear on year respectively,
successfully realizing its annual transportation and production
target.
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In 2013, the performance of non-aviation business of the
Group was also outstanding, showing a good momentum of
development. Annual revenue from the non-aviation business
was RMB326,641,637, representing an increase of 12.55% year
on year and accounting for up to 42.96% again the Group’s
total revenue. Such significant growth was mainly due to the
franchise operation of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop of
Haikou Meilan Airport Duty-Free Shop Co., Ltd in Meilan Airport.
In addition, the Group enhanced its communication with the
parties with presence in the airport by offering advice to help
them increase their sales revenue effectively. In 2013, the Group
recorded accrued franchise fee of RMB159,177,174 and rental
fee of RMB33,713,717, representing a year-on-year increase of
16.28% and 23.06% respectively. And airport parking revenue
also reached RMB13,312,073, representing a significant year-on-
year increase of 30.31%. Moreover, other non-aviation businesses
such as freight services showed improvements as well.

On 14 August 2013, the international terminal with a designed
flow of 1.06 million was formally opened. Up to 31 December
2013, the international terminal received a total of 177,600
international and domestic travelers and completed 1,612 aircraft
movements, representing a year-on-year growth of 10% and
10.6% respectively.

The West Gallery expansion project with a construction area of
28,000 square meters started construction on 24 December
2013, and will be completed by the end of 2015. By then, it will
increase 11 gallery bridge seats and 4.6 million passengers for
Meilan Airport.

As disclosed the announcement of the Company dated 4
December 2013, the Company has signed a three-year loan
agreement (“The Facility Agreement”) with a total amount of
US$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,524,225,000) with 14
financial institutions such as Cooperative Bank, Mega International
Commercial Bank, Taishin International Bank, for the main
purpose of meeting the needs of terminal complex project
construction and the Company’s daily operation.
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The Facility Agreement contains, among others, specific
performance obligations of Haikou Meilan International Airport
Company Limited (the “‘Parent Company”’) that:

(@ The Parent Company shall not cease, or threaten to cease,
to carry on business except as a result of any disposal
allowed under the Facility Agreement; and

(b)  The Parent Company shall beneficially own at least 40% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

The Company plans to construct the terminal complex with
total estimated investment of RMB1,903,874,000 to further
improve the development and expansion of Meilan Airport. It
is expected that the station complex will comprise two layers
of underground floors and six layers of ground floors with total
covering area of 120 mu, of which the construction area on the
ground is approximately 152,900 square meters (among which
40,000 square meters, 77,900 square meters and 35,000 square
meters are for star-rated hotel, commercial district and surface
parking lot respectively) and the construction area underground is
approximately 122,500 square meters and there are total 4,000
parking spaces. It is expected that the station complex will be
divided into two parts, east part of which will be star-rated hotel
and the west will be the comprehensive large commercial building
including duty-free shops, brand flagships, boutique department
store, brand shopping center, themed restaurants, specialty
restaurants and film studios. Implementing such plan shall meet
certain conditions including relevant government approvals.

As per the announcement of the Company dated 18 December
2013 and the Circular to the Company’s Shareholders dated 31
December 2013, the Company entered into a construction service
agreement with Yangpu Guoxing Construction Co., Ltd. (“Yangpu
Guoxing”).

Signing of the service agreement will benefit the Company from
the efficient service provided by Yangpu Guoxing and financial
cost saving.
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According to the announcement of the Company dated 8 April
2010, the circular issued on 13 May 2010 as well as Page 8 of
2012 Interim Report and Page 13 of 2013 Interim Report, the
Company announced that it has entered into a conditional share
transfer agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with HNA Group
Company Limited (“HNA Group”) and Qihe Investment Limited
(“Qihe Investment”) respectively for the acquisition of 54.5% of
the issued share capital of Hainan Airlines Airport Holding Group
Company Limited (“HNA Airport Holdings”) at a total consideration
of RMB2,199,900,000. HNA Group and Qihe Investment
respectively held 30% and 24.5% of the equity proposed to
acquire/acquired by the Group in HNA Airport Holdings. In early
2011, the Company completed the acquisition of 24.5% equity
in HNA Airport Holdings from Qihe Investment by using its own
funds and bank loans and all the preconditions of the acquisition
had been met.

The Company originally intended to finance the acquisition of
the 30% equity interest in HNA Airport Holdings held by HNA
Group with the proceeds from the proposed issue of A shares in
the PRC. One of the conditions precedents to such acquisition
was that the Company has obtained the official approval for the
issuance of A shares from the relevant authority or department
and such issuance of A shares has been completed.

In the event that not all of the above precedent conditions
are satisfied or fulfilled within 2 years after the passing of the
resolution relating to the issue of A shares at the extraordinary
general meeting and class general meetings, the Acquisition
Agreement shall be terminated automatically unless the Company
and HNA Group agree on such other date to satisfy or fulfill the
above conditions, and neither the Company nor HNA Group shall
assume any responsibility under the Acquisition Agreement. On 31
May 2010, the Company held the H shareholders class meeting,
domestic shareholders class meeting and extraordinary general
meeting in relation to the above matters.
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Currently the Company is negotiating with HNA Group on the
extension of relevant terms of the Acquisition Agreement in order
to reach new agreement or supplemental agreement (if possible),
with a view to continue to fulfill the agreement in relation to the
acquisition of the 30% of equity interest of HNA Airport Holdings
held by HNA Group.

The Board hereby informs the shareholders and potential
investors of the Company that there is not any new information
relating to the 30% equity interest in HNA Airport Holdings held
by HNA Group so far; should any new agreement is reached,
the Company will report such agreement to the Board and
the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company for
consideration, and make a timely disclosure to the market
pursuant to the listing rules after the unanimous consent about
the acquisition agreement.

In 2013, intelligentization of Meilan Airport was started in an all-
around manner. There were 7 new projects started in 2013, with
initiation amount of RMB41.3 million and project initiation rate of
100%; and 12 projects under construction since previous years,
of which five projects completed acceptance inspection and
formally started operation; with the launch and promotion of the
“micro-letter check-in and one-card clearance” project, Meilan
Airport became the first airport to offer micro-letter check-in
service in China. In 2014, Meilan Airport will start construction of
13 new projects such as operating management platform, traffic
management and monitoring system, airfield lighting system and
equipment operation monitoring system.

According to the Hainan Airspace Optimization and Adjustment
Program which was officially implemented on 16 January 2014,
the civil aviation authority intends to explore three new routes on
East and West sides of Hainan Island for the flights from Sanya
to and from other regions. Such airspace optimization will not
only effectively alleviate the present problems of route congestion
and flight delay for Hainan, but also have a positive effect for
Meilan Airport to expand capacity and improve flight release rate.
After 30 June 2014, the civil aviation sector will make further
adjustment and optimization according to the actual situation on
Hainan airspace.
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In 2014, stimulated by the easing policies in various countries, the
global economic situation is expected to be further improved, and
the overall pace of economic recovery will be accelerated. Driven
by recovery in manufacturing and real estate and other factors,
the United States will again become the main driving force of
world economic growth; with the forceful regulation of policy
measures and gradual reduction of fiscal drag, the European
economy will get way of continuing decline and achieve positive
growth; and emerging economies will have a slow process of
economic structural reform, with growth rate slowed down. In
2014, global inflation situation is expected to remain stable.

In 2014, with the further deepening of China’s economic reform,
the basis for overall economic recovery will be effectively
consolidated, and it is expected that the PRC government
will maintain its proactive fiscal policy and prudent monetary
policy to ensure the continuity and stability of macroeconomic
policy, will actively deal with the relationship among stabilizing
growth, adjusting structure, promoting reform, controlling risk
and improving people’s livelihood, and will work hard to reduce
the negative impact of labile factor from outside on the Chinese
economy. Under the condition of adhering to the keynote of seek
improvement in stability, it is expected that China’s economic
growth will remain relatively stable in 2014.

Compared to the challenging international environment and the
tamed domestic environment, Hainan International Tourism Island
will continue to maintain a good momentum of development. In
2014, driven by the accelerated transformation and upgrading of
the tourism industry, the local government of Hainan will continue
to vigorously promote its key tourism projects, fully capitalize
on the development potential of its tourism industry, and further
improve transportation and other infrastructure construction. It
is expected that the number of domestic and overseas travelers
visiting Hainan will continue to increase, laying a solid foundation
for the development of Meilan Airport in 2014. In addition, affected
by popular tourism market and other factors, Hainan Island
achieved offshore duty-free sales totally amounted to RMB226
million and attracted 56,000 shopping travelers during the
Spring Festival Golden Week of 2014, representing an increase
of 33% and 30% respectively; wherein, the sales amount of
RMB10,413,400 on 6 February once again refreshed the single-
day sales record of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop. The
current trends of operation and sales revenue of Meilan Airport
Offshore Duty-Free Shop are believed to be more profitable to the
Group.
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In 2014, in the face of the business needs brought by the
comprehensive promotion of Hainan International Tourism
Island construction, the Group will seize this rare opportunity for
development to actively expand aviation and non-aviation business
markets, strengthen assets and fund management, adhere to
its strategic development plan, promote the transformation of
income model, actively acquire external resources, effectively
carry out investment and financing, enhance the management
of market value of the Company and strive to develop into an
investment management group which integrates investment and
development and forms strategic complementation and chain
clusters with “asset management as the core”, so as to achieve
the sustainable and healthy development of Meilan Airport and
strive for better performance for creating satisfactory return for all
the shareholders.

In 2014, the Group will fully capitalize on the favorable policy of
increasing subsidy support to the aviation industry newly issued
by the local government, strengthen the development of the main
markets especially international and regional markets, strive to
expand the transport capacity of airline companies in Haikou
market, improve the distribution of airline network, and actively
introduce the third airline company to build their bases in Haikou;
under the organization of local government, the Group will further
strengthen the in-depth cooperation with travel agencies, airline
companies and tourist attractions in the northern area of Hainan,
to fully develop the air travel new markets in the northern area
of Hainan; the Group will harmoniously promote the airspace
structural optimization and adjustment of “opening wing-rooms
to ease the center” in Hainan to relieve the congestion status of
the routes and further improve airport airspace capacity, with an
ambition to build Meilan Airport into an aviation hub in southern
China.

As the operation of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop is
maturing, the proportion of the non-aviation revenue of the Group
is likely to further increase. In 2014, the Group will continue to
push forward the business plans for the terminal buildings, further
increase the business area of Offshore Duty-Free Shop while
optimizing the layout of service functions, and strive to improve
the overall sales floor efficiency; furthermore, the Group will enrich
business model through development of commercial trading
companies, e-commerce platform, cellular hotels and other
innovative projects, thereby enhancing the business model and
promoting the income-generating capacity of Meilan Airport.
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In 2014, continuing to strive for an international leading
operation quality management level, the Group will promote
the full realization of safety performance indicators through
the combination of performance management objectives and
safety assessment; will improve construction of aviation security
management system through security performance monitoring
and assessment as well as risk management and control, thereby
realizing a security closed-loop management system; will manage
and control the key indicators in service management by referring
to the idea of safety performance management, thereby forming a
service quality management model mainly oriented to performance
management, so as to promote the operation quality of Meilan
Airport to achieve greater improvement.

In 2014, based on the ancillary hardware facilities standards
required for SKYTRAX five-star airport, the Group will accelerate
the expansion of West Gallery and the renovation of current
terminal buildings; will adhere to the intelligent airport construction
blueprint with “happy e-travel, efficient e-use, e-control security
and e-earning efficiency” as the theme and “construction in
sections and steady implementation” as the principle, gradually
integrate new technologies and airport production and operation,
and change the traditional business model with flight security and
ground service, so as to comprehensively raise the production
and operation management quality of Meilan Airport; will complete
the parking lot renovation in phases based on the construction
requirements of the terminal complex project and the actual
operation needs of the airport, to further improve the existing
infrastructure and create a more comfortable waiting environment
for travelers.
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Adhering to its customer-oriented principle, the Group will
continue its service innovation based on the concept of “Reaching
Higher With Service Excellence” and provide active, caring and
well-managed services instead of traditional passive, procedural
and facial services. In 2013, adhering to “grasping the building
of hard power and maintaining the upgrade of soft power” as
the guiding principle, Meilan Airport comprehensively improved
the service quality with “team-building”, “establishment of five-
star positions” and “service culture building” as an entry point,
thereby establish a good image for the Group. In 2014, Meilan
Airport will focus on enhancing its position and social influence in
the industry, and enhance the brand influence of Meilan Airport
by improving the training system, introducing third-party service
quality evaluation, continuing to promote the rectification for
SKYTRAX five-star construction and the brand building of ASQ
(Airport Service Quality), so as to become a SKYTRAX five-star
airport in the near future.

On behalf of our board of directors and the management of
the Group, | would like to express our heartfelt gratitude to our
business partners, clients and shareholders for their continuous
support, as well as to our fellow staff for their dedicated efforts.
We look forward to becoming a successful regional airport
management player with the cooperation of all of our working
partners.

Liang Jun
Chairman

Hainan Province, the PRC
4 April 2014
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“Reaching Higher with Service
Excellence”. Committed to providing
customized services to tourists,
Meilan Airport offers unique services
of five-star standard.

[E2XW BHRB | -ME2EUAREKE
BRBEE  UXHBEARTEFER
RREFRHDBRBES

21



I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

BIRE R W Lo

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

CIVIL AVIATION INDUSTRY IN CHINA

Despite the signs of slow recovery in world economy and
international aviation market, the major transportation indicators
reflected that the civil aviation industry in China maintained
its steady and rapid growth. In 2013, China’s civil aviation
is expected to achieve total transport turnover of more than
67.3 billion tons/km, passenger transportation volume of 354
million as well as cargo and mail traffic volume of 5.57 million
tons, representing a year-on-year growth of 10%, 11% and 2%
respectively. In 2013, China’s civil aviation industry is expected to
complete an investment of RMB148 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 12%, have 3,810 aircrafts, representing a
year-on-year increase of 572, have 193 licensed transportation
airports, representing an increase of 10 over the previous year
and have 24 airports with passenger throughput exceeding
10 million, increased by 3 compared to 2012; domestic airline
companies have opened 92 new international routes and 252 new

feeder routes, to further optimize the route structure.

In 2013, the civil aviation industry in China saw a number of
favorable policies.

- On 1 January 2013, Beijing and Shanghai checkpoints
implemented 72-hours transit without visa policy on some of
Chinese citizens;

- In January 2013, the Chinese State Council issued the Key
Division of Work Program to Promote the Development of
the Aviation Industry, to boost the development of China’s
civil aviation industry into a new phase;

- The announcement of the Publicity Concerning the Subsidy
Program for Small Aviation Airport in 2013 and the Publicity
Concerning the Subsidy Budget Program for Feeder Aviation
in 2013 indicate that the domestic feeder aviation can
receive fund support of nearly RMB1 billion in2013.

- The official promulgation of the Regulations on the Approval
and Management of General Aviation Flight Mission on
18 November 2013 has milestone significance in the
development of China’s general aviation.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERETHRAN

The Company will closely monitor the development of the civil
aviation industry in China in 2014 and carefully study government
policies with a view to secure additional throughput from airline
companies to further consolidate the position of Meilan Airport
among major airports in China.

TOURISM INDUSTRY IN HAINAN

The tourism industry in Hainan maintained steady growth in 2013.
The number of domestic and foreign tourists staying overnight
in Hainan reached 36.7251 million, representing a year-on-
year growth of 10.6% over the previous year. The total income
from the tourism industry amounted to RMB42.856 billion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 13.0%. During the Spring
Festival Golden Week of 2014, Hainan Province received a total
of 2,607,600 domestic and foreign tourists and achieved total
tourism revenue of RMB7.57 billion, representing a year-on-year
growth of 36.89% and 33.96% respectively; wherein, 1,389,100
foreign tourists staying overnight were received and overnight
tourism revenue amounted to RMB6.946 billion, representing a
year-on-year growth of 24.89% and 28.93% respectively. Apart
from the auspices of offshore duty free and the policy of cruise
border tourism off-site permit, such outstanding performance
was owed to well-known economic, sports and cultural events
held in Hainan, such as Boao Forum for Asia, World Yacht
Festival, the Tenth China International Logistics Festival, the
Fourth Circum-Hainan International Regatta, World Strongest
Hercules and Circum-Hainan International Cycling Race, which
also significantly made contribution to the tourism industry. In
addition, the flourished tourism in Hainan was also attributable to
the efforts of the local government to actively organize and involve
in various tourism promotion activities around the country and
even worldwide in 2013. With the further deepening of the tourism
management system in Hainan, the tourism industry of Hainan will
continue to maintain a good momentum of growth.
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KEY TOURISM PROJECTS IN HAINAN

In order to comprehensively promote the construction of Hainan
International Tourism Island and implement the “Twelfth-Five
Year” Plan for Hainan Tourism Development, in 2013, Hainan
government actively promoted the construction of key tourism
projects to make sure that they can be completed on schedule.
Boao Lecheng International Medical Tourism Going-first Area
which is located in the site of Boao Forum for Asia, has been
approved by the State Council. After construction, the Going-
first Area will enjoy 9 “tailored” policies, such as allowing foreign
investors to establish medical institutions, and phasing out the
restrictions on the proportion of shares held by overseas capital
in Sino-foreign joint venture and cooperative medical institutions;
the overall planning and land use planning of International Tourism
Island Pioneer Area which is located in the area of Lingshui Li'an
have passed the audit of the departments concerned, and it
has made new progress in land acquisition, displacement and
resettlement, project construction, investment attraction and other
work; “1942 Republic Street”, the first scenic region of Haikou
Guanlan Huayi Feng Xiaogang’s Film Commune, has completed
the architecture and landscaping works and has entered the
stage of improvement of commercial supporting facilities, and is
expected to officially open in June 2014. Other projects of the
Commune including Southeast Asia Street and Socialist Street
are progressing smoothly and are expected to be fully opened by
the end of 2014; Wanning Outlets International Jewelry City was
officially opened during the Spring Festival of 2014, and Outlets’
brand discount store is planned to officially open in May 2014; the
launch of tourism products themed by “Strolling Northern Hainan”
as well as the successive completion or propulsion of a number of
major tourism projects such as Changchun Film Hainan Century
City and Guanlan Lake will further promote the development of
the tourism industry in northern Hainan, inject a strong driving
force for the construction of an economic circle including northern
Hainan cities, and achieve a new situation of “north and south
flying together” for Hainan tourism.

The Group will pay close attention to the development trend
of northern Hainan tourism, actively cooperate with the local
government to carry out promotion of northern Hainan tourism
products, seize development opportunities, and further promote
the passenger throughput of Meilan Airport to hit a new high.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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TRANSPORTATION ON THE ISLAND

In respect of railways, benefit from the booming tourism industry
in Hainan, the passenger carrying capacity of Hainan East
Ring Railway reached 12.653 million, representing a year-on-
year growth of over 20%, a new record high. The section from
Haikou to Sanya Phoenix International Airport of the high-profile
West Ring High-speed Railway officially started construction at
the end of September 2013, which marks the comprehensive
commencement of West Ring High-speed Railway. It is expected
to be completed and put into use by the end of 2015, and will
form inner-ring road of Island together with East Ring High-Speed
Railway.

In respect of highways, the highways of Hainan Province were
included in the national highway network planning in 2013. The
project of Haikou-Wenchang Highway reconstruction with a
total investment of RMB720 million was successfully completed
in January 2014 and achieved full opening; the construction of
Tunchang - Qiongzhong Highway has entered into the phase
of main body construction; Qiongzhong — Wuzhishan — Ledong
Highway, Wenchang — Qionghai Highway and Wanning — Danzhou
- Yangpu Highway will also start construction in 2014.

In respect of aviation, in August 2013, the State Air Administration
Committee Office ATC organized a work conference to discuss
the program for adjustment of air routes and air lines in Hainan,
and the conference formed the airspace structural adjustment
program with “opening wing-rooms to ease the center” as the
orientation, so that the issue of airspace restriction in Hainan
can be hopefully solved; with the master plan approved in May
2013, Qionghai Boao Airport with a total floor area of 2,732
acres has started the construction of the foundation works in
the resettlement area, and is expected to be comprehensively
commenced in 2014.
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OFFSHORE DUTY FREE

The continuing expansion of the offshore duty free policy in
Hainan attracted many offshore and foreign visitors. In 2013,
the number of offshore duty free products sold in Hainan was
approximately 4.47 million with total sales of approximately
RMBS3.3 billion, and the total number of shopping tourists
exceeded 1.1 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 28%,
40% and 6% respectively, made a record high.

The International Duty Free Shopping and Entertainment City,
one of the major pioneer projects in the first phase of Hainan
International Tourism Island, will be the world’s largest duty free
shopping center upon completion as planned. The world’s largest
duty-free complex — Haitang Bay International Duty Free Shopping
Mall under construction is expected to be officially opened
in August 2014; construction, brand negotiation, investment
attraction and cooperation, personnel recruitment and other
aspects of Guanlan Duty Free Shop in Haikou City are being
carried forward in an orderly manner.

In 2013, Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop achieved sales
income of RMB 616,680,000 (including tax refund income of
RMB7.85 million), attracted a total of 377,956 shoppers and sold
1,042,373 products, representing a year-on-year growth of 66%,
27% and 34% respectively. As of the end of 2013, Meilan Airport
Offshore Duty-Free Shop increased business area to 4,772 square
meters, and will be expanded synchronously later according to
the progress of the expansion of West Gallery, thereby bringing a
more substantial franchise revenues to Meilan Airport. The rapid
development of the duty-free industry in Hainan has not only
driven the rapid growth of local tourism and shopping, but also
comprehensively improved the international reputation of Hainan,
and directly or indirectly stimulated the sustained growth of
passenger flow volume for Meilan Airport as well.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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BUSINESS AND REVENUE REVIEW

OVERVIEW

In 2013, continuing to taking the SKYTRAX five-star airport
building as an opportunity, the Group adhered to “grasping
the building of hard power and maintaining the upgrade of soft
power” as the guiding principle and comprehensively promote
the work of brand building with “team building”, “establishment
of five-star positions” and “service culture building” as an entry
point. In 2013, the Group won a total of 18 awards at home and
abroad (including 4 international awards, 5 national awards and 9
province-level, city-level and industry-level awards).

In 2013, the Group actively deepened the building of aviation
security management system, and achieved as schedule its
15th year of safe operation. Through strict implementation of
the aviation security measures, the Group accomplished the
transportation security work for Hainan delegation to Chinese
National People’s Congress and CPPCC (two sessions), Boao
Forum for Asia, the Third Plenary Session of the 18th CCP and
other major events in accordance with the “safety guarantee,
quality service and smooth in and out” security purpose, thereby
obtaining unanimous favorable comments of all walks of life.

As the intelligentized airport construction was started in full swing,
the Group comprehensively sorted and evaluated the projects that
were planned to implement in the past three years through the
development of the intelligentized airport construction blueprint. In
October 2013, with the launch and operation of the official micro-
letter public platform, Meilan Airport became the first airport to
offer “micro-letter check-in and one-card clearance” service in
China.

In 14 August 2013, the international terminal of Meilan Airport
was officially opened; and the project of West Gallery expansion
officially started construction in December 2013.

In addition, the Company improved team cohesion and promoted
feelings among employees by carrying out a variety of outdoor
development, outskirt outing, fun games and other recreational
and sports activities apart from normalized holiday condolence
activities, in order to lay a solid foundation for the building of a
stable and united team.
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AVIATION BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2013, with the overall recovery of China’s civil aviation industry
and under the promotion of favorable policies such as the Division
Program of Key Work of Chinese State Council to Promote
the Development of the Aviation Industry and favorable factors
such as construction of Hainan International Tourism Island and
offshore duty free, the passenger throughput of Meilan Airport
exceeded 10 million for three consecutive years.

To timely seize the current rare opportunity for development and
develop the company into a domestic leading group management
company in the industry, the Group continued to deeply expand
the main business market of aviation in 2013. On the one hand,
the Group promoted the local government to launch a series of
aviation preferential subsidy policies through communication and
hard efforts, to enhance the confidence of the airline company
and enhance the attractiveness of the aviation market in Haikou;
and on the other hand, the Group continued to visit the major
airline companies and carried out route promotion, to attract
investment of more capacity; in addition, the Group actively
participated in the marketing of northern Hainan tourism, in
order to stimulate aviation passenger transportation market with
tourism.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Meilan Airport operated a
total of 159 originating routes, including 146 domestic routes, 10
international routes and 3 regional routes; developed 85 navigable
cities, including 73 domestic cities, 9 international cities and 3
regional cities; and attracted 39 airline companies to operate
at Meilan Airport, including 25 domestic airlines, 8 international

airlines and 6 regional airlines.

Throughout the year of 2013, Meilan Airport opened 57 new
routes, with overall flight execution rate up to 88.3%, increased
by 5.4 percentage points as compared with last year, showing an
outstanding performance in market development.
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Details of the aviation traffic throughput of 2013 and comparison

figures of last year are set out below:

R CEXEREMERBREFRERA L —FHY

ST

Passenger throughput
(headcount in ten thousand)

In which: Domestic

International and regional
Aircraft movement (flights)
In which: Domestic

International and regional
Cargo throughput (tons)
In which: Domestic

International and regional

REELE
(Bfy - BAKX)

Hep: BA
211958112

FRHEAEFEZRIR (AL ZRR)

Hep o BA
211958010

EBTELS (B M)

Hep BA
B N3

1,193.55
1,146.09
47.46

94,434
90,227
4,207
196,300.60
189,678.80
6,621.80

The Group’s revenue from aviation business for 2013 was

approximately RMB433,635,137, representing an increase of

approximately 10.10% as compared to that of the corresponding

period of 2012. A breakdown of the Group’s revenue from

aviation business is as follows:

2012 Change &) (%)
1,069.67 11.58
1,026.67 11.63

43.00 10.37

87,247 8.24
83,363 8.23
3,884 8.32
175,364.50 11.94
169,769.00 11.73
5,5695.50 18.34

AEBE_ZT-=ZFNORZEBEURALORARE
433,635,1377C * R-T—_FREPER T 410.10% °
BERAEEMEEZBRAFHBAT :

Amount Change over

ot 2012 (%)

(RMB) BZ-ZE—_F

(AR®T) BE (%)

Passenger service charges RE RS E 174,616,062 9.32
Aircraft movement fees and related charges FRMEE PR K AR RN B 59,571,701 10.36
Airport fee 5 B 138,593,584 11.37
Ground handling service income Ho T AR 7% & 60,853,790 9.26
Total revenue from aviation business M ze E BT A 433,635,137 10.10

BEEMEREESROERLE
“E-=FER
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Airport fee represents Civil Aviation Development Fund (2012:
airport fee represents Civil Airport Construction Fee and Civil
Aviation Development Fund), which is expected to be refunded
from government. According to the Interim Measures for the
Collection, Use and Management of the Civil Aviation Development
Fund (RMERESHBEREEETHE)) promulgated by
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC effective on 1 April 2012,
and is effective until 31 December 2015. The former Civil Airport
Construction Fee was abolished and replaced by the Civil Aviation
Development Fund which is charged to passengers at the same
rate as the former airport construction fee.

According to the Notice Regarding the Grant of Subsidy of Civil
Aviation Development Fund to Haikou Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. issued
by Civil Aviation Administration of China (“CAAC”) on 11 April 2012,
the previous airport construction fee refund granted to the Group was
superseded by the Civil Aviation Development Fund correspondingly,
the refund rate should be determined by CAAC. Given the same
refund method and nature of Civil Aviation Development Fund
and former civil airport construction fee, and as the Group did not
receive any notice from relevant authorities regarding any change
of the refund rate of the airport fee attributable to the Group during
the year and the actual refund rate of the airport construction fee is
48% since 2008. The Group recognized the refund of Civil Aviation
Development Fund at a rate of 48% according to the best estimates
made by the management.

NON-AVIATION BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2013, the performance of non-aviation business of the
Group was outstanding, showing a good momentum of
development. Annual revenue from the non-aviation business was
RMB326,641,637, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.55%
and accounting for up to 42.96% of the Group’s total revenue.
Such significant growth was mainly due to the franchise operation
of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop of Haikou Meilan
Airport Duty-Free Shop Co., Ltd in Meilan Airport. In addition, the
Group enhanced its communication with the retailers by offering
advice to help them increase their sales effectively. In 2013, the
Group recorded accumulated franchise fee of RMB159,177,174
and rental fee of RMB33,713,717,
increase of 16.28% and 23.06%, respectively. And revenue from

representing a year-on-year

car park also reached RMB13,312,073, representing a significant
year-on-year increase of 30.31%. Moreover, other non-aviation

businesses such as freight income showed improvements as well.
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Amount Change over

-t 2012 (%)

(RMB) ®-ZT—_F

(ARTT) 28 (%)

Franchise income FRET A& A 159,177,174 16.28

Freight and packing income BENMBERA 67,893,912 7.45

Rental income He WA 33,713,717 23.06

VIP room income HEEEWA 29,067,147 -8.28

Parking income =EHZBA 13,312,073 30.31

Other income HEmugA 23,477,614 12.63

In which: extended service income Hrop o EERARISUA 8,625,594 23.65

departure system income BEE R RN 6,465,014 9.67

Total revenue from non-aeronautical businesses JEMZE ZE TSR 326,641,637 12.55
FRANCHISE INCOME FERT A Z WA

In 2013, the franchise income of the Group amounted to
RMB159,177,174, representing a year-on-year growth of 16.28%,
which was mainly attributable to factors such as expansion of
the business area of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop,
increased types of duty-free commodities and diversified
promotion means, resulting in the substantial growth. In 2013,
revenue from offshore duty-free franchise of the Group amounted
to RMB91,778,400.

RENTAL INCOME

In 2013, the rental income of the Group amounted to
RMB33,713,717, representing a year-on-year growth of 23.06%,
which was because the Company made full use of the existing
venue resources of the terminal and increase the income from
terminal rental through re-planning, enhancing investment
attraction and appropriately increasing the rental rate.

FREIGHT AND PACKAGING INCOME

In 2013, the Group maintained a sustained growth momentum
in freight volume and revenue by adopting sales management
through division of routes and varieties, strengthening sales
cooperation with airline companies, adjusting some charge items,
increasing service charge items and exploring market potential.
Through the year of 2013, the total freight and packaging income
of the Group amounted to RMB67,893,912, representing a year-
on-year growth of 7.45%.

ZE—-F AEBERTLERBAABARE
169,177,1747C » RILLIER16.28% @ = BB SN EBH LS
BSoR/EEEREEN - 2Hm AR REETFER
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PARKING INCOME

In 2013, the parking income of the Group amounted to
RMB13,312,073, representing a year-on-year growth of 30.31%,
which was mainly because the Company strengthened the
management of the parking lot and its surrounding areas and fully
utilized the existing parking resources, and the new international
terminal parking lot was opened this year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

ASSET ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2013, the total assets of the Group
amounted to RMB5,667,228,837, representing an increase
of 46.54% over last year, among which, current assets
amounted to RMB3,091,910,536, approximately 54.56% of the
total assets, non-current assets amounted to approximately
RMB2,575,318,301, approximately 45.44% of the total
assets. The reason was mainly due to the syndicated loans of
US$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,524,225,000) raised by the
Company in December 2013, which increased the cash at bank.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to
ensure the ability of ongoing operations and maintain a healthy
capital ratio in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ interests. The Group continued to emphasize the
appropriate mix of equity and debt to ensure an efficient capital
structure to reduce capital cost. As at 31 December 2013, the
debts of the Group were mainly bank loans, corporate bonds
long-term payables (hereinafter the “total borrowings”), amounting
to approximately RMB2,706,980,972. Cash and cash equivalents
was approximately RMB2,998,410,937. The gearing ratio of the
Group was 101.41% as at 31 December 2013 (31 December
2012: 48.75%) (total borrowings/total equity).

The Group maintained a balanced portfolio of loans at fixed
interest rates and variable rates to manage interest expenses. As
at 31 December 2013, 33.56% of the Group’s total borrowings
were subject to fixed interest rates, while the remaining 66.44%
were subject to floating interest rates.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

32

FEISRA

ZE—=F AEBEEEBRARFTERARE
13,312,0737C * R K30.31% c TERERAZ AR A
MaEBEEEENER  FHRAECHESERESIZSF
B RSAFEEAEBFHBEEMLEEESMA - 0
RUARIER -

FA 75 O R

BEST

RZE—=F+-_A=+—8 AEBNEEREA
A R #5,667,228,8377C + & - F [F] Hi 1% K 46.54% -
Hemeh & E A ARBK3091,910,5367C © (h#BREE
54.56% : IEMBNVEELHARME?2,575,318,3017T * 1542
BENL5.44% FERAREARANZZE—=F+=
A 8 A250,000,000Z 7T (F16 ARHE1,524,225,000) &
IREER - BB ESIEIMATE -

BARE
AEEEAEENTEAREABRAEEFELEEN
MRBRITMEAR UL IFEERLE RMEREFTR
BAb AEERBESERANEEHRS - BREED
BEARBBRBEEAKRE - R_T—=F+_A=+—
H AEEMNEEEZZERBTER  QAnEFMRIE
RR(ATEE Al BER]) £ ARME?2,706,980,972
T AR RREEEWH ARE2,998,410,937
T BABERAINMN% (ZE——F+_A=+—
H : 48.75%) (RfE 3k 1aHEx) -

75 [ 388 38 4 55 1 O [B) E M SR (B B ] S N R B S A
BUERMEBKAE R-_E—=F+"A=+—H &
S EARERH33.56% B E S RETHE - #1T166.44%%
RTBERTH -



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFDTDFH& Tﬁ

The Group aimed to keep the balance between the continuity and
flexibility of funds by capitalizing on its total borrowings. As at 31
December 2013, 4.24% of the Group’s bank loans will become
due within one year, and the corporate bonds will become due in
2019.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi and US dollars, among which
borrowings in US dollars represented approximately 66.44% of
the total borrowings, while cash and cash equivalents mainly
denominated in Renminbi and US dollars, among which USD
represented approximately 50.91% of the total amount.

COSTS ANALYSIS

The operation cost and administrative expenses of the Group
were RMB323,205,870 in 2013, representing an increase of
RMB23,782,059 or 7.94% as compared to that of 2012, mainly
because:

(1)  Staff cost increased by RMB16,056,792 due to the raised
remuneration level and increased headcount.

(2) The Company strengthened the development of aviation
market, and the airport companies increased their capacity
operations at Meilan Airport. The cost of the airline subsidy
increased by RMB6,128,866 for the year.

In 2013,
RMB50,228,086, which was approximate to that of last year.

the Group’s finance expenses amounted to

CASH FLOW

In 2013, the Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities
was RMB504,966,557, representing an increase of 12.78% over
last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase of the
operating revenue of the Group for the year.

In 2013, the Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities
was RMB39,326,422, which was mainly used for acquisition
of equipment, facilities and other fixed assets as required for
operation for the year.
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In 2013, the Group’s net cash inflow from financing activities was
RMB1,325,121,558, which was mainly due to the syndicated loan
of US$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,524,225,000) raised by
the Group during the year.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group obtained a long-term borrowing of US$72,500,000
from China Development Bank. Such borrowing was secured
by 24.5% equity interest in HNA Airport Holdings held by the
Group. As of 31 December 2013, the outstanding balance of the
borrowing was US$44,993,475 (equivalent to RMB274,320,718).

The Group obtained a long-term borrowing of US$250,000,000
from Taiwan syndication secured by the 51% interest in
Hainan Meilan International Airport Cargo Co., Ltd. held by
the Group and certain land use rights of the Group with book
value amounting to RMB8,965,065. As of 31 December 2013,
balance of the borrowing was US$250,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,524,225,000). Please refer to the Company’s
announcement on 4 December 2013 for further details of the
loans.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As at 31 December 2013, the accounts receivables and
other receivables of the Group amounted to RMB85,808,559,
representing a decrease of 13.99% as compared with the end of
the previous year.

Details of the accounts receivables and other receivables of the
Group are set out in Note 5(2) and Note 5(4) to the financial
statements. Details of the accounts receivables and the policy for
impairment of accounts receivables are set out in Note 2(10) to
the financial statements.
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GEARING RATIO

As of 31 December 2013, current assets of the Group were
RMB3,091,910,536, total assets were RMB5,667,228,837, current
liabilities were approximately RMB410,894,593 and total liabilities
were RMB2,997,885,724. The gearing ratio (total liabilities/total
assets) of the Group was 52.90%, representing an increase of
15.97% over last year which is attributable to the new syndicated
loan of US$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,524,225,000) for
the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The businesses of the Group are principally conducted in RMB,
except that certain aeronautical revenue, purchase of equipment
and consulting service fee are denominated in US$ or HK$. The
dividends to H-share holders are declared in RMB but paid in
HKS$. According to the overall arrangement of acquisition of the
24.5% equity interests in HNA Airport Holdings, the Group has
raised a US$ denominated loan from China Development Bank
to finance the said acquisition, the balance of the loan amounted
to US$44,993,475 as at 31 December 2013; the Group has also
raised a US$ denominated syndicated loan of US$250,000,000
from Taiwan investors to finance the construction of a complex
building adjacent to Meilan Airport; the principal and interests
of these two loans should be settled in US$. Thus, the
exchange fluctuation of RMB against US$ will affect the financial
performance of the Group. The Group has not entered into any
forward contract to hedge its exposure of foreign exchange risk.

INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group is obliged to repay the principal and interests
of the bank borrowings of US$44,9983,475 (equivalent to
RMB274,320,718) and US$250,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,524,225,000) provided by China Development Bank and
Taiwan syndication respectively. Relevant changes in Libor “London
Inter-Bank Offer Rate” and interest rate adjustments by the PBOC
will affect the interest expense and results of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, financial instruments of the Group
mainly comprised bank loans, corporate bonds, cash and bank
deposits. The purpose of those financial instruments is to finance
the Group’s operations. Besides, the Group had other financial
instruments in relation to daily operations, such as receivables
excluding prepayment and payables excluding statutory liabilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2013, neither the Group nor the Company
had any significant contingent liability.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, neither the Group nor the Company
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares of the
Company.

EMPLOYMENT, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
TRAINING

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 709
employees, representing an increase of 146 employees over the
last year, it is within the scope of normal employment. Employees
are remunerated based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practices. The Group will review the
remuneration policy and related packages on a regular basis.
Performance-based bonuses and commissions may be awarded
to employees. The Group determined its training schemes for the
year based on the requirement of the positions of its employees,
in order to provide technical training for an upgrade the talent of
its staffs. A total of 142 courses under the training scheme were
completed, and 3,621 staffs participated in.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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RETIREMENT PENSION

The Company and its subsidiaries shall participate in the employee
retirement scheme operated by the relevant local government
of the PRC. The PRC Government shall be responsible for the
pension of the retired employees. The Group has to make a
contribution at a rate of 20% of the salary of the employees with
permanent residence in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the contribution to
the pension amounted to approximately RMB6,666,516 (2012:
RMB4,833,520).
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The Company is committed to complying with all the rules
prescribed by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as well as requirements of
other regulatory bodies. The Company has adopted a code on
corporate governance practices on terms no less exacting than
the standard of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code on Corporate Governance”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules which came into effect in January 2005
and has been amended from time to time. During the year ended
31 December 2013, the Company had complied with the Code
on Corporate Governance and all governance and disclosure
requirements.

The Company is well aware that good corporate governance is
an important prerequisite for sustainable development, continuous
improvement of the Company’s value and safeguarding
shareholders’ rights and interests. In the future, the Company will
adhere to good and prudent governance style and continuously
improved corporate governance level to achieve efficient
management and standardized operation.
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Corporate Governance Report
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The committees under the Board are established in accordance
with the relevant rules prescribed in the Listing Rules of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. The chairman of the committees shall be
served by Independent Non-executive Directors.

(Comprised of four Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors)

(HABHITES - SHFHTES  42BUFHITESAR)

e e
Audit Committee
(Comprised of three
Independent
Non-executive Directors)

Strategic Committee
(Comprised of three
Independent
Non-executive Directors,
one Executive Director and
one Non-executive Director)
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The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted
by the Board in compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

Remuneration Committee

e e
Nomination Committee
(Comprised of two
Independent
Non-executive Directors

(Comprised of two
Independent
Non-executive Directors

and one Executive
Director)

and one Executive
Director)
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The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
the directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of the directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, all of the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during any
time of the accounting period covered by this annual report.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises 11 Directors,
including four Executive Directors, three non-executive Directors
and four Independent Non-executive Directors. The Company has
complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules for comprising
at least three independent non-executives and the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors accounts for at least one
third of the members of the Board of Directors, and at least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors shall have the
appropriate professional qualifications and has proper expertise in
accounting or financial management.

The members of the Board well acknowledge their responsibilities
and obligations and treat equally to all of the shareholders. In
order to safeguard all of the investors’ interest, the Company
ensures to provide the files and information in relation to the
Company’s operations to members of Directors in a timely
manner. Independent Non-executive Directors act on their duties
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations to make sure
the interest of the Company and shareholders as a whole.
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As of 31 December 2013, the Board of the Company comprised
eleven directors:

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liang Jun (appointed on 12 December 2012)

VICE CHAIRMAN

Mr. Hu Wentai
Mr. Wang Zhen

(re-appointed on 23 August 2012)
(duly appointed on 27 May 2013)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liang Jun

Mr. Wang Zhen
Mr. Yang Xiaobin
Mr. Yang Xugiang

re-appointed on 29 May 2012)

duly appointed on 27 May 2013)
duly appointed on 4 March 2013)
duly appointed on 4 March 2013)

—_— o~~~

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Wentai (re-appointed on 29 May 2012)
Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. Yan Xiang (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Bailing (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. George F. Meng (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. Feng Da’an (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)

The Company has received annual confirmation letters regarding
the independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Company considers that each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors is independent from the Company.

The independent non-executive directors, Mr. Xu Bailing and
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon currently have served more than 9 years
as independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
Company confirms that each of Mr. Xu Bailing and Mr. Fung
Ching, Simon still meet the independence requirements set
out in Rules 3.13. Mr. Xu Bailing and Mr. Fung Ching, Simon
have relevant accounting or industrial experience and have a
deep understanding of the Group’s operation. Based on such,
the Company believes that Mr. Xu Bailing and Mr. Fung Ching,
Simon are independent of the Group and will continue to make
contribution to the Company.

There is no relationship among the Directors that is discloseable.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the annual accounts.
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The Board believes that regular assessment of its performance is
important and beneficial to improving its operations. In 2013, the
Board conducted assessment on its performance.
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1. The Board had held 6 meetings as of 31 December 2013, 1. HzE-—FT—=F+-_HF=4+— Em:z]gp\j tgasg
being the first to the sixth session of the fifth congress. ﬁ;A§$gg;§(ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ RE— N —FHEEK
i% = El é‘t °
2. The attendance records of the Directors in the Board 2. EHHEFEZeemflEeeznER
meetings and the general meetings

Not attending
any meeting
Number of Attendance in person

Board by audio fortwo  Attendance

meetings  Attendance orvideo Attendance consecutive  of general

Independent  for the year in person conferencing by proxy Absence times meeting
REEE

AEESM DERA MAKBE HERRAS

Name of Director Bxn?  REBUEE  EZENE RELRNE LA ZREERE  BRERY BNl ihi=s

Liang Jun 2 E No 6 6 0 0 0 No 100%
& &

Zhang Han'an (former) ~ RER(30) No 2 2 0 0 0 No 100%
T ~
[=] [=}

Liu Lu (former) 2 (a0 No 1 1 0 0 0 No 100%
& &

Xing Xi-hong (former) ~ FBE4I(AY) No 1 1 0 0 0 No 100%
~ ~
[m] [m=}

Hu Wentai e No 6 5 1 0 0 No 100%
& &

Wang Zhen T 8 No 4 3 1 0 0 No 100%
& &

Yang Xiaobin BINE No 5 4 1 0 0 No 100%
& &

Yang Xugiang EE No 5 4 1 0 0 No 100%
& &

Chan Nap Kee, Joseph Bz & No 6 5 1 0 0 No 100%
& ~
(] =]

Yan Xiang & A No 6 5 1 0 0 No 100%
& &

Xu Bailing Rk Yes 6 6 0 0 0 No 100%
= &

Fung Ching, Simon B I Yes 6 4 2 0 0 No 100%
I &

George F. Meng LZR Yes 6 6 0 0 0 No 100%
7 &

Feng Da'an BA% Yes B 5 1 0 0 No 100%




Note: The second session of the fifth congress of the Board of
the Company was held on 19 March 2013 at which Mr.
Yang Xiaobin and Mr. Yang Xuqgiang attended as directors
for the first time in place of Mr. Liu Lu and Ms. Xing Xihong.
The third session of the fifth congress of the Board of the
Company was held on 27 May 2013 at which Mr. Wang Zhen
attended as a director for the first time in place of Mr. Zhang
Han’an.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company provided
all the members of the Board for the operation situation, financial
positions, major events as well as the monthly update of
disclosure for quarterly information of the Company.

The Company encourages the Directors to participate in the
continuous professional development in order to develop and
update their knowledge and skills. The Company also organized
relevant training in order to make sure that the Directors make
contribution to the Company with extensive information and
satisfaction. The Company made out registration forms, training
record and training certificates to assist them recording the
courses they have participated. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the summarized training records of the Directors are as
follows:
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Duties and
obligations and
responsibilities of

Amendments of Profiles of being loyal and Misconduct Fraud punishment
Listing Rules of applicable industrious in the behaviors in the and discipline
2013 in relation to regulations to part of Directors, market in relationto  penalty case in the
corporate H shares supervisors and Securities and Securities and
governance listing companies  senior managements  Futures Ordinance  Futures Committee
20135 LR BIER HR LA BESNBE (BSRUERH) BERESHFRAR
EEERFENET BRAREN SEINRBNEL  FETSXEGA Bl
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B7ES
Liang Jun 2 E % v v v %
Wang Zhen T & v v v v v
Yang Xiaobin BN v v v v v
Yang Xugiang R v v v v v
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ~ ##i{TEE
Hu Wentai e v v v v v
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph B v v % v v
Yan Xiang ) v v v v v
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE B 3#i{75%
DIRECTORS
Xu Bailing (i v v v v v
Fung Ching, Simon & 1t v v v v v
George F. Meng nZE v % v v v
Feng Da'an BAZ v v v v v

The above trainings were organized by the Directors’ Office of MW EIFIIHARREZSMAZTHEE G EMEBEIFT -
the Company, together with Jun He Law Offices, and Orrick, BRERAEHEMR L EKERREFAEBAEKRE
Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, as well as PricewaterhouseCoopers HB&ER)EMH  R_T—=F \AZ+tNALBHELRES
Zhong Tian LLP. The training was held at the No.1 meeting room, &SMESANBEEEEIFTREETT 5 R
Directors’ hall in Grand Regency Hotel in Qingdao on 29 August HEEMRBREBEEEINEARAGES EERaREEAE
2013, with a total of ten courses. The project was aiming to ¥ B BEEEE - RAIERESNEEMNEMR - (TEX
strengthen the Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management's A IR &I(LIE1E - A EIR B MAIBIEHIKAE ©
understanding to the concept and practice of laws and regulations

and corporate governance of the Hong Kong, in order to improve

the standardization of operations, enhance the level of corporate

governance and internal control.



Details of terms of reference of the Board and the management

and the respective areas to exercise their authority are set out in

the articles of association of the Company:

The Board is accountable to the shareholders’ general meeting

and shall exercise the following duties and powers:

10.

11.

to convene general meetings and report to the shareholders;

to carry out the resolutions of the general meetings;

to decide on the operational plan and investment plan of the
Company;

to formulate the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

to formulate plans for profit distribution and recovery of
losses;

to formulate plans for increases in or reductions of the
Company’s registered capital, the issue of corporate bonds
and other securities and the listing of the Company;

to prepare plans for merger, division, dissolution and
reorganization of the Company;

to determine the internal management structure of the
Company;

to appoint or dismiss the Company’s general manager and
secretary to the Board on recommendation of the chairman
of the board; and to appoint or dismiss deputy general
managers and other senior officers of the Company and
determine their remuneration on recommendation of the
general manager;

to formulate the Company’s basic management system;

to formulate proposals for amendment of the articles of
association of the Company;
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12. to formulate proposals for major acquisitions or disposals of
the Company;

13. to propose the appointment or dismissal of external auditors
for approval by the shareholders’ general meeting; and

14. other powers conferred under the articles of association of
the Company and by the general meeting.

The Board has established the audit committee, nomination

committee, remuneration committee and strategic committee.

Each of these committees has established its own written terms

of reference and operates effectively on this basis.

The general management can decide the following matters:

to supervise the management of production and business
operations, and organize the implementation of the
resolutions of the Board;

to coordinate the implementation of the Company’s annual
business and investment plans;

to formulate plans for the establishment of the Company’s
internal management structure;

to formulate the basic administration system of the
Company;

to formulate the basic rules of the Company;

to recommend the appointment and dismissal of vice
general managers and other senior officers (include financial
officers) of the Company;

to appoint or dismiss other managerial staff (other than
those required to be appointed or dismissed by the Board);
and

to exercise other powers conferred under the articles of
association of the Company and by the Board.

Both the Board and the management act in strict compliance

with relevant requirements of the Company Law, the Company’s

articles of association and the Listing Rules.
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The chairman is responsible for development direction and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company.

The general manager is accountable to the Board, and is
delegated with the responsibility for running the Company’s
business and implementing the resolutions of the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the positions of Chairman
and General Manager were held by Mr. Liang Jun, and Mr.
Yang Xiaobin respectively, both being the Executive Directors.
The division of their duties was set out clearly in the Articles of
Association. Their terms of reference are clean and there is no
relationship in relation to finance, business and kinship between
them. The governance structure of the Company established well
and clear.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had Three Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hu Wentai, Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph and
Mr. Yan Xiang, and four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Xu Bailing, Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, Mr. George F.
Meng and Mr. Feng Da’an.

Mr. Hu Wentai’s current term of appointment is from 29 May
2012 to 28 May 2015;

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph’s current term of appointment is from
28 October 2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. Yan Xiang’s current term of appointment is from 28 October
2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. Xu Bailing’s current term of appointment is from 28 October
2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. Fung Ching, Simon’s current term of appointment is from 28
October 2013 to 27 October 2016;
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Mr. George F. Meng’s current term of appointment is from 28
October 2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. Feng Da’an’s current term of appointment is from 28 October
2013 to 27 October 2016.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary (Mr. Xing Zhouji). The company secretary
shall report to the Chairman on the corporate governance of the
Board and shall be responsible for ensuring the compliance with
relevant Board procedures and facilitating the communication
among directors, shareholders and the management. As at 31
December 2013, the company secretary received over 15 hours
of professional training for skill and knowledge updates.

According to the Recommended Best Practices A.1.9 of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices that an issuer should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors. The Company has arranged the liability insurance for
the Directors, the Supervisors and other senior management.

The internal control system of the Group comprised the
Supervisory Committee, the Board and its audit committee
and the internal audit department, which aims at ensuring
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, security of asset and
reliability of operation information and financial reports. It manages
risks in five major aspects, namely internal environment, risk
evaluation, control activities, information and communication, and
internal supervision.
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The Company has formulated and implemented the Articles of
Association, Rules of the Shareholders’ General Meeting, Rules
of Board Meeting, Rules of Meeting of Supervisory Committee,
Internal Control on Connected Transaction, Code of Conduct
of the Staff of Meilan Airport, Registration of Insider, Corporate
Governance Responsibilities of Directors, Terms of Reference
of the Audit Committee, Terms of Reference of Compensation
Committee and Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee in
accordance with the Company Law, Securities Law, Guidelines
on Internal Control of Listing Companies. The Company has also
devised systems for the management of contract, fixed assets
and tender process. Internal financial control on accounting
activities, audit procedures, treasury management and budget
control are established. Internal control on safety is also in place.

In addition, the Board of the Company has established the audit
committee, which oversees the income, expenses and economic
activities of the Company with the assistance of the auditors. The
audit committee has further strengthened risk management and
ensured effective implementation of internal control system for the
standard operation and healthy development of the Company.

The Board of the Company has carried out self-assessment of
internal control of 2013 based on effectiveness and applicability,
and no material deficiencies have been identified in the design
or execution of the internal control system. The Company will
continue to improve and establish a sound and effective internal
control system.

A remuneration committee has been set up by the Company,
which is a sub-committee under the Board.

Formation of remuneration committee: Mr. Feng Da’an, an
Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman, and other
members consisted of Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, an Independent
Non-executive Director, and Mr. Yang Xugiang, an Executive
Director.

As of 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee of the
Company had held one meeting on 19 March 2013 to determine
the remuneration of directors for 2012 and the proposed
remuneration package of directors for 2013.
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Directors’ remuneration policy for 2013: allowance for
Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Independent Directors are RMB70,000, RMB50,000 and

RMB100,000 per person respectively.

The Company held the Annual General Meeting on 27 May
2013, where the Resolution in Relation to the Remuneration
Packages for the Directors and Supervisors of the Company in
2013 was considered and approved. Directors and Supervisors
recommended by the parent company of the Company, proposed
that Directors and Supervisors nominated by connected parties
would not enjoy allowance for holding the position from the year
of 2013. But they were also entitled to receive respective salaries
according to their respective positions taken in the Company.

At the same time, the extraordinary general meeting held on 28
October 2013, where considered and approved the Resolution in
Relation to the Amendments to Senior Management Compensation
Scheme and agreed that 2% of audited consolidated net
profit of previous year cease to be all performance bonus and
other insensitive awards of senior management since 2013.
Amendments to the Senior Management Compensation Scheme
will take effect since the beginning of 2013.

MEETING ATTENDANCE:

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
year. The attendance of the meeting held by the remuneration
committee during the year ended 31 December 2013 is as
follows:
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A nomination committee has been set up by the Company, which
is a sub-committee under the Board.

Formation of nomination committee: Mr. Xu Bailing, an
Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman, and other
members are Mr. Feng Da’an, an Independent Non-executive
Director, and Mr. Liang Jun, an Executive Director.

As of 31 December 2013, the Company held the first session of
the fifth congress of Nomination Committee on 19 March 2013,
where recommended Mr. Wang Zhen as the Company’s Executive
Director. In order to regulate the operation of the Company and
clarify the respective powers and functions of the chairman and
the president, Mr. Yang Xiaobin was appointed the president of
the Company and Mr. Zhang Peihua was appointed as the vice
president and chief financial officer of the Company and Mr. Wu
Jian was appointed as a vice president of the Company. On 27
May 2013, the Company convened the Second session of the
Fifth congress of the Nomination Committee, Mr. Wang Zhen
was recommended as the Company’s Vice Chairman and Mr.
Xing Zhoujin was re-appointed as the secretary of the Board and
the authorized representative. On 29 August 2013, the Company
convened the third meeting of the Fifth Session of Nomination
Committee to re-appointed Mr. Xu Bailing, Mr. Fung Ching,
Simon, Mr. F. Meng and Mr. Feng Da’an as the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company and Mr. Chan Nap Kee,
Joseph and Mr. Yan Xiang as the Non-executive Directors of the
Company as well as to formulate the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will identify
candidates through different channels under the requirements
made by the Company to the Directors. Subject to the approval of
the Nomination Committee, the candidates will be recommended
to the Board for its verification and submit to the General Meeting
for approval after passed the examination of the Board.

The nomination was made in accordance with the nomination
policy of the Company and against the objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity (including without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service).
It had also taken into account their respective contributions to the
Board and their firm commitment to their roles.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE OF THE NOMINATION
COMMITTEE:

The nomination committee held three meetings during the year.
The attendance of the meetings held by the nomination committee
during the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:
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Member of the nomination committee ZESERE BONWREEAZESIRLESE
Mr. Xu Bailing wEEREE 100%
Mr. Feng Da’an AR HE 100%
Mr. Liang Jun 2 OEhE 100%

The remuneration of auditors for the year ended 31 December
2013 was RMB1,730,119.

The Company set up an Audit Committee under the Board. For
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee is
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Xu Bailing, Mr. Fung Ching, Simon and Mr. George F. Meng
with Mr. Xu Bailing as the chairman.

As of 31 December 2013, the Company held two meetings of the
Audit Committee.

The first meeting of the Audit Committee in 2013 reviewed the
2012 annual report and auditors’ report, and also considered the
re-appointment of auditor and determination of their remuneration
as well as the audit method of 2013 interim report, working report
of the Audit Committee for the year of 2012 was also considered
on the meeting.
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During the second meeting in 2013, the Audit Committee
reviewed the 2013 interim report, and interim report of auditors of
20183 and interim working report of Audit Committee for 2013.

The audit committee suggested the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP as auditors of the
Company in 2014.

MEETING ATTENDANCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance of the meetings held by the audit committee during
the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:
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Member of the audit committee EEERE BITNERZESTRHEER
Mr. Xu Baliling RIBER A 100%
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon B EEA 100%
Mr. George F. Meng HERLE 100%

During 2013, none of the senior management held any
shareholding interests in the Company.
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During 2013, one round of major amendments of the articles of
association of the Company have been made.

The purpose of the amendment is to further clarify the relevant
terms of reference of the general meeting and further standardize
the language in the Articles of Association of the Company to
make its expression more precise and standard so that ambiguity
could be avoided. The amendment has been passed by the
Company on the special general meeting on 14 Febuary 2014.
For details of the updated and latest Articles of Association,
please see the announcement dated 14 Febuary 2014.

Details of the amendments are as follows:

The original Articles 57(13) is:

(18) To examine and approve matters in respect of the following
guarantees:

1. Any guarantees provided after the total amount of external
guarantees has reached or exceeded thirty percent(30%)of
the company’s latest audited total assets;

2. Any guarantees provided involving an amount of more than
ten percent(10%) of the company’s latest audited net assets
in a single deal;

3. Any guarantees provided after the total amount of external
guarantees provided by the company and its subsidiaries
has reached or exceeded fifty percent(50%) of the
company’s latest audited net assets;

4.  Any guarantees provided to a guaranteed party with an
asset liability ratio of more than seventy percent(70%); and

5. Any guarantees provided to the company’s shareholders or
de facto controllers.”
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Amended as:

(13) To examine and approve the following external guarantees
of the company (referring to guarantees provided to individual or
legal entity other than the company and its subsidiaries):

1. Any guarantees provided after the total amount of external
guarantees of the company has reached or exceeded thirty
percent(30%) of the company’s latest audited total assets;

2. Any external guarantees provided involving an amount
of more than ten percent (10%) of the company’s latest
audited net assets in a single deal;

3.  Any guatantees provided after the total amount of external
guarantees of the company and its subsidiaries has reached
or exceeded fifty percent(50%) of the company’s latest
audited net assets;

4. Any external guarantees provided to a guaranteed party with
an asset liability ratio of more than seventy percent(70%);
and

5. Any guarantees provided to the shareholders, de facto
controllers and their related parties.”

The Company has placed emphasis on the communication with
shareholders. Shareholders can be updated with the operations
of the Company and market trends through its website and email
and phone enquiries. The information of the Company is delivered
to the shareholders by the following methods:

1.  publishing annual reports, interim reports, results
announcements and other information disclosure on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company;

2. organizing shareholders’ general meeting, which is one
of the most effective channels to communicate with the
shareholders;
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3. the Company continues to strengthen communication with
shareholders by means including:

(1) arranging designated staff to meet with shareholders
and answer their enquiries;

(2) arranging on-site visits to the Company for
shareholders to understand the operation and the
latest development of the Company in a timely manner;

(8) providing relevant financial and operation data on the
Company’s website timely.

Shareholders or investors may make enquiries and offer
suggestions through the following channels:

Telephone no:  0898-65762081

Address: Office of the Board of Directors, Office Building
of Meilan International Airport, Meilan District,
Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC

Postal code: 571126

To ensure better protection of shareholders’ interests, the
articles of association of the Company set out the requirements
for shareholders to request an extraordinary general meeting or
class meeting to be convened: When two or more shareholders
holding in aggregate more than ten percent (10%) (including the
ten percent (10%)) of the Company’s shares entitling their holders
to vote in the proposed general meeting request, by signing one
or more copies of a written request in the same form and submit
to the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or
class meeting with an agenda of the meeting. An extraordinary
general meeting or class meeting is required to be held as soon
as practicable upon receipt by the Board of such written request.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board did
not receive any request from shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting.
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Details of the classes of the Company’s shareholders and
particulars on shareholding in aggregate are set out in the
Report of the Directors in the 2013 annual report;

As at 31 December 2013, 226,913,000 H shares of the
Company were held by the public;

The Company has engaged a professional financial public
relations firm as the daily communication channel between
the Company and its investors and maintained active
communications with investors and fund managers and
securities analyst and media. The Company will publish
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the key operation data on a weekly and monthly basis and
report the Company’s latest development in relevant media
and at the Company’s website by means of press releases
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Mr. Liang Jun, aged 51, has a master degree in business
administration. From October 1991 to January 1999, Mr. Liang
served as the general manager of Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. Sanya
Branch, Ningbo Base and acted as its chief representative in
Shanghai. He was appointed as the chairman of HNA Hotel
Management Group in February 1999, executive vice president of
HNA Group Co., Ltd. in March 2001. From August 2003 to March
2006, he served as the chief executive officer, vice president
and president of HNA Hotel Holdings Ltd. Mr. Liang became the
president and general manager of HNA International Hotel Ltd. in
April 2006, and also the president and chief executive officer of
HNA Food Holdings Ltd., general manager of Hainan Airlines Food
Company Limited, and became the vice president of HNA Hotels
& Resorts Ltd. and HNA Hotel Holdings Ltd. in March 2007 and
deputy chairman and chief executive officer of HNA Airport Group
Company Limited in February 2012. Mr. Liang has extensive
experience in corporate management. Mr. Liang was re-appointed
as the executive director of the Company on 29 May 2012 and
appointed as the chairman and general manager of the Company
on 12 December 2012. He has also served as a member of the
nomination committee and the strategic committee of the Board
of the Company. He was appointed as the Chairman of Haikou
Meilan International Airport Company Limited in October 2012.
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Mr. Wang Zhen, aged 51, master degree candidate, and
a member of the Communist Party of China. He is the vice
Chairman of Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited.
From 1983 to 1992, he worked for Xinjiang Airlines Aircraft
Repair Plant (¥ 52 fit 2= A 7] 7K # # 1€ B) consecutively as the
mechanic staff, the machinist, the maintenance leader, and the
deputy workshop director. From 1993 to 1999, he worked for
Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. (8FEMZ D B R A F]) consecutively
as the mechanic staff and the vice captain of the engineering
department, the manager, the assistant to the department general
manager and the branch department manager of the maintenance
department. From October 1999 to January 2000, he was the
vice general manager of the human resources department at
Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. (8FEMERMHBRAF]). From January
2000 to May 2000, he was the chief of the production operation
center at Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. (8mMZ=RHBR A R]). From
May 2000 to December 2002, he was consecutively the vice
executive president and the assistant of the executive president at
Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. (8@ fiZ & AR A F)). From December
2002 to May 20083, he was the president of Sanya Phoenix
International Airport Co., Ltd. (ZZ:BlEBIR S ERAR]). From
March 2003 to November 2006, he was consecutively the chief
executive officer and the general manager of the Company. From
November 2006 to January 2007, he was the vice executive
president of HNA Airport Group Limited (B t45EE AR A
A]). From January 2007 to September 2008, he was the vice
executive president of HNA Airport Group Holdings Limited (&
HISIE R S B AR A 7). From September 2008 to July 2012, he
worked for Sanya Phoenix International Airport Co., Ltd. (=328l
BB #3552 7]) consecutively as the president, the deputy
commander of the construction management department, the
executive chairman of the board and the chairman of the board.
From July 2012 to May 2013, he worked as the deputy leader of
the Meilan Airport aviation industrial park project promotion group
of the airport management division at HNA Industrial Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd. (BMEXER(EE)BRAF); he served as
vice chairman of the Company since May 2013.
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Mr. Yang Xiaobin, aged 43, obtained his bachelor degree in
law from Jiangsu University in 2009. Mr. Yang has extensive
experience in civil aviation. He worked for Qingan Aerospace
Equipment Company (B % F Ml &% # 2 7)), a state-owned
company, from October 1992 to February 1994, and was the
secretary of the deputy chief executive and control room safety
officer of Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited
from December 2000 to October 2002, the control room safety
officer of the Company from June 2003 to September 2004, and
safety supervisor of the operation safety office of the Company
from September 2004 to May 2007, the control room deputy
general manager of the Company from July 2007 to December
2008, the general manager (operation) of HNA Airport Group
Company Limited from December 2008 to August 2009, the
Ltd. from
September 2009 to September 2011, the deputy general manager
of the Company from September 2011 to 18 March 2013 and the
general manager of the Company from 19 March 2013.

chairman of Yichang Three Gorges Airport Co.,

Mr. Yang Xugiang, aged 46, obtained his master degree in
business administration from Capital University of Economy
and Business in 2000. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in
civil aviation and business administration. He was the freight
supervisor of CAAC Haikou Administration from January 1988 to
October 1992, the deputy manager (freight), deputy manager (ticket)
and supervisor (accounts) of CAAC Hainan Administration from
October 1992 to March 1999, the departure hall ticket officer
and coordinator and the project financial control department
manager and deputy manager of supplies department of Haikou
Meilan International Airport Company Limited from March 1999 to
February 2004, the deputy manager of the business development
department of the Company from February 2004 to April 2004,
the deputy business manager and general operation manager
of HNA Airport Group Company Limited from April 2004 to May
2008, the general manager of Hainan Luckyway Charter Co., Ltd.
(BE=ERKBKAERAT) from May 2008 to December 2008,
the general manager of the control room of the Company from
December 2008 to May 2011, the general manager of Xinhua
Airport Terminal Services Co., Ltd. (HTEZ=B# 15 RS E R A7)
from May 2011 to May 2012 and the deputy general manager of
the Company from May 2012.
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Mr. Hu Wentai, aged 58, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company in May 2012. He has
also served a member of the strategic committee of the Board of
the Company. Mr. Hu Wentai joined HNA Group in June 2000,
working as the general manager of Hainan Henghe Property
Management Company Limited, the executive vice president of
Haikou Meilan Airport Company Limited. Since Mr. Hu joined the
Company in 2002, he has held a number of senior positions in the
Company, including the chief operating officer and vice president
of the Company. In February 2006, he was also the chairman
of Haikou New City Area Construction Development Company
Limited and the deputy general manager of Beijing HNA Realty
Group Company Limited. Mr. Hu Wentai has extensive experience
in the area of airport management and project construction.

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph, aged 53, was reappointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company in October 2013. Mr. Chan
acquired his master’s degree from the University of Strathclyde in
the major of International Marketing and a diploma from Peking
University in China Investment and Trade Study. He holds licenses
of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance), and Type 9 (asset management) under Chapter 571 of
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance respectively. Mr.
Chan has nearly 25 years management experience in banking,
investment banking and asset investment. Mr. Chan was the
deputy general manager of Credit Agricole Bank from 1986 to
1994, where he was also in charge of China business. From
1992 to 1994, he was also the co-head of Credit Agricole Asset
Management South East Asia Limited. From 1994 to now, Mr.
Chan has been a founding partner of Oriental Patron Financial
Group. He is also an executive director of Oriental Patron Asia
Ltd. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive Director of Kaisun
Energy Group Limited (Stock Code: 8203, a company listed in
the GEM board of the Stock Exchange) in September 2008 and
is the Chairman of that group. Mr. Chan was appointed as a non-
executive director of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited on 19
February 2013.
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Mr. Yan Xiang, aged 50, was re-appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company in October 2013. Mr. Yan graduated
from Peking University, where he received a bachelor’s degree in
Economics and a master’s degree in Economics. From January
1988 to August 1991, he had been a teaching assistant and
lecturer in Economics at Peking University. After August 1991,
he was a research fellow with the Research Center of the
People’s Government of Hainan Province, the general manager
of Hainan Securities Exchange Center and the president of
Hainan Securities Company Limited. He had been a director of
Zhongfu Industrial Co., Ltd. and an independent director of China
United Travel Company Limited. Mr. Yan is the Chairman of the
China Region of the Oriental Patron Financial Group and the
President of the Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited.
Mr. Yan had been the executor director of Hainan Development
Promotion Association, committee member of Experts Committee
in Research of National Debts and Futures and committee
member of Credit Assessment Experts Committee of China Credit
Securities Assessment Limited.

Mr. Xu Bailing, aged 80, was re-appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 2013. He
has also served as the chairman of the audit committee and the
nomination committee and a member of the strategic committee
of the Board of the Company. Mr. Xu was the representative of
the Fourth and Fifth National People’s Congress and a member of
the Ninth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr.
Xu had worked for the Civil Aviation Beijing Administrative Bureau
since 1954, holding various positions such as pilot, supervisor and
captain and was appointed Deputy Head and Head of Department
in January 1977 and June 1979 respectively. Mr. Xu was then
appointed as the vice director of CAAC in December 1986 and
then as the general manager of Air China in March 1988. He was
appointed as a consultant of CAAC in August 1993.
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Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, aged 45, was re-appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company in
October 2013. He has also served as the chairman of the
strategic committee and a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee. Mr. Fung graduated from the Queensland
University of Technology in Australia with a bachelor’s degree,
majoring in accountancy. Mr. Fung is a Hong Kong resident. He
is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fung
worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers between 1994 and 2004,
and he served as the chief financial officer and secretary to the
board of directors of Baoye Group Company Limited (B#%£E
XD AR A7) (stock code: 02355.HK) between 2004 and 2010.
Mr. Fung joined Greentown China Holdings Limited (%3 A BI12 A%
BBRAR]) (stock code: 3900.HK) in August 2010 and served as
the chief financial officer and company secretary. Mr. Fung has
over 9 years of experience in managing finance and accounting
functions, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and investor
relations for a PRC company listed in Hong Kong, and has 10
years of experience in auditing, accounting and business advisory
with a “Big-4” international accounting firm. Mr. Fung is currently
a non-executive director of Baoye Group Company Limited.

Mr. George F. Meng, aged 70, was re-appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in October
2013. He has also served as a member of the audit committee
of the Board of the Company. Mr. Meng graduated from Civil
Aviation University of China in 1966, where he studied radio
communication and English language. In 1972, he entered into
Tianjin Foreign Studies University for further study of English
language. From 1984 to 1991, he once studied FAA Aircraft
Dispatcher Training Course sponsored by Aviation Training
Services, Long Island, New York, Advanced Training in Aviation
Course with Ansett Airlines, and MBA course at Oklahoma City
University. During the years of 1966 to 1988, Mr. Meng served
various positions including Radio Station Master of Communication
Department of CAAC Chengdu Administration, Dean of the
Technical English Department of Civil Aviation University of China,
and Deputy Director of CAAC Training Center. After 1991, he was
a director and the general manager of China Resource Ltd., USA.
From 2000 to now, Mr. Meng is the president of Soaring Eagle
Industrial LLC., USA. Since September 2010, he has been the
principal of Northern New Jersey Huaxia Chinese School (non-
profit organization). He has served as the general manager (United
States) of Hua Ling Consultant Inc. in Toronto, Canada since
January 2012.
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Mr. Feng Da’an, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in October 2013. He has
also served as the chairman of the remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee and strategic committee
of the Board of the Company. Mr. Feng graduated from the
Industrial and Civil Construction Specialty of Lanzhou University
of Technology in December 1981. From January 1982 to October
1990, he served various positions as ordinary official, department
chief, specialized sub-branch president and vice president of
China Construction Bank, Gansu Branch. In October 1990, he
began serving as a vice president of China Construction Bank,
Hainan Branch. In July 1995, he began serving as a deputy
director of the Securities Administration Office of Hainan Province.
He served as deputy director general and director general of the
Local Taxation Bureau of Hainan Province from August 1998 to
December 2007, and retired in December 2007. At present, Mr.
Feng serves as independent director of three listed companies,
namely Beijing Hualian Hypermarket Co., Ltd. (A share code:
600361), Sundiro Holding Co., Ltd. (A share code: 000571) and
Hainan Dadonghai Tourism Centre (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (A share
code: 000613).

Mr. Dong Guiguo, aged 51, was re-appointed as a supervisor of
the Company on 29 May 2012 and has served as the chairman
of the Supervisory Committee. Mr. Dong graduated from Civil
Aviation University of China majoring in aircraft engine. He has
pursued further studies in China Europe International Business
School. He is an aviation engineer and accountant. Mr. Dong
has worked at civil aviation maintenance base in Beijing, Beijing
Aircraft Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd., HNA Group Purchase
Management Department, HNA Group Airport Management
Department and HNA Airport Group Company Limited. Since
October 2000, he has respectively served as deputy manager of
the aviation material and equipment procurement center of the
procurement department of HNA Group, deputy general manager
of airport management department of HNA Group, general
manager of Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited,
executive chairman’s assistant, general manager of the finance
department and general manager of the project management
department of HNA Airport Group Company Limited and vice
chairman, vice president and chief financial officer of HNA Airport
Group. Mr. Dong was appointed as a Director of the Company
from March 2006 to October 2008 and become the Financial
Officer of the Company in December 2006. He was appointed
as the Chief Financial Director of the Company in April 2007. In
December 2008, he resigned from the Company. Currently, Mr.
Dong is the vice president of S E %L (EE)ERAF and
the chairman of HNA Airport Group Company Limited. He has
extensive experience in civil aviation and finance.
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Mr. Zhang Shusheng, aged 77, is a senior reporter. He was
re-appointed as an Independent Supervisor of the Company in
October 2013. He is a graduate of the Department of Chinese,
Lan Zhou University majoring in Han Literature. He once worked
for Gansu Daily and the People’s Daily. In June 1994, he was
transferred to China Civil Aviation News working as the chief
editor and Party branch secretary and was responsible for the
management of China Civil Aviation News. He has been the vice-
chairman of Gansu Province Journalist Association, the president
of the Association for Resident Correspondent in Gansu Province,
the managing director of China Press Cultural Advancement
Association and the director of China Civil Aviation Association.
He has been working as a consultant of China Civil Aviation News
since March 1999.

Mr. Han Aimin, aged 43, graduated from Beijing Business
College (dt & 7 £ F%) in 1995. He was appointed as the staff
representative supervisor of the Company on 23 August 2011. He
joined the Company in November 2008. From July 1995 to June
2004, Mr. Han worked at the freight department of Hainan Airlines
Co., Ltd. He served as the vice general manager of Haikou freight
center of the marketing department of Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd.
from June 2004 to March 2007. He was the general manager
of the freight company under Hainan Meilan International Airport
Company Limited from November 2008 to December 2009, and
the general manager of Hainan Meilan International Airport Cargo
Co., Ltd. from January 2009 to September 2010. He has been
the general manager of the business development department of
the Company since September 2010.
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Mr. Zhang Peihua, aged 42,
of the PRC and has a master degree in accounting. Mr. Zhang

is a certified public accountant

was the accountant of the Hainan branch of China Construction
Bank from July 1994 to January 1995, the chief accountant of
Hainan International Finance Company Limited (Gf B4
[R A 7)) from February 1995 to June 2000, the deputy manager
of the budget control office and supervisor of the financial control
office of Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. from September 2000 to August
2003, the assistant to chief accountant, chief financial officer and
chief information officer of Xi'an Minsheng Group Co., Ltd. (A%
EAEERMHARAR) from August 2003 to September 2005,
the deputy general manager of financial control department of
Chang’an Airlines Co., Ltd. (REZMEHBREIEAR]) from August
2005 to March 2006, the general manager of the financial control
department of HNA Hotel Holdings Ltd. from March 2006 to
November 2007, the chief financial officer and general manager
of the financial control department of Yangtze River Real Estate
Group Company Limited (i3 /LiESE AR A F]) from February
2006 to September 2007, the general manager of the financial
control department of Grand China Logistics Holding (Group)
Company Limited (R¥TZEDRIZR(EE)BR2AF]) from August
2007 to February 2009, the chief financial officer and general
manager of the financial control department of Grand China
Shipping (YanTai) Co., Ltd. (R¥FTEHM(ES)BER LA
February 2009 to December 2009, the chief financial officer of
Hainan Zhuxin Investment Co., Ltd. (BREEEHRERMDBRAT)
from December 2009 to August 2010, the chief financial officer

Al) from

of HNA Realty Group Company Limited from August 2010 to
December 2011 and the chief financial officer of HNA International
Tourism Island Development and Construction (Group) Company
Limited (4 A B B i 82 & B 25 32 Rk (2 @) AR 2 A)) from March
2011 to March 2012. He has been the chief financial officer of
HNA Airport Group Company Limited since February 2012, the
chief financial officer of the Company since 23 August 2012 and
the deputy general manager and chief financial officer of the
Company concurrently since 19 March 2013.
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Mr. Wu Jian, aged 37, was appointed deputy general manager
of the Company on 19 March 2013. Mr. Wu graduated from the
computer science department of Civil Aviation University of China
and is a assistant engineer. He was the manager of the service
support department, manager of the operation department,
general manager of the IT department and the assistant to the
executive officer of Hainan Airlines Aviation Information System
Co., Ltd., the general manager of the operation department of
HNA Airport Group Company Limited, deputy general manager
of the airport operation department of HNA Infrastructure
Industry Group Limited, the manager of the IT office of airport
management department of &1 E 212 % (£ E ) BR A F]. He has
extensive experience in the implementation of airport IT system
and intelligent system.

Mr. Xing Zhouijin, aged 48, was appointed as Company Secretary
in May 2013. Mr. Xing graduated from the Anhui Normal University
majoring in financial management. He also has a bachelor degree
in laws and a title of economist. Mr. Xing has been the personnel
and office director of Sanya Phoenix International Airport
and Haikou Meilan International Airport. He is engaged in the
management and operation of Hainan Meilan International Airport
Company Limited since 2002 and fully participated in the listing of
H shares of Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited
and worked as a board secretary of the parent company Haikou
Meilan International Airport Company Limited. He has also been
responsible for handling the results disclosure and daily operation
of the Board of the Company after its listing.
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The Board has approved to present their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Group is engaged in both aeronautical and non-aeronautical
businesses. Its aeronautical business consists of the provision
of terminal facilities, ground handling services and passenger
services. Its non-aeronautical businesses include commercial and
retail spaces leasing at the Haikou Meilan International Airport,
airport-related business franchising, advertising space leasing,
car parking business, cargo handling services and sales of
consumable goods.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company conducted
its business within one business segment, i.e. the operation
of an airport and provision of related services in the PRC. The
Company also operated within one geographical segment and its
revenues are primarily generated from its assets located in the
PRC. Accordingly, no geographical segment data is presented.

The Group’s operating results for the year ended 31 December
2013 was prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises, Company Ordinance of Hong Kong
and applicable disclosure requirements of the relevant stock
exchanges, and the financial positions of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2013 are set out in page 94 to
page 212 of this annual report.
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The Board has passed the resolution to recommend the payment
of a final dividend on or before Friday, 18 July 2014 of RMB0.084
per share (tax inclusive) to shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the Company’s Register of Members
on Sunday, 1 June 2014 (“20183 Final Dividend”). 2013 Final
Dividend shall be subject to the approval by shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held by the Company
on Tuesday, 20 May 2014.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China, which took effect on 1 January 2008, and
its implementation rules and the relevant interpretation by tax
authorities in the PRC, when a company makes distribution to
non-resident enterprise shareholders whose names appear on
the H-share register of the company, such company is required
to withhold and pay on behalf of such shareholders an enterprise
income tax at a rate of 10% in general (except as required
otherwise by the laws, regulations and tax treaties regarding tax
revenue). Any shares registered in the name of a non-individual
shareholder, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominee
or trustee, or other organisation and group, are deemed as
shares held by non-resident enterprise shareholders. As such, the
dividends that such shareholder is entitled to are subject to the
enterprise income tax.

The Company will strictly comply with the laws and/or
requirements of relevant government departments, and will
withhold and pay the enterprise income tax on behalf of its
non-resident enterprise shareholders whose names appear
on the H-share register of the Company on the record date.
The Company will take no responsibility and will not deal with
any requests in relation to any delay or error in ascertaining
the identities of shareholders, nor will the Company handle
any disputes arising from the arrangement of withholding tax.
However, the Company may provide assistance to the extent of
its ability.
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The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from
Thursday, 17 April 2014 to Tuesday, 20 May 2014, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the annual general
meeting of the Company, shareholders must deliver their transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
forms of transfer, to the Company’s Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
located at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 16 April 2014.

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday,
27 May 2014 to Sunday, 1 June 2014, both days inclusive, during
which time no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the entitlement of 2013 Final Dividend, shareholders
must deliver their instruments of transfer, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and forms of transfer, to the Company’s
Share Registrar and Transfer Office, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, located at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 26 May 2014. The
Company will pay the final dividend on or before 18 July 2014
upon the approval of the annual general meeting.

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
are set out in Note 5(19) to the financial statements.

Details of the property, plant and equipment as at 31 December
2013 and the change in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in Note 5(7) to the financial statements.

Details of taxation of the Group and the Company (including all
tax preferences) for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out in Note 5(14) and Note 5(34) to the financial statements.
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Change in reserves of the Group and the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is set out in Note 5(24-26) to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013, the balance of capital reserve and
statutory reserve of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB699,650,702 and approximately RMB246,394,231,
respectively, which were determined in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC and China’s accounting standards
and regulations. In addition, pursuant to the Articles of
Association, the Company’s retained profits of approximately
RMB1,232,114,917may be distributed as dividends.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013
are set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

The largest customer and the top five largest customers of the
Group represented 13.87% and 44.24% of the total sales of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013, respectively.

The largest supplier and the top five largest suppliers of the Group
represented 7.15% and 22.66% of the total operating costs of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013, respectively.

The Company entered into relevant transactions with the Parent
Company, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Connected Transaction” below.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2013, none of the Directors, their contact person or, to the
knowledge of the Directors, any shareholders holding more than 5%
of the share capital of the Company were interested in the top
five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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As at 31 December 2013, the total number of issued share capital
of the Company was 473,213,000 as follows:

R-FB—=F+-A=1+—H ARFACHTZR/EAL
#473,213,0008% + E -

Percentage of

Number of total issued

Shares shares

B 21T

IR & #ERZ 3 EE 451

Domestic shares NE R 246,300,000 52%
H shares HA% 226,913,000 48%
Total issued shares 1EE 473,213,000 100%

As at 31 December 2013, so far as known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, the following
persons (other than a director, supervisor or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or, who were,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group or had any option in respect of such capital, or would
be required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Report of the Directors

EFegws
LONG POSITION IN SHARES R IFE
DOMESTIC SHARES A B
Percentage of Percentage of
Number of domestic total issued
Name of Shareholders Identity Type of shares ordinary shares shares issued share capital
EERITRER EEBITRA
REER EL) R IR EBEREA B2 (%) BAL(%)
Haikou Meilan International Beneficial Owner Corporate 237,500,000 (L) 96.43% 50.19%
Airport Company Limited ERlEA =
BOXBEERKSEREELR
(BzE1)
H SHARE HAR
Percentage of
Number of Percentage of total issued
Name of Shareholders Type of interest ordinary shares  H shares issued share capital
RERTHR HEBT
kxR ERER EER#E Bak BREED
Zhang Gaobo (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Zhang Gaobo( fi2) S AR 32,788,500 (9) 14.45% 6.93%
Zhang Zhiping (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Zhang Zhiping (F{3£2) S ARRE 32,788,500 (S) 14.45% 6.93%
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited(fffz£2) REH A 32,788,500 (S) 14.45% 6.93%
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited(%:2) SHHARER 32,788,500 (9) 14.45% 6.93%
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited (Note 2) Beneficial interest 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited ([fi352) EaER 32,788,500 (9) 14.45% 6.93%
UBS AG (Note 3) Beneficial owner 30,359,400 (L) 13.38% 6.42%
UBS AG(ff3#3) Person having a security interest 112,000 (S) 0.05% 0.02%

in shares and
Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholder
ERERA
HRBFEEAERR
XEERELH GRS

SRAMBARRERHERAT 77
—E-=EEH



Percentage of

Number of Percentage of total issued
Name of Shareholders Type of interest ordinary shares  H shares issued share capital
HEBTHR HE#T
REREE BEER ERERHA Bt BREAESL
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited (Note 4) Investment manager 11,686,000 (L) 5.15% 2.47%
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited(i:t4) REEE
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Fizt5) SEHARER
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Note 5) Investment manager 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%
ARC Capital Partners Limited (ff{z£5) kEgE
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P (Pff3£5) SN 3
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited (Pif5E5) S AR
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited (Note 5)  Investment manager 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited (FiisE5)  RAKE
Pacific Alliance Group Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%
Pacific Alliance Group Holdings Limited (fffz5) RSN A
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Pizt5) REH R AR
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited (ff35) TGN AR
Walden Ventures Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner and person having a 98,365,500 (L) 43.35% 20.79%

Walden Ventures Limited (FE5)

security interest in shares

B A A\ RHBNHAREEDOA

Notes:

GEE

1. Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited is a company 1. EOEHBEBRESEREFTQREFBEIRAKT © AR

established in the PRC and is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

DA ZIERRARER -

2. Zhang Gaobo and Zhang Zhiping held 49% and 51% interest 2.  Zhang Gaobo&Zhang Zhiping® B 54 Oriental Patron

in Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited respectively. Oriental
Patron Financial Group Limited held 95% interest in Oriental Patron
Financial Services Group Limited. Oriental Patron Resources
Investment Limited was wholly-owned by Oriental Patron Financial

Services Group Limited.

Financial Group Limited 49% f51%##% © Oriental Patron
Financial Group Limited#s 7 Oriental Patron Financial Services
Group Limited 95%##z2% ° Oriental Patron Financial Services
Group Limited % & #E A Oriental Patron Resources Investrment
LimitedZ 100% )&z ©



Among the 30,359,400 shares in the Company, UBS AG was
deemed to hold 3,602,000 shares through its security interest
in those shares and held 225,000 shares as beneficial owner. In
addition, UBS AG was deed to hold 26,644,400 shares as interest
of corporation controlled by the substantial shareholder (UBS
Fund Services (Luxembourg) SA, UBS Global Asset Management
(Singapore) Ltd and UBS Global Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Ltd were all wholly-owned by UBS AG, and were beneficially holding
19,045,100 shares, 3,584,300 shares and 4,015,000 shares in the
Company, respectively).

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited holds such shares
in the capacity of an investment manager. Greenwoods Asset
Management Limited was 100% owned Greenwoods Asset
Management Holdings Limited, which was in turn held 76% by
Jiang Jinzhi.

Pacific Alliance Group Holdings Limited held 99.17% interests in
Pacific Alliance Group Limited, which in turn held 90% interests in
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited.

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited held 61.8%
interests in Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited. Pacific Alliance
Equity Partners Limited held 100% interests in ARC Capital Partners
Limited. ARC Capital Partners Limited was deemed to be interested
in 98,365,500 shares in its capacity as investment manager. ARC
Capital Holdings Limited is a corporation controlled by ARC Capital
Partners Limited for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. ARC Capital
Holdings Limited held 46.67% interests in Walden Ventures Limited,
which in turn held 43.35% interest in H shares of the Company. In
addition, Walden Ventures Limited held 32,788,500 H shares of the
Company by virtue of its security interests in those shares, and held
65,577,000 H shares of the Company as beneficial owner.

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited also held 100%
interests in Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited.
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited was deemed to
be interested in 98,365,500 shares in its capacity as investment
manager. Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. is a
corporation controlled by Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management
Limited for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Pacific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P. held 36.67% interests in Walden Ventures
Limited, which in turn held 43.35% interests in H shares of the

Company.

(L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively.

6.

NAR)30,359,400/% &+ UBS AGLAER#ZE KM
B R AR A5 63,602,000 880 - AR E &=
BF225,0008% /%17 © kA - UBS AGHERART EEZR
R 26,644,400 0% 15 5 (UBS AGER &M
BUBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) SA + UBS Global
Asset Management (Singapore) LtdA K UBS Global
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd » M & AR A
DRI EB A AR F)19,045,1008 8% 1% ~ 3,584,3000%
A% A K2 4,015,000 8% 1) »

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited bA B 4% & 4438
B A%ERD - Greenwoods Asset Management
Limitedfa Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings
Limited 100% A - MJiang Jinzhi¥s A Greenwoods
Asset Management Holdings Limited76%#z ©

Pacific Alliance Group Holdings Limited#§ % Pacific
Alliance Group LimitedZ99.17% % @ & &HF A
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited 90%
s o

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited#f5&
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited 61.8%1&%s °
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited3¥GARC Capital
Partners Limited 100%#£z © ARC Capital Partners
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100%#z ° Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management
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DR - BIRES LEEGAIEXVED - Pacific Alliance
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Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P.#%&Walden
Ventures Limited 36.67%## * MWalden Ventures
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Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2013, so far as is
known to the directors, supervisors and chief executive of the
Company, no other person (not being a director, supervisor or
chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to
have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group or had any option in
respect of such capital; or would be required to be recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

As at 31 December 2013, interest of the directors, supervisors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would be required to be recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or would be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (Model Code): no directors,
supervisors and chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would be required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or would be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

The Parent Company is the controlling shareholder of the
Company as it held 50.19% interest in the Company, and
accordingly is a related person of the Company. Details of
connected transactions between the Parent Company and the
Company are set below:

BEXHKBEEN BE-T—=F+_"_A=+—H1 "
MARRESE BEERTETHARMM  SEHEMBA
T(AFARAER EEREETHABR)RARFRK
10 SRR A AR B E (R IRE 5 LB (&)
FEXVER 2R HIRE D B R B R AR ) S B A% FR
WERSOAR - KEERKEEBENFENEMBBERLT
PR EAEEEAEMKE ARBRRAE LRENEE
10%RIA_E M ERHRRIBR A M - KA EREZER
REVET B - SRR 77 S BB 15 55 336 1R AL £%
RARBAFENELMA -

BIEEH M E KD FEI5216 B AE TFEHENELM
W ARE LR B ST FTE LT AR E S #EITES
R WELESFRI (RS R B S AR A R RE TR A
NAEE EEREBTHRABRAR RIS H (5
FEE(ERE R FESF LIS GHISEXVED) MR D R
RZE——ZF+ZA=+—H ARAEZ EER
FTETBRAEBMERARRIKEAMAREZE(EER
BEREIEGOEXVE)RARG - BERN I ES T
BIRE B A MBS IE0 E35216 58 A B F IR B &M
AN - RIRE LT ARIERETES X ZWNIEESFRIZA
GARNAI R R FTHERIORE °

B RAIFAARNRFS0.19%H BHE - AAA AR E R IR
R FARTARRBNEEATL - AARIEG QAR
BRZEFBIELT -



AIRPORT COMPOSITE SERVICES BY PARENT
COMPANY (THE "SERVICE AGREEMENT”)

Date of Service Agreement: 18 November 2010
Parties: The Company and Parent Company

Subject: Pursuant to the Service Agreement, Parent
Company has agreed to provide or procure any third party
if necessary with the Company’s consent to provide to the
Company the following services: (a) security guard service;
(b) cleaning and environment maintenance; (c) sewage
and refuse processing; (d) power and energy supply and
equipment maintenance; (e) passengers and luggage
security inspection; and (f) other services required by the
Company.

Price and payment: charges as to the service in items (a)
to (c) above will be determined in accordance with the cost
incurred by Parent Company in providing such services plus
a 5% management fee; charges as to the service in item
(d) above will be determined in accordance with the cost
incurred by Parent Company in providing such service plus
a 25% management fee; charges as to the service in item (e)
above shall be calculated in accordance with the standards
prescribed by CAAC and collected by the Company on
behalf of Parent Company from the relevant airlines; and
charges as to other services in item (f) above shall be
calculated by reference to the pricing standards prescribed
by the relevant PRC government authorities (if any), or, in
the absence of the same, the industry pricing standards or a
cost plus mark-up fee basis.

The service fee shall be paid either on a quarterly or an
annual basis and will be determined by the parties to the
Service Agreement depending on the type of services to be
provided by the Parent Company and in accordance with
normal business practices.

Term: A term of three years commencing from 1 January
2011 and ending on 31 December 2013.
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT
(THE "INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION
AGREEMENT”)

On 12 December 2012, the Company and Parent Company
entered into the Investment and Construction Agreement,
details of which are set out below.

Date: 12 December 2012
Parties: The Company and Parent Company

Subject Matter: Pursuant to the Investment and Construction
Agreement, Parent Company shall continue to complete the
construction of the terminal expansion project carried out
by Parent Company (the ““Project’’) according to the original
schedule previous agreed by the Company and Parent
Company, unless the schedule of the Project is adjusted
due to the reasons beyond the control of the Company and
Parent Company.

The funds provided by the Company to Parent Company
under the Investment and Construction Agreement could
be used to pay for the consideration for the transfer of the
Project as agreed between the parties in the future. Parent
Company and Company agree that the actual construction
cost of the Project as audited by a competent independent
auditor upon completion of the construction of the Project
shall not exceed 110% of the estimated construction cost of
RMB876,500,000.

Consideration: under the Investment and Construction
Agreement, the Company will provide funds to Parent
Company according to the progress of the construction of
the Project based on the estimated construction cost of
the Project in the amount of RMB876,500,000 and the land
use right in the amount of RMB150,180,000, which in total
is RMB1,026,680,000. The amount of RMB439,000,000
already paid by the Company to Parent Company according
to the Acquisition Agreement before the termination of such
agreement shall be used to offset the total investment under
the Investment and Construction Agreement.
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With respect to the continuing connected transaction, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, after having reviewed the
aforesaid transaction, are of the opinion that the transaction was:

(@) entered into in the ordinary course of business of the
Company;

(b)  conducted on normal commercial terms; and

(c) conducted in accordance with the terms of the relevant
transaction agreement and on terms which were fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 81 in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements also fall under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transactions within
the meaning of the Listing Rules, and the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the amendments to the rules relating to connected
transactions in the Listing Rules which came into effect on 3 June
2010, “promoter” of PRC issuers has been removed from the
definition of “connected persons”. The other transactions set in
Note 7 to the financial statements no longer constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules
since 3 June 2010.
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The Directors and Supervisors as at the date of this report are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liang Jun (re-appointed on 29 May 2012)
Mr.Wang Zhen (appointed on 27 May 2012)

Mr. Yang Xiaobin (duly appointed on 4 March 2013)
Mr. Yang Xugiang (duly appointed on 4 March 2013)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Wentai
Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph

(re-appointed on 29 May 2012)
(re-appointed on28 October 2013)

Mr. Yan Xiang (re-appointed on28 October 2013)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Bailing
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon

re-appointed on28 October 2013
re-appointed on28 October 2013
re-appointed on28 October 2013
re-appointed on28 October 2013

( )
( )
Mr. George F. Meng ( )
( )

Mr. Feng Da’an

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Dong Guiguo
Ms. Zhang Shusheng
Mr. Han Aimin

(re-appointed on 29 May 2012)
(re-appointed on28 October 2013)
(duly appointed on 23 August 2011)

The Directors and Supervisors who have resigned as at the date
of this report for 2013 are as follows:

Mr. Liu Lu
Ms. Xing Xi Hong

(duly resigned on 4 March 2013)
(duly resigned on 4 March 2013)
Mr.Zhang Hanan (duly resigned on 27 May 2013)
Brief biographical details of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company are set out on page 60 to page 67 of this annual report.
There is no relationship among the Directors that is discloseable
under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EEgWRE

Each of the Directors and Supervisors had entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. None of the
Directors or the Supervisors had entered into any service contract
with the Group which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO

None of the Directors, Supervisors or their respective associates
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) held any shares,
debentures or other interests in the Company, nor were they
granted, nor had they exercised any rights or options to subscribe
for shares in or debentures of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

During the reported period, none of the Directors or Supervisors
of the Company had any material interests (whether directly or
indirectly) in any contracts of significance entered into by the
Company or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or Supervisors holds any interests in any
competing businesses against the Company or any of its jointly-
controlled entities or subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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Pursuant to the service contracts entered into between the
Company, Directors and Supervisors and the resolution passed
at the general meeting, the allowance paid to the Executive
Directors, Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company in 2013 were RMB70,000, RMB50,000
and RMB100,000 per person respectively; and the allowance paid
to the Supervisors was RMB20,000 per person.

The Company held the Annual General Meeting on 27 May
2013, where the Resolution in Relation to the Remuneration
Packages for the Directors and Supervisors of the Company in
2013 was considered and approved. Directors and Supervisors
recommended by the parent company of the Company, proposed
that Directors and Supervisors nominated by connected parties
would not enjoy allowance for holding the position from the
year of 2013. But they were also entitled to receive respective
salaries according to their respective positions taken in the
Company. Details of Remuneration Packages for the Directors
and Supervisors of the Company were set out in Note 7(5)(e) to
the financial statements.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the reporting
period were either Directors or senior executives of the Company.
Details of their remuneration are set out in Note 7(5)(f) to the
financial statements.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company and there is no similar restriction
against such rights under the relevant PRC law that is applicable
to the Company as a joint stock limited company incorporated
in the PRC. Therefore, the Company is not required to offer new
shares, if any, to its existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.
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As of 31 December 2013, the Company did not issue or grant
any convertible securities, options, warrants or other similar rights.
The Company had no redeemable securities as at 31 December
2013.

The Group had no entrusted deposits and overdue time deposits
as at 31 December 2018.

The Group had no material litigation or arbitration as at 31
December 2013.

The financial statements of the Group have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and it has indicated its willingness
to be continuously in office. A resolution will be proposed by the
Board at the annual general meeting to reappoint the firm as the
auditor of the Company until the close of the next annual general
meeting.

The Company established an audit committee on 24 September
2002. The audit committee consists of three members, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Xu Bailing,
an Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman.

A table of the operating results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7.

BE=F F_At 0 ARBELETTR

FEMUBRES DR BRI R RS -
B9 BE-F SEI-A=t B  AEELET
BER S -

EIE-ZF+A=+—HB  rEEEZFERLE
HATE HATE AR

EoT-=FTA=T—A  AEEEEARDRA -

AEBEPBHRREEEXBPREAMEBASKRE

BAERIBR  ZEHESHBEEL EFEHN
BRBEFARSRIARR  EREBREEXBRRER
B =P (RS BAR) AR AIZEE EE TER
RBFARGHERBLE

ARRER-_TZ_FNA-_THARIEZEZES -
ERZBRRA=ZEKE  OREFNTES 7
R IFRTE SRR L

SE&OR 1IE7TEAZ¢VEﬁi<<<§£&% BEMBERBR

ZN
FNAFRE

=
4}



As at the date of publication, from the public information held by
the Company and to the knowledge of the directors, the public
float was 226,913,000 H shares, representing 47.95% of the total
share capital of the Company, which is in compliance with the
minimum public float requirement pursuant to Rules 8.08 of the
Listing Rules.

By the order of the Board
Liang Jun
Chairman

Hainan Province, the PRC
4 April 2014
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To: shareholders

During 2013,
People’s Republic of China, the Listing Rules and the Company’s

in accordance with the Company Law of the

articles of association, the Supervisory Committee of the
Company actively conducted supervision and inspection in the
best interests of the shareholders and the Company and pursuant
to regulatory laws and regulations as well as the requirements for
corporate governance. During the year, all supervisors performed
their supervisory duties conscientiously and effectively by
convening and attending meetings, listening to the management’s
reports, attending regulation conferences and training. Acting on
the principle of honesty and diligence, the Supervisory Committee
successfully executed its work plan for 2012 and continuously
improved the Company’s governance practices.

The major activities of the Supervisory Committee during 2013
were as follows:

1. Attending meetings of the Board of Directors, and
monitoring the decision making process of the Board of
Directors in terms of regulatory compliance, legal and

managerial system;

2.  Attending meetings at the office of the Chairman of the
Board, participating in important activities of the Company
in the ordinary course of business, and monitoring the daily
operation and management by the Chairman and other
senior officers and providing constructive suggestions
thereto; and

3. Reviewing the financial statements of the Company on
a regular basis and the vouchers and accounts of the
Company on an ad-hoc basis.
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In consideration of above works carried out, the Supervisory (F@ LT EEE@RARNAT T —=FFRERE
Committee believed that the shareholders’ equity continued to  ZFH4E(RIFIEE - AN AT BN EL s - R ERIEINE
grow in 2013, and the profitability of the Company was enhanced, &7 IR NAERIF - W BBESFHEERIN BT
dividend distribution policy was reasonable and the overall ZE§& :

financial position was sound. We expressed our independent
opinions as followings in relation to relevant matters:

The Company’s business operation is in compliance with the
Company Law and the Articles of Association. The decision
making procedure is lawful and valid. During the reporting
period, the members of the Board, the general manager and
other senior management observed the principle of diligence
and honesty, and performed their duties in good faith and
in the interests of the shareholders and the Company. The
Supervisory Committee was not aware of any breach of
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association or actions
to the detriment of the interests of the shareholders and the
Company on the part of directors, senior management in
carrying out their duties.

The financial report for the year gives a true, objective, fair
and accurate view of the Company’s financial position and
operating results.

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee was
not aware of any acquisition and disposal of assets to the
detriment of shareholders’ interests or leading to loss of the
Company’s assets or insider trading.
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During the reporting period, the Company entered into
connected transactions by following the legal decision
making procedure, in strict compliance with the principle
of fairness, in accordance with the Listing Rules, with open
and transparent information disclosure and without harming
the interests of the Company.

In 2013, Meilan Airport, as one of the world’s biggest
airports, saw its passenger throughput surpassing 10 million
in three consecutive years, with security, operation, services
and management continuously improving. It is expected
that the business of the Company in 2014 will keep steady
increase, and the Supervisory Committee is fully confident
in the prospects of the Company’s future development.
Meanwhile, we will continue to safeguard the interests of
all the shareholders and the Company, carry out our duties
diligently and focus on monitoring the Company’s actions
for fulfilling its commitments to shareholders.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Dong Guiguo
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Hainan Province, the PRC
4 April 2014
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Auditor’s Report
BHAT S

_
pwec

To the Shareholders of
Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited (hereinafter
the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
and company income statements, the consolidated and company
statements of changes in owners’ equity and the consolidated
and company cash flow statements for the year then ended, and
the notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

$ kil

PwC ZT Shen Zi (2014) No. 10052
(Page 1 of 2)
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, 11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center
2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai 200021, PRC

T: +86 (21) 2323 8888, F: +86 (21) 2323 8800, www.pwcen.com
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Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and company’s
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2013, and
their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
24 March 2014
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets
Bk RRIEERER

As at 31 December 2013 2013412 H31H
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 LEHS) - 2 3EE 7 AA RET)

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
2013%F 20124 2013 20124
12H31H 12H31H 12H31H 12H31H
ltem Note(s) Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
15H k23 i =i NS NS
ASSETS BE
Current assets REEE
Cash at bank and on hand BEES 5(1),12(1)
A1), +=(1) 2,998,410,937 1,207,561,423 2,994,134,037 1,199,935,519
Accounts receivable JEWLBR X 5(2),12(2)
A@),+=(2) 82,122,118 96,799,948 81,471,600 93,389,312
Advances to suppliers N 5(3) 71(3) 1,194,222 2,331,951 1,032,894 2,097,679
Interest receivable FE USRI B, 5,293,245 5,557,907 5,293,245 5,557,907
Other receivables H A FE IR 5(4),12(3)
A4),+=(3) 3,686,441 2,970,111 4,425,878 6,955,133
Inventories F7E 7,187 16,401 7,187 16,401
Other current assets HipmE&E 5(5) 71(5) 1,196,386 31,991 1,164,395 -
Tl G FEee FBEELL 3,091,910,536 1,315,269,732 3,087,529,236 1,307,951,951
Non-current assets FRBEE
Long-term equity investments RERERE 5(6),12(4)
A6),+=(4) 1,127,739,146 1,100,807,482 1,139,166,971 1,112,235,307
Fixed assets EE&E 5(7),12(5)
A(7),+=(5) 1,086,631,921 858,272,009 1,082,008,204 855,323,649
Construction in progress FETE 5(8),12(6)
A(8),+=(6) 6,772,310 1,400,000 6,772,310 1,400,000
Intangible assets BV EE 5(9),12(7)
A(9),+=(7) 185,653,430 144,075,524 185,653,430 144,075,524
Long-term prepaid expenses RBFEER - 4,186,725 - 4,186,725
Deferred tax assets ETFEBEE  5(10) 7(10) 9,066,924 3,872,680 9,066,924 3,872,680
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 5(3),7(7)
A(3),t(7) 159,454,570 439,361,200 159,454,570 439,361,200
Total non-current assets ERBEESE 2,575,318,301 2,551,975,620 2,582,122,409 2,560,455,085
Total assets EEA 5,667,228,837 3,867,245,352 5,669,651,645 3,868,407,036
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets (Continued)

afthArREEARBR (B)

As at 31 December 2013 2013412 831H
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB’) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (BRI EHS) - 2 BBE [ AN RET)

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20124 2013%F 20124
12A31H 128318 128318 12A31H
Item Note(s) Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
EH JioF2a &t GXii AL NS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY SERER
Current liabilities P =YE
Accounts payable FERTBR R 5(11),12(8)
A(11),+=@B 12,010,624 7,247,254 9,800,485 7,247,254
Advances from customers TR 5(12) A1(12) 9,435,102 15,086,286 9,373,202 15,024,385
Employee benefits payable JFE 1<F B 355 B 5(13) F(13) 20,779,889 50,912,367 17,144,424 48,014,815
Taxes payable EXHE 5(14) F(14) 16,739,167 19,987,066 15,943,794 18,198,034
Interest payable FERFIE 5(15) #(15) 51,746,763 52,695,667 51,746,763 52,695,667
Dividends payable ipll 5(16) 7i(16) 666,000 666,000 666,000 666,000
Other payables H o AR 5(17) &(17) 161,190,876 81,485,375 190,265,423 108,514,578
Current portion of —FREHm 5(18) #(18)
non-current liabilities ERBAR 138,326,172 115,139,000 138,326,172 115,139,000
Total current liabilities RBBEEE 410,894,593 343,219,015 433,266,263 365,499,733
Non-current liabilities FREERE
Long-term borrowings REAER 5(19) A(19) 1,688,801,518 282,806,487 1,688,801,518 282,806,487
Corporate bonds NAEES 5(20) &(20) 792,365,219 791,253,935 792,365,219 791,253,935
Long-term payables REIENT 5(21) F(21) 87,488,063 - 87,488,063 -
Other non-current liabilities HEIEREAaE 522 H(22) 18,336,331 10,770,000 18,336,331 10,770,000
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBA 2,586,991,131 1,084,830,422 2,586,991,131 1,084,830,422
Total liabilities aEA 2,997,885,724 1,428,049,437 3,020,257,394 1,450,330,155
EQUITY R
Shareholders’ equity PR R
Share capital A 5(23) A(23) 473,213,000 473,213,000 473,213,000 473,213,000
Capital surplus BARE 5(24) F(24) 699,650,702 699,650,702 699,650,702 699,650,702
Surplus reserve BHARE 5(25) Fi(25) 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231
Undistributed profits R EFHE 5(26) 7(26) 1,233,993,923 1,003,637,763 1,230,136,318 998,818,948
Total equity attributable to SEBRALE]
shareholders of the RERER S
Company 2,653,251,856 2,422,895,696 2,649,394,251 2,418,076,881
Minority interests DERR RS 5(27) 71(27) 16,091,257 16,300,219 - =
Total equity BERAE 2,669,343,113 2,439,195,915 2,649,394,251 2,418,076,881
Total liabilities and equity BERERE 5,667,228,837 3,867,245,352 5,669,651,645 3,868,407,036

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:
PEEEA

Liang Jun

RE

Person in charge of accounting function:
FEBFTILIEWEEA -
Zhang Peihua
EREES
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GAHAMATA -
Lin Xiaosai
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Person in charge of accounting department:
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Consolidated and Company Income Statements

& ot LR R A &R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2013412 H31H

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIEBH9) - B BARET)

2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 & 20125 20135 & 20126
Item Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
L it aff CXii AH AF]
Revenue EEL/ON 5(28),12(9)
728, +=(9) 760,276,774 684,069,464 678,598,374 608,969,001
Less: Operating costs B ERR 5(28) Z(28) (280,221,602)  (221,370,584)  (218,093,806)  (173,122,386)
Taxes and surcharges EERSRMM 529 #(29) (21,871,004) (24,405,747 (19,596,019) (21,299,381
General and administrative EEER
expenses 5(28) 7(28) (42,984,268) (78,053,227) (39,658,082) (69,393,623)
Financial expenses - net HEER—FE 5(30),12(10)
A(30),+=(10) (50,228,086) (50,166,226) (50,100,513) (50,183,124)
(Provision)/reversal of provision BERME
for asset impairment (%)/ 8 5(31) 7(31) (538,712) 1,146,194 182,294 1,146,194
Add: Investment income o RE 5(32),12(11)
A(32),+=(11) 26,931,664 33,143,811 32,433,392 36,669,681
Including: Share of profit of Hep: B2
associates GO}
e 26,931,664 32,476,692 26,931,664 32,476,692
Operating profit & A 391,364,676 344,363,685 383,765,640 332,786,362
Add: Non-operating income IRV N 5(33),12(12)
A(33),+=(12) 2,628,132 2,781,516 2,628,132 2,781,516
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINT (219,301) (387,577) (219,301) (164,963)
Including: Losses on disposal of ~ Ef : JEREHERE
non-current assets RERX (183,536) (139,282) (183,536) (139,282)
Total profit GilpeEE 393,773,507 346,757,624 386,174,471 335,402,915
Less: Income tax expenses o ERER 5(34),12(13)
A(34),+=(13) (46,662,142) (43,240,629) (43,178,907) (38,941,592)
Net profit FFE 347,111,365 303,517,001 342,995,564 296,461,323
Attributable to shareholders of )i NS
the Company PR R B A 342,034,354 297,963,109 342,995,564 296,461,323
Minority interest DY R B 5,077,011 5,553,892 - =
Earnings per share ki
Basic earnings per share EARGRYE 5(35) 7(35) 0.72 0.63 N/A TERA N/A TEA
Diluted earnings per share mEGRE 5(35) £1(35) 0.72 0.63 N/A RiE A N/A TN
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Consolidated and Company Income Statements (Continued)

AftRARNER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2013412 H31H
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB’) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (BRI EHS) - 2 BBE [ AN RET)

2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 & 20126 % 20135 20126
Item Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
HH fitet CXil =it AT NG
Other comprehensive income HibaRE W IBRAT
for the year, net of tax BHEEENEE
Share of other comprehensive RRERAZEN
income of investees ERRABA
accounted for using the Hipfrs s
equity method MEBMHE 5(6) 7(6) - 166,048 - 166,048
Total comprehensive income EWRERE 347,111,365 303,683,049 342,995,564 296,627,371
Attributable to shareholders BBRARARE
of the Company WiRa KE e 342,034,354 298,129,157 342,995,564 296,627,371
Minority interest BERDEREN
Falmes 5,077,011 5,553,892 - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

Person in charge of accounting function:

RIS TS IRK M E S T RAR AR AR D ©

Person in charge of accounting department:

PEEEA - FERTILIEWMERA - EiHEREEA -
Liang Jun Zhang Peihua Lin Xiaosai
RE ERES MR
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 & 20126 % 20135 & 20126
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
it At Gl AH] AR
Dividends B2 A 5(36) 71(36) 86,104,800 145,749,604 86,104,800 145,749,604
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Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements
Bk ARIBREERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 %

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzEBH9) - A& BARET)

2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20125 2013FE 20125
Item Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
| s aft aff AT NG
Cash flows from RETEBHEEN
operating activities BEeRE
Cash received from sales of HEMM  IREAK
goods or rendering of services W3R 4 797,576,922 739,741,831 718,694,614 661,090,398
Refund of taxes and surcharges RN BRE 547,000 568,000 547,000 568,000
Cash received relating to other W H AT
operating activities TEHEBENES 145,447,468 113,692,273 148,623,696 158,075,833
Sub-total of cash inflows LeEgRe
MA/NET 943,571,390 854,002,104 867,865,310 819,734,231
Cash paid for goods and BERm BXS%
services SRR E (123,831,671)  (118,422,636) (84,811,133) (64,566,670)
Cash paid to and on behalf of TREEBITIAR
employees RBIZNHERS (81,464,632) (69,310,965) (66,995,611) (51,243,301)
Payments of taxes and IRMEBERE
surcharges (85,996,236)  (64,990,804)  (80,029,561)  (60,446,179)
Cash paid relating to other T E M R EE)
operating activities BEMRS (147,312,294)  (153,540,129)  (140,725,813)  (151,772,165)
Sub-total of cash outflows geEgRe
TL/NET (438,604,833)  (406,264,534)  (372,562,118)  (328,028,309)
Net cash flows from MEEBELR)  5(37), 12(14)
operating activities BeneF8® A(87), +=(14) 504,966,557 447,737,570 495,303,192 491,705,922
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Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements (Continued)

afthrrReRER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 E 20126 % 20135 E 20126
Item Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
5H Chi A AF] AR
Cash flows from REZHELEN
investing activities ReRg
Cash received from investment BEREK:E
income ik E| IR e - - 5,501,728 4,080,000
Net cash received from disposal of ~EEETEE £
fixed assets, intangible assets and ~ BEMEMREAE
other long-term assets EWEHR S 53,251 267,305 53,251 275,468
Net cash received from disposal of 2 & F 2 =M I &)
a subsidiary HEER - 10,595,274 - 13,319,000
Cash received relating to other WeE| E o 45 & VR E)
investing activities E@ENES 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sub-total of cash inflows REEDHAD
TANEF 3,053,251 13,862,579 8,554,979 20,674,468
Cash paid to acquire fixed BRETEE -
assets, intangible assets and BEEMAMR
other long-term assets HEESNHRS (42,379,673)  (242,473,627) (40,161,715)  (251,157,888)
Net cash paid for acquisition of BEFREREM
subsidiaries and other EEEU T
business units REFE - = - (6,100,000)
Cash paid relating to other SANEE kb bt
investing activities EENES - (4,354,050) - (4,354,050)
Sub-total of cash outflows RETHHS
TRENEE (42,379,673) (246,827,677) (40,161,715) (260,611,938)
Net cash flows from REEBEER
investing activities REeTE R (39,326,422) (232,965,098) (31,606,736) (239,937,470)
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Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements (Continued)

BHEATRERER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 & 20125 20135 & 20126
Item Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
EH aff EXiii A AT
Cash flows from BETBHELN
financing activities HERg
Cash received from capital LU E W EIRR &
contributions - 4,900,000 - -
Including: Cash received from Heb: 7RRIRM
capital contributions by LERR
minority shareholders of REWER
subsidiaries Be - 4,900,000 - -
Cash received from borrowings BEERKINRE 1,524,225,000 - 1,524,225,000 -
Cash received from EAREES
issuing of corporate bonds WEIMRE - 790,400,000 - 790,400,000
Cash received from BB Hfh E R R
other financing activities E@NES 120,000,000 - 120,000,000 -
Sub-total of cash inflows BEREPRS
AN 1,644,225,000 795,300,000  1,644,225,000 790,400,000
Cash repayments of borrowings BEEBIANNES (113,159,150) (66,646,002) (113,159,150) (66,646,002)
Cash payments for distribution of S ECEF] « FHE s
dividends or profits and BRFEZAH
interest expenses e (192,798,798)  (102,601,407)  (187,512,825) (98,015,517
Including: Cash payments for He: FRAY A
dividends or profit to DEBRRE
minority shareholders of A I
subsidiaries (5,285,973) (3,920,000) - -
Cash payments relating to YHEMEEEEE
other financing activities EHNES (13,145,494) (197,641) (13,145,494) (197,641)
Sub-total of cash outflows EEEYHS
NG (319,108,442)  (169,445,050)  (313,817,469)  (164,859,160)
Net cash flows from EEFHELER
financing activities Benssa 1,325,121,558 625,854,950  1,330,407,531 625,540,840
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Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements (Continued)

aftkarReREx (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5z 855 + £ FBEM BARKET)

2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 E 201246 20135 E 20125
Item Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
BH it CXii At AT N
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEBHHRER
changes on cash and REZEINTE
cash equivalents 87,821 46,842 94,531 46,528
Net increase in cash and ReRBEZEY
cash equivalents B 1,790,849,514 840,674,264  1,794,198,518 877,355,820
Add: Cash and cash equivalents m: ERe R
at beginning of year ReEEMSE 1,207,561,423 366,887,159  1,199,935,519 322,579,699
Cash and cash equivalents at end FERBER
of year BeEBYHE 2,998,410,937  1,207,561,423  2,994,134,037  1,199,935,519

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:
PREEA

Liang Jun

RE

BB RR M T RI B RROERELD ©

Person in charge of accounting function:
FTEEIIIFMEERA -

Zhang Peihua
SRAmEE

Person in charge of accounting department:
BiHIERERA -
Lin Xiaosai

MR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity

N ILtLIL

o TR EmE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB’) Yuan unless otherwise stated) ([#4F5I:E55) » 2B E AN RKT)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

GEERRARNRRER
Total
share
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed Minority holders’
ltems Note(s) capital reserves reserves profits interests equity
1EH it A& PN BHAE  ROEAE  JERREE  RRERSH
5(23) f(28) 5(24) 11(24) 5(25) f1(25) 5(26) T1(26) 5(27) 727
Balances at 1 January 2012 201261 1B FI%E 473,213,000 699,484,654 216,748,099 815,766,996 10,432,215 2,215,644,964
Movements for the year ended ~ 2012EE & 8E
31 December 2012
Total comprehensive income RekaEs
Net profit il - - - 297,963,109 5,553,802 308,517,001
Other comprehensive income HEiira ks - 166,048 - - - 166,048
Total comprehensive income RARlGEEAH - 166,048 - 297,963,109 5,553,892 303,683,049
Capital injected by minority REZAER
shareholders - - - - 4,900,000 4,900,000
Profit distribution MEAE
Appropriation to REBHLE
surplus reserves - - 29,646,132 (29,646,132) - -
Profit distriouted to HRROAE 5(26)
shareholders 11(26) = - - (80,446,210) (3,920,0000  (84,366,210)
Disposal of a subsidiary HETFRAT - - - - (665,888) (665,888)
Balances at 31 December 2012 201241231
FRBE 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231  1,003,637,763 16,300,219 2,439,195,915
Balances at 1 January 2013 20131 1B EAIRE 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,003,637,763 16,300,219 2,439,195,915
Movements for the year ended ~ 2013EE R EHE
31 December 2013
Total comprehensive income RakaEs
Net profit FHE - - - 342,034,354 5,077,011 347,111,365
Other comprehensive income Atz d i - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income GRlEEEA - - - 342,034,354 5,077,011 347,111,365
Profit distribution MEAE
Profit distributed to shareholders R EEI A 5(26)
11(26) - - - (111,678,194) (5,285,973)  (116,964,167)
Balances at 31 December 2013 2013F12A31B%
473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,233,993,923 16,091,257  2,669,343,113
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial & MBI E5 R R TR 5 MK A AERCEE S ©
statements.
Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function: Person in charge of accounting department:
LEEEA - FEETLIEWEEA - EiHIERRA
Liang Jun Zhang Peihua Lin Xiaosai
R2E sRAmzE MERE
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Company Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity

NARRERE K

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5:E55) » 2B E M AARKT)

Total
share
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed holders’
Item Note(s) capital reserves reserves profits equity
&R i3 S BXDNE BROAR  ADERE RREZSH
5(26) L(25)  5(26) 1(26)
Balances at 1 January 2012 2012F1 BB EBRE 473,213,000 699,484,654 216,748,099 812,449,967 2,201,895,720
Movements for the year ended 2012F B HEER
31 December 2012
Total comprehensive income el ey k)
Net profit FHE = = - 296,461,323 296,461,323
Other comprehensive income =Y e - 166,048 - - 166,048
Total comprehensive income FENHREBE - 166,048 - 296,461,323 296,627,371
Profit distribution FEDE
Appropriation to surplus reserves b YN - - 29,646,132 (29,646,132 -
Profit distributed to shareholders HRRA D E - - - (80,446,210)  (80,446,210)
Balances at 31 December 2012 2012512 A31 BFEREHE 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 998,818,948 2,418,076,881
Balances at 1 January 2013 2013F1 A1BEMHE 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 998,818,948 2,418,076,881
Movements for the year ended 2013FERREHHE
31 December 2013
Total comprehensive income FeEmER
Net profit FHE - - - 342,995,564 342,995,564
Other comprehensive income HikralE - - - - -
Total comprehensive income GAEUREEAT - - - 342,995564 342,995,564
Profit distribution FEAE
Profit distriouted to shareholders HREHDE 5(26)
71(26) - - - (111,678,194) (111,678,194)
Balances at 31 December 2013 2013F12 A31 B ERBHE 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,230,136,318 2,649,394,251

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:
PEEEA -

Liang Jun

RE

Person in charge of accounting function:

FESITIENEEA -
Zhang Peihua

RimEE

RIS TS IRK M FE S T MR AR D o

Person in charge of accounting department:
BIHEEBEEA -

Lin Xiaosai

PREE R

PLES

8 B PR 35 PR 19 B PR A B) 1 03
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 2R R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5li#BAS) » 2 BEE I BA RS T)

1

10

General information

Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established as a joint stock company with
limited liability in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2000. The legal address and headquarters
of the Company is at Haikou City, Hainan Province, the
PRC. The Company’s H-shares have been listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 18 November
2002. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in the operation of the Meilan
Airport in Hainan Province, the PRC (the “Meilan Airport”)
and certain ancillary commercial businesses. The parent
company and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Haikou Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. (“Haikou Meilan”), a state-
owned enterprise established in the PRC with limited liability.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 March 2014.

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group are prepared
in accordance with the Basic Standard and specific
standards of the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, the Application Guidance of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, Interpretations
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
and other relevant regulations (hereafter collectively
referred to as “the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises” or “CAS”) issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on or after 15 February 2006.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B issmkMsE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Ministry of Finance of the PRC issued CAS 39 “Fair
Value Measurement”, CAS 40 “Joint Arrangement”,
CAS 9 “Employee Benefits” (revised), CAS 30
“Presentation of Financial Statements”(revised), and
CAS 33 “Consolidated Financial Statements” (revised).
These new or revised standards are effective on 1
July 2014 and the Ministry of Finance encourages
companies listed outside the Mainland China to
early adopt these new or revised standards. As the
Company’s H-shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group has early adopted
the above new and revised standards in preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013.

Statement of compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are in compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and
truly and completely present the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as of 31 December
2013 and of their financial performance, cash flows
and other information for the year then ended.

Accounting year

The Group’s accounting year starts on 1 January and
ends on 31 December.

Recording currency

The recording currency of the Group is Renminbi (RMB).

B

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

EeBRMEst it
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

WEmARMNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5li#BAS) » 23 E I BA RS T)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies — FE&TBRFAEH5TE)
and accounting estimates (Continued)
2.5 Business combinations 2.6 IPEAH
(a) Business combinations involving enterprises (a) [Al—#ZE# Tt EA

under common control

The consideration paid and net assets obtained

BHTXNOAHYERIRBHFE
ENREHREEE - 0 TEEH

in a business combination are measured at

the carrying amount. The difference between FEERTMEEESNNA FEBER
the carrying amount of the net assets obtained HEBNERE  ABREARLE(RARE
from the combination and the carrying amount B) s BARRNTE(BRARE) T B LA
of the consideration paid for the combination is B ABREFWZE - BEITLEAH
treated as an adjustment to capital surplus (share BENBEEREEEERREERTAR
premium). If the capital surplus (share premium) HRIE2S
is not sufficient to cover the difference, the
remaining balance is adjusted against retained
earnings. Costs directly attributable to the
combination are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

(b) Business combinations involving enterprises (b)  FEEI—#E#H TR FEE

not under common control

The cost of combination and identifiable net
assets obtained in a business combination are
measured at the fair value at the acquisition
date. Where the cost of the combination exceeds
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference
is recognised as goodwill; where the cost of
combination is lower than the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the difference is recognised in profit
or loss for the period when the combination
is incurred. Costs directly attributable to the
combination are recoguised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

g ERMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies — FE®:tHERMEEEETE)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.6 Preparation of consolidated financial 2.6 BRI IMEKEIHE 5 5%

statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control and are de-consolidated
from the date that such control ceases. For a
subsidiary that is acquired in a business combination
involving enterprises under common control, it is
included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date when it, together with the Company, comes
under common control of the ultimate controlling
party. The portion of the net profit realised before
the combination date is presented separately in the
consolidated income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
where the accounting policies and the accounting
periods of the Company and subsidiaries are
inconsistent, the financial statements of the subsidiaries
are adjusted in accordance with the accounting
policies and the accounting period of the Company.
For subsidiaries acquired from business combinations
involving enterprises not under common control, the
individual financial statements of the subsidiaries are
adjusted based on the fair value of the identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and
unrealised profits are eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. The portion of a subsidiary’s
equity net profit or loss and comprehensive income
for the period not contributable to the Company
are recognised as minority interest and total
comprehensive income attributable to minority
interest, and presented separately in the consolidated
financial statements within equity, net profit and total
comprehensive income, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
WEmARMNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5li#BAS) » 23 E I BA RS T)

10

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits
that can be readily drawn on demand, and short-term
and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.8 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into RMB using
the spot exchange rates on the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising from these translations
are recognised in profit or loss for the current period,
except for those attributable to foreign currency
borrowings that have been taken out specifically for the
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, which
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
that are measured at historical costs are translated at
the balance sheet date using the spot exchange rates
at the date of the transactions. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is presented separately in the
cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies — FE®:tHERMEEEETE)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.9 Financial instrument 29 THTA
(a)  Financial assets (8 ZEEE
()  Classification of financial assets ) =REESH

Financial assets are classified into the
following categories at initial recognition:
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and held-to-maturity
investments. The classification of financial
assets depends on the Group’s intention
and ability to hold the financial assets.

The financial assets of the Group as at
31 December 2013 and for the year then
ended are receivables. Receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market.

(i) Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at fair
value on the balance sheet when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument, and
transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets
are included in their initially recognised
amounts.

Receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5li#BAS) » 23 E I BA RS T)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESFBERIMEEE)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.9 Financial instrument (Continued) 29 T A%
(a)  Financial assets (Continued) (@ =Z=HEEE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) SEEERE

The Group assesses the carrying amounts
of financial assets at each balance sheet
date. If there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired, an impairment
loss is provided for.

When an impairment loss on a financial
asset carried at amortised cost has
occurred, the amount of loss is measured
at the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
its estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred). If there is objective evidence that
the value of the financial asset recovered
and the recovery is related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed and the amount
of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.9 Financial instrument (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when
any of the below criteria is met: (i) the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset expire; (ii) the
financial asset has been transferred and the
Group transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to the transferee; or (iii) the financial
asset has been transferred and the Group
has not retained control of the financial
asset, although the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received
and the cumulative changes in fair value
that had been recognised directly in equity,
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into the following
categories at initial recognition: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The financial liabilities in the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and for the
year then ended mainly comprise other financial
liabilities, including payables, borrowings and
debentures payable.

Payables, including accounts payable and other
payables, are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB ") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5!z#BE5)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.9 Financial instrument (Continued)

(b)  Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings and debentures payable are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Other financial liabilities with maturities no more
than one year are classified as current liabilities.
Other financial liabilities with maturities over one
year but are due within one year at the balance
sheet date are classified as the current portion
of non-current liabilities. Others are classified as
non-current liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognised or partly
derecognised when the current obligation is
discharged or partly discharged. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or the derecognised part of the financial
liability and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.

2.10 Receivables

11

Receivables comprise accounts receivable, other
receivables and interest receivable. Accounts
receivable arising from rendering of services or sales
of goods are initially recognised at fair value of the
contractual payments from the service recipients or
buyers.

Receivables with amounts that are individually
significant are subject to assessment for impairment on
the individual basis. If there exists objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect the amount
under the original terms, a provision for impairment of
that receivable is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
g ERMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies — FE®:tHERMEEEETE)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.10 Receivables (Continued) 2.10 FEW T ()

Receivables with amounts that are not individually
significant and those receivables that have been
individually assessed for impairment and have not been
found impaired are classified into certain groupings
based on their credit risk characteristics. The provision
for bad debts is determined based on the historical
loss experience for the groupings of receivables
with similar credit risk characteristics, taking into
consideration of the current circumstances. The Group
uses ageing analysis method to make provision for
impairment of receivables with amounts that are not
individually significant.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories include food and turnover materials, and
are presented at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first in first
out method. Provision for declines in the value of
inventories is determined at the excess amount of
the carrying amounts of the inventories over their net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale and related taxes.

2.12 Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the Company’s
long-term equity investments in its subsidiaries and the
Group’s long-term equity investments in its associates.

Subsidiaries are all investees over which the Company
is able to control. Associates are the investees that
the Company has significant influence on their financial
and operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the
Company’s financial statements using the cost
method, and are adjusted to the equity method when
preparing the consolidated financial statements;
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method.
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(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB ") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5!z#BE5)

2

11

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.12 Long-term equity investments

(@)

(b)

Determining initial investment cost

Long-term equity investments acquired by
payment in cash for the Group are measured at
the initial investment cost.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of
related profit or loss

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the cost method, investment income is
recognised in profit or loss for the cash dividends

or profit declared by the investee.

For long-term equity investments accounted
for using the equity method, where the initial
investment cost exceeds the Group’s share of
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the time of acquisition, the investment
is initially measured at cost. Where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group’s share
of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date, the difference is
included in profit or loss for the current period
and the cost of the long-term equity investment
is adjusted accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.12 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement and recognition of
related profit or loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the equity method, the Group recognises
the investment income according to its share
of net profit or loss of the investee. The Group
discontinues recognising its share of net losses
of an investee after the carrying amount of the
long-term equity investment together with any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the investor’s net investment in the investee
are reduced to zero. However, if the Group has
obligations for additional losses and the criteria
with respect to recognition of provisions under
the accounting standards on contingencies
are satisfied, the Group continues recognising
the investment losses and the provisions. For
changes in owners’ equity of the investee other
than those arising from its net profit or loss, the
Group records its proportionate share directly
into capital surplus, provided that the Group’s
proportion of shareholding in the investee
remains unchanged. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the Group’s share of
the profit distribution or cash dividends declared
by an investee. The unrealised profits or losses
arising from the intra-group transactions amongst
the Group and its investees are eliminated in
proportion to the Group’s equity interest in
the investees, and then based on which the
investment gains or losses are recognised. For
the loss on the intra-group transaction amongst
the Group and its investees attributable to asset
impairment, any unrealised loss is not eliminated.
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2

11

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.12 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

()

(d)

Basis for determining existence of control and
significant influence over investees

Control is the power over the investee to be
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from the Group’s involvement with the investee,
and the ability to use the power over the investee
to affect those returns.

Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

Impairment of long-term equity investments

The carrying amount of long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries and associates is
reduced to the recoverable amount when the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount (Note 2(6)).

2.13 Fixed assets

(@)

Recoginition and initial measurement of fixed
assets

Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery and
equipment, motor vehicles, office equipment and
others.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is probable
that the related economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the costs can be reliably measured.
Fixed assets purchased or constructed by
the Group are initially measured at cost at the
acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2. 13 Fixed assets (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Recoginition and initial measurement of fixed
assets (Continued)

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed
asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset
when it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the related
cost can be reliably measured. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All the other subsequent expenditures are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation method of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of the assets
to their estimated residual values over their
estimated useful lives. For the fixed assets
being provided for impairment loss, the related
depreciation charge is prospectively determined
based upon the adjusted carrying amounts over
their remaining useful lives.
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2

11

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.13Fixed assets (Continued)

(b)

()

(e

Depreciation method of fixed assets (Continued)
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The estimated useful lives, the estimated residual BEBENTEFERASM  BEER

values expressed as a percentage of cost and REFERSRAT -
the annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Estimated Estimated Annual

useful residual depreciation

lives value rate

EEEASS  FEFNFRER FIHER

Buildings B E R EEY) 15-40 years 4F 3% 6.5%-2.4%

Machinery and equipment HUIR SO 14 years F 3% 6.9%

Motor vehicles BB ITA 10 years F 3% 9.7%

Office equipment and others PSR H At 6-15 years 4 3% 16.2%-6.5%

The estimated useful life, the estimated
net residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied to the asset are
reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at least at

each year-end.

The carrying amount of fixed assets is reduced
to the recoverable amount when the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount (Note
2(18)).

Recoginition and measurement of fix assets
held under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset. Fixed assets held
under finance leases are recognised at the lower
of the fair value of the leased asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.
The difference between the recorded amount
of the leased asset and the minimum lease
payments is accounted for as unrecognised
finance charge (Note 2(24)(b)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2. 13 Fixed assets (Continued)

()

(e

Recoginition and measurement of fix assets
held under finance leases (Continued)

Fixed assets held under finance leases are
depreciated in accordance with the Group’s
policy on self-owned assets. If there is reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term, the leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Fixed assets disposal

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The amount of proceeds
on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of a fixed
asset net of its carrying amount and related taxes
and expenses is recognised in profit or loss for
the current period.

2.14 Construction in progress

Construction in progress (“CIP”) is measured at

actual cost. Actual cost comprises construction

costs, installation cost, borrowing costs that are

eligible for capitalization and other costs necessary

to bring the fixed assets ready for their intended use.

Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets

when the assets are ready for their intended use, and

depreciation begins from the following month. The

carrying amount of construction in progress is reduced

to the recoverable amount when the recoverable

amount is less than the carrying amount (Note 2(18)).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.15Borrowing costs

12

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a fixed asset that needs
a substantially long period of time for its intended use
commence to be capitalised and recorded as part of
the cost of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred, and the
activities relating to the acquisition and construction
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use have commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when the asset under acquisition or
construction becomes ready for its intended use and
the borrowing costs incurred thereafter are recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended during periods
in which the acquisition or construction of a fixed
asset is interrupted abnormally and the interruption
lasts for more than 3 months, until the acquisition or
construction is resumed.

For the specific borrowings obtained for the acquisition
or construction of a fixed asset qualifying for
capitalisation, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by deducting any
interest income earned from depositing the unused
specific borrowings in the banks or any investment
income arising on the temporary investment of those
borrowings during the capitalisation period.

For the general borrowings obtained for the acquisition
or construction of a fixed asset qualifying for
capitalisation, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying the
weighted average effective interest rate of general
borrowings, to the weighted average of the excess
amount of cumulative expenditures on the asset
over the amount of specific borrowings. The effective
interest rate is the rate at which the estimated future
cash flows during the period of expected duration
of the borrowings or applicable shorter period are
discounted to the initial amount of the borrowings.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FEE:BRFESHESTE)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.16 Intangible assets 216 L EE
Intangible assets are land use rights (‘LUR”) and are BEERLMERE  UKAE - £t
measured at cost. LUR acquired are amortised on the B REIRE A ENERER RN -

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review HERASEhEARNEFEENTEHERASS
and adjustment on useful life and amortisation method NEE T AN EEFER TETEZ I IER
is performed at each year-end with adjustment made B o

as appropriate.

The carrying amount of intangible assets is reduced to ERTFEEMNAWEBeEENEREEERE
the recoverable amount when the recoverable amount B BREEERMILETWE S E(HTE =
is less than the carrying amount (Note 2(18)). (18)) °
2.17 Long-term prepaid expenses 2.17 R E A

Long-term prepaid expenses include the expenditures ROEFEE A S LA B ERARNEA A
that have been incurred but should be recognised as BEHOERN DEHRE—FU LNSIE
expenses over more than one year in the current and B B X m RS B8 - WA
subsequent period. Long-term prepaid expenses are B Y HRE R B A FREY R o

amortised on the straight-line basis over the expected
beneficial periods and are presented at actual
expenditure net of accumulated amortisation.

BREEHEREEROERAR ~| 21
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.18Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible
assets with finite useful lives and long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries and associates are tested
for impairment if there is any indication that the assets
may be impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result
of the impairment test indicates that the recoverable
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount,
a provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. Provision for asset impairment is determined
and recognised on the individual asset basis. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group
of assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A
group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is
able to generate independent cash inflows.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognised,
it will not be reversed for the value recovered in the
subsequent periods.

2.19 Employee benefits

12

Employee benefits mainly include wages or salaries,
bonuses, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
social security contributions, housing funds, labour
union funds, employee education funds and other
expenditures incurred in exchange for service rendered
by employees.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Short-term employee benefits

The employee benefits are recognised in the
accounting period in which the service has been
rendered by the employees, and as costs of
assets or expenses to whichever the employee
service is attributable. Non-monetary benefits are
measured at their fair value.

Basic pension insurance

Employees of the Group participate in the
defined contribution pension plan set up and
administered by government authorities. Based
on salaries of the employees, basic pensions
are provided for monthly according to stipulated
proportions and not exceeding the stipulated
upper limit, which is paid to local labour and
social security institutions. When employees
retired, local labor and social security institutions
have a duty to pay the basic pension insurance
to them. The employee benefits obligation are
recognised in the accounting period in which the
service has been rendered by the employees,
and as costs of assets or expenses to whichever
the employee service is attributable.

Termination benefits

Where the Group terminates the employment
relationship with employees before the end of
the employment contract or offers compensation
for encouraging employees to accept voluntary
redundancy, a provision for termination benefits
for the compensation arising from termination
of the employment relationship with employees
is recognised, with a corresponding charge to
profit or loss, at the earlier of the following dates:
(1) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (2) when the Group
recognises costs for a restructuring and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

TEE
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)

Early retirement benefits

The Group is obligated to pay the early retirement
benefits for voluntary early retired employees.
Early retirement benefits are payable to the
employees not reaching mandatory retirement
age and voluntarily quit jobs as approved by
the management of the Group. The Group
pays for their salary and social insurance during
the period from early retirement date to the
mandatory retirement date. Similar to termination
benefits, a provision for early retirement benefits
is recognised when the above conditions are
satisfied, during the period from the early
retirement date to the mandatory retirement date.
Changes in actuarial assumptions and benefits
policies are charged to profit or loss of current
year.

2.20 Dividend distribution

Cash dividend is recognised as a liability for the period

in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders’

meeting.

2.21 Revenue recognition

The amount of revenue is determined in accordance

with the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable for the sale of goods and services in the

ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is

12

shown net of rebates and discounts.
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(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FE&:HERNEsHHste)
and accounting estimates (Continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued) 221 WA tER (&)
Revenue is recognised when the economic benefits B ZHEENSENZEARALRSE - 1H
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group, AR A SR SEET 2 BmE TS IRLE
the relevant revenue can be reliably measured and SEEIM TN ATERIE R - BRI
specific revenue recognition criteria have been met for A

each of the Group’s activities as described below:

(a) Rendering of services (a) ZHHFRA
- Services have been provided; —  BBELR#E
— It is probable that the economic benefits — R SHBEEMNLEN =R AR
associated with the transaction will flow to £

the Group; and

—  the relevant amount of revenue and costs — B A SIS AN BESA] SE st
can be measured reliably £
(b) Sales of goods (b) HEB KA
- The Company has transferred to the buyer = Pﬁuuﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁéxﬂ 2 N2 i B
the significant risks and rewards of ownership BERAE

of the goods;

- The Group retains neither continuing — AEETEHHZEREREERS
managerial involvement to the degree IBESI A BRI

usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

- It is probable that the economic benefits —  HEXZHEBMLSEBERZESRA
associated with the transaction will flow to REF ;

the Group; and

—  The relevant amount of revenue and costs — AR A IR AN E AT e At
can be measured reliably. 2o
(c) Transfer of asset use rights (c) EEEEREAEKRA
Interest income is recognised based on the time RMEWALRBREMAHFEFRAAEREEK
that other parties occupy cash of the Group BeHEE  ABERANXRGTERE -

using the effective interest method.

Revenue from operating lease is recognised on a KREHEWARBESEZEHIHNRN
straight-line basis over the lease term. TR o

BEEMEBREERAEMRA A
—E-—FFR 1 25
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Airport Fee

Airport fee represents Civil airport construction
fee and Civil Aviation Development Fund (the
“Airport Fee”) which are recognised when the
related services are rendered to the outbound
passengers departing from the airport. The
charge rates of the Airport Fee are regulated
by relevant authorities. Revenues is recognised
according to the authorised charge rates
attributable to the Company collected from
outbound passengers.

2.22 Government Grants

12

Government grants are transfers of monetary or non-
monetary assets from the government to the Group at
nil consideration, including fire alarm system subsidies.

A government grant is recognised when the conditions
attached to it can be complied with and the
government grant can be received. For a government
grant in the form of transfer of non-monetary assets,
it is measured at fair value; if the fair value is not
reliably determinable, the grant is measured at nominal
amount.

A government grant related to an asset is recognised
as deferred income, and evenly amortised to profit
or loss over the useful life of the related asset.
Government grants measured at nominal amounts are
recognised immediately in profit or loss for the current
period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies — FE®:tHERMEEEETE)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.22 Government Grants (Continued) 222 fT##EE) (%)

For government grants related to income, where
the grant is a compensation for related expenses or
losses to be incurred by the Group in the subsequent
periods, the grant is recognised as deferred income,
and included in profit or loss over the periods in which
the related costs are recognised; where the grant
is a compensation for related expenses or losses
already incurred by the Group, the grant is recognised
immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

2.23 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
calculated and recognised based on the differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount (temporary differences).
Deferred tax asset is recognised for the deductible
losses that can be carried forward to subsequent
years for deduction of the taxable profit in accordance
with the tax law. No deferred tax asset or deferred
tax liability is recognised for the temporary differences
resulting from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities due to a transaction other than a business
combination, which affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (or deductible loss). At the balance sheet
date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences, deductible losses
and tax credits can be utilised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.23Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference,
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. When it is probable
that the temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries and associates will be reversed in the
foreseeable future and that the taxable profit will be
available in the future against which the temporary
differences can be utilised, the corresponding deferred
tax assets are recognized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when:

o The deferred taxes are related to the same tax
payer within the group and same fiscal authority,
and;

o That tax payer has a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities.

2.24 [ ease

12

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset. An operating lease is a lease other than a
finance lease.

(@) Operating leases

2l ease payments under an operating lease are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease, and are either capitalised as
part of the cost of related assets, or charged as
an expense for the current period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies — FE®:tHERMEEEETE)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.24 [ ease (Continued) 224THE (&)

(b)  Finance leases (b) BEHE

DHEEENAABEAKEREN
RENREMEFREEFELSAAER
ENAREE BEABENAKREE
HEREHENRBEZEHNERERKR
BRAREER EHEHAKRERRT
ORI - RIEAEN REMER R FE
RBREERRNBREESRYEMNR

method over the period of the lease. A long-term Bl 7R o

The leased asset is recognised at the lower of
the fair value of the leased asset and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
difference between the recorded amount of the
leased asset and the minimum lease payments
is accounted for as unrecognised finance charge
and is amortised using the effective interest

payable is recorded at the amount equal to the
minimum lease payments less the unrecognised
finance charge.

2.25 Segment information 2.25 755158

The Group identify operating segments based on REBE AN - BEER - NEbHR
the internal organisation structure, management EHIEAKRIBEEELEDE  UEEDE A

requirement and internal reporting, then disclose EREERE D BLEESBEL °
segment information of reportable segment which is
based on operating segment.

An operating segment is the component of the Group R AR AN E BN E R W E NSRS
that all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) that ERER D - (12BN ER D RESE H B IR B

component can earn revenues and incur expenses EEWRA - BAER  QASEEEREES

from ordinary activities; (2) whose operating results
are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and assess its performance, and (3) for
which the information of financial position, operating
results and cash flows is available to the Group. If two
or more operating segments have similar economic
characteristics, and certain conditions are satisfied,
they may be aggregated into a single operating
segment.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.26 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

13

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting
estimates and key judgments applied based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable.

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and key assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period are outlined
below:

(@) Fixed assets

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its fixed assets. This estimate is
made based on management’s experience in
operating airport and the conditions of the fixed
assets. It could change significantly as a result of
actual use and improvements. Management will
increase the depreciation charges where useful
lives are shorter than previously estimated lives.

Management determines the residual values of its
fixed assets based on all relevant factors (including
the use of the current scrap value in current
market as a reference value) at the end of each
financial period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.26 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions
(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of financial assets

Whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of financial
assets may not be recoverable, the Group will
test whether financial assets have suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting

policies stated in Note 2.9. In making its

judgment, the Group considers information from

a variety of sources including discounted cash
flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash
flows.

Airport fee refund rates

According to the Interim Measures for the
Collection, Use and Management of the Civil
Aviation Development Fund ({RfZEEEL K
FAEEETPUE)) promulgated by the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC effective from 1 April
2012 and till 31 December 2015, the former Civil
Airport Construction Fee was superseded by the
Civil Aviation Development Fund which is charged
to passengers at the same rate as the former
Civil Airport Construction Fee.
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2

13

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.26 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

Airport fee return rates (Continued)

According to the Notice Regarding the Grant of
Subsidy of Civil Aviation Development Fund to
Haikou Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. issued by Civil
Aviation Administration of China (“CAAC”) on 11
April 2012, the previous Civil Airport Construction
Fee refund granted to the Group was
superseded by the Civil Aviation Development
Fund correspondingly, the refund rate should be
determined by CAAC. Given the same refund
method and nature of Civil Aviation Development
Fund and former Civil Airport Construction Fee,
and as the Group did not receive any notice from
relevant authorities regarding any change of the
refund rate of the airport fee attributable to the
Group during the year and the actual refund rate
of the airport construction fee is 48% since 2008.
The Group recognised the refund of Civil Aviation
Development Fund at a rate of 48% according to
the best estimates made by the management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B issmkMsE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB’) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5lzE855) » £ EEE A RS T)

3 Taxation = ®IHE
(1) The main categories and rates of taxes (1) AEEEHFLFEHEREFESR

applicable to the Group are set out below: 2T -

Category Tax base Tax rate
HE B R
Enterprise income tax Taxable income 25%
PSR &M PTG 5E

Value Added Tax (a) Taxable value added amount (Tax payable is calculated using the 6% or 17%

taxable sales amount multiplied by the applicable tax rate less
deductible input VAT of current period)

#{E (@) FEMBIEERE(EATBRIREATHERREAREHREMATEN 6%%X17%
BEIRN R B ERFRAT

Business tax (a) Taxable turnover amount 3% or 5%
EENi(a) JE AT & 3 HE 3%5%5%
City maintenance and Value added tax and business tax paid/payable 5% or 7%
construction fee
YR T AR RR A AN IS BT AN & ST TR 5%347%
Education Surcharge Value added tax and business tax paid/payable 3%
A BN BANE IR EM AN E E R
Local education surcharge Value added tax and business tax paid/payable 2%
752 E BN BANE B ER NS E R

BEEMERESRAERAR
—2 Zzag 100



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MigmsMaE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5li#BAS) » 23 E I BA RS T)
3 Taxation (Continued) = BE@#E)
(1) (Continued) (1) (&

(a)  Pursuant to the “Circular on the Pilot Plan for Levying @@ BEMEE - ERFEE BRI
Value Added Tax (“VAT”) in Place of Business Tax” RN ER A A RSB (B 5
(Cai Shui No.110, [2011]) and “Circular on the Pilot [2011] 1105%) - BABRER - BIR B %548 (A
Practice of Levying VAT in Place of Business Tax for E & B 5 & 3238 1 5 M0 9 B RS
the Transportation Industry and Some Modern Service LT N E R 5 BB B SR 0@ D)
Industries in the country” (Cai Shui No.37, [2013]) (BA%i[2013] 375%) A g m A A RET
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State NECBANENE B R B & B IR ER
Administration of Taxation, and “Circular on issuing PN E TEE 5 A B A BT ##[2013]
the Pilot Practice of Levying VAT in Place of Business 865% ) * H2013F8A1H & - ANEE IR
Tax in Hainan Province” (Qiong Fu Ban No0.86, B 7 22 $b T AR 7S A0 & A IR A W A i PR I (B
[2013]) issued by the General Office of the People’s o R B6%H17% ° 2013FE8 1 H A%
Government of Hainan Province, revenue from the SEBKBRHEER  EREREEHRE
aeronautical and freight related service of the Group are 5% » H M ZETETHE[3% e
subject to VAT since 1 August 2013 and the applicable
tax rate is 6% or 17%. Revenue from these services
was subject to Business Tax before 1 August 2013, of
which the applicable tax rate for storage service and
other services was 5% and 3%, respectively.
Except for aforementioned, revenue from other AR E BB E ol 555 e H Ath & 3 W A E
businesses of the Group is subject to Business Tax, AR FHEA5% o
and the applicable tax rate is 5%.

(2) Preferential tax treatments and approval Q) HBKEBRLRHX

13

document

Pursuant to the approval document in respect of

CIT treatment of Hainan Meilan International Airport
Company Limited (Hai Guo Shui Han No.13, [2008])
issued by Haikou State Tax Bureau on 2 February

2008, the Company was entitled to the exemption of
CIT from 2004 to 2008, and 50% deduction of CIT
from 2009 to 2013. Therefore, the effective tax rate of
the Company for the year is 12.5% (2012: 12.5%). The
applicable tax rate of the other group companies for
the year is 25% (2012: 25%).

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B issmkMsE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

BREEAR(XHEE])

4 Business combination and consolidation M GtEXEHEEHBFHRRE
(1) Subsidiaries (1) Frallgk
Subsidiaries set up by the Company BRI ILE T RGBT 2 7]
Whether
consolidate
the financial
Type of Place of Place of Principal Registered Interest Voting  statements
subsidiaries  registration  operation activities Capital held rights  or not
FARER It TELE  EHUE HMER  BREA  RRELA  RASLHR
RMB'000 (%) (%)
ARBTT
Haikou Meilan International subsidiary Haikou Haikou Provision of 1,000  Directly 95 100 Yes
Airport Advertising Co., Ltd. advertising Indirectly
(“Meilan Advertising”) services 4.75
BOXRERKZREARAR #RTAR  BOW &AW R ERS 1,000 %% =
(XHESE]) Ri#4.75
Haikou Meilan International subsidiary Haikou Haikou Retall sales 1,000 9% 100 Yes
Airport Duty Free Shop Ltd.
(“Meilan Duty free shop”)
BEEIXRERKSRNE SRTAR  BOW BAm HERHEM s
ARAR(EREH])
Hainan Meilan International subsidiary Haikou Haikou Provision 20,000 51 60  Yes
Airport Cargo Transportation of cargo
Co., Ltd. (‘Meilan Cargo”)(i) transportation
service
BEEHERKRLSE BRFAR AW BOm RIUSERT =

The Company holds 51% of equity interest in Meilan
Cargo, and 60% of the voting rights. The key operating
and financial decisions of Meilan Cargo should be
made by its board of directors with the approval of at
least half of the directors attend the board meeting.
Three out of five directors of Meilan Cargo are
nominated by the Company. Therefore, the Company
holds 60% of the voting rights of the subsidiary.

There is no restriction of the use of the Group’s assets
nor the settlement of the liability of the Group.

ARBHEBEENTILPIR51% » TR
R PIR60% > ERREMEETREER
MBRRRAETEFEL EFIREED
BEALFEEEERN_ D2 HNEZER
ETREBE XWEEEFSEREHSE
RRABEEKEIRES  MARFHAH
FORFELL B 360% °

AEBETFERRSBEEESSERBERE
T ERIRR Y

BREEHEREEROERAR
TE-ZFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MBHmEMETE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5li#BAS) » 23 E I BA RS T)

7 aHMBHRREBEWE

EXED

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(1) Cash at bank and on hand (1)

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

Cash on hand
Cash at bank

EERE
RITIFR

314,078
2,998,096,859

106,603
1,207,454,820

2,998,410,937

1,207,561,423

(2) Accounts receivable

2) YR

31 December
2013
2013F12H31H

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

Accounts receivable by nature

FEWBRFIZ I E 8D

— from aeronautical services =N PN 72,052,916 76,642,082
— from non-aeronautical services — R ERIEM U A 14,185,351 23,735,303
86,238,267 100,377,385
Less: provision for bad debts B R (4,116,149) (3,677,437)
82,122,118 96,799,948

Accounts receivable by customers FEWRRFIRE P2l
— from third parties — R E=FIR 63,342,012 74,018,098
Less: provision for bad debts R EEREE (3,645,143) (3,577,437)
59,696,869 70,440,661
— from related parties — JE U BE RS 5 BR AR 22,896,255 26,359,287
Less: provision for bad debts A EEREE (471,006) -
22,425,249 26,359,287
82,122,118 96,799,948

-I 8 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Mgk mE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5B} - £ EHE T BARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

Credit terms granted to customers are determined on

an individual basis by the management with a general

range from 1 to 3 months.

(@)

As at 31 December 2013, the ageing of accounts

receivable is analysed as follows:

7 EHEMBHRREBMEE®)

2) FEWER (&)

AEBGRTRERPNERPHAKEERE
ERIEZE T - —RA1E3MEA -

(@)

JE U AR SRR B A BR B BR BV BR % 9 AT 40
T

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013F12H31H  2012412A31H

Within 90 days 9OKRIAA 69,513,807 66,058,342
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 3,432,256 6,812,630
181 to 365 days 181 KRE365K 1,898,418 15,255,325
Over 365 days 365K £ 11,393,786 12,251,088

86,238,267 100,377,385

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has
performed an impairment assessment on

accounts receivable from third parties on an

individual basis based on which accounts
receivable of RMB8,174,412 (31 December 2012:
RMB21,801,229) are past due but not impaired.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is

as follows:

20135128310 » AEBEEER
BERIRE RS E =7 R KR
MITRER S HPEBERZBEA
K %8,174,4127(2012412 A31H :
ARM21,801,2297T ) B @ BAE R ET1R
WA - REARABNERERS T
Ul

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013F12H31H  2012412A31H

91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 1,680,000 3,016,040
181 to 365 days 181 KXE365K - 13,317,158
Over 365 days 365K A E 6,494,412 5,468,031

8,174,412 21,801,229

BREEWEREESROERAE
TE-ZFER 1 37



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MigmsMaE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

The balances aged within 365 days are related to a
number of customers for whom there is no recent

history of default, which are expected to be recovered

within one year. Those aged over 365 days are to
be settled through CAAC Settlement Center, the
management is discussing the payment schedule with

the counter parties.

(©)

As at 31 December 2013, accounts receivable
from related parties of RMB4,186,732 (31
December 2012: RMB7,901,089) are past due
but not impaired. The aging analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

)

FEW IR (#4)

365K A P B ik O SR IR A% M U 3R Ll 38 1 3 4
BRI FE =) - R E—FAKE -
365K A ERRECHI AT ZRERERMB
BRORAMEE - ARIEEBEHNE=TTE
AT ARSI R EIR ©

(c) M2013%F12A31H - UK R
A R #4,186,732 (2012412 A 31
B : AR#7,901,0897T)F # B R
BRMIRRELERE - ZEEWRRER
UM

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012
201212 A31H

13

91 to 180 days 91 RKE180K 1,515,571 2,833,814
181 to 365 days 181K E365K 1,815,818 1,553,786
Over 365 days 365K £ 855,343 3,513,489

4,186,732 7,901,089

The balances aged within 365 days are related
to a number of related parties for whom there is
no recent history of default, which are expected
to be recovered within one year. For those aged
over 365 days, the Company is discussing the
payment schedules with the related parties.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements # &#HMEHERIEEHMEE &)

(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

2) FEWER (&)

(d) The movement of provision for bad debts is as d) EURERFEREGENAEEZEHEN
follows: R
Reductions
31 December 31 December
2012 Additions Reversals Written off 2013
20124 2013F
12A318 Ll [ 234 12A31H

Provision for
bad debts BRER

3,577,437 538,712 = - 4,116,149

(3) Advances to suppliers

(3) FENHE

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013F12H31H  2012412H31H

Advances to suppliers B FOE 160,648,792 441,693,151

Less: Advances disclosed in W PR EMIE BN EER
other non-current assets I8 (159,454,570) (439,361,200)
1,194,222 2,331,951

BEEWEREEROERATF
TE-ZFER 1 39



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MigmsMaE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

(Continued)
(3) Advances to suppliers (Continued) (3) FEI1IE (&)
The ageing of advances to suppliers is analysed as FENRIERERSTWOT -
follows:
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
2013%12A31H 20126128318
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
B (REEBELBI(%) S8 GEELDI%)
Within 1 year —E R 1,166,867 0.73 222,331,951 50.34
1 to 2 years —3=F 159,481,925 99.27 219,361,200 49.66
160,648,792 100.00 441,693,151 100.00

Pursuant to the investment agreement entered
into between the Group and Haikou Meilan, the
international terminal building and its ancillary projects,
which were completed and ready for intended use
with a total cost of RMB281,826,630 were transferred
to the Group, which were recognised as fix assets
of RMB236,748,630 and LUR of RMB45,078,000,
respectively (Note 5(7) and 5(9)).

Up to 31 December 2013, the Group has paid
RMB439,361,200 to Haikou Meilan in connection
with the investment agreement (31 December 2012:
RMB439,361,200) (Note7(7)).

4| 4 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
IR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5

(Continued)

(%)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements # &#HEIFEHREEEME &)
(4) Other receivables 4) EfbmgEsss
The ageing of other receivables is analysed below: HibpE BRI -
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013128318  2012412A31H
Within 90 days QOKIAR 342,036 300,266
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 813,328 1,074,491
181 to 365 days 181K E365K 1,087,018 205,372
Over 365 days 365K A 1,444,059 1,389,982
3,686,441 2,970,111
The balances aged over 365 days are related to MH2013F 12 A31H K2012F12 8318 » &~
a number of related parties for whom there is no EEH A EW AR TR B35 AN HNIET E
recent history of default, which are considered to be BEBFERT  BEEBRATZELKRME
recoverable. No provision was made against these MIRE o Hih TR B IRIZRYEMR -
receivables as at 31 December 2013 (31 December
2012: nil).
Other current assets (5) Bt nEEE
31 December 31 December
2013 2012

2013F12H31H  2012%12H31H

Recoverable value added tax RIS ERN
Prepayment of enterprise income tax JE&I™ ¥ P55
Prepayment of other taxes and levies TE#IE {51 &

1,164,395 =
30,196 30,196
1,795 1,795
1,196,386 31,991

S EMER SR MO AERD T 1 41
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

MigmsMaE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB’) Yuan unless otherwise stated) ([ 555} + & 887 BARET)

aHMBFREREHME 2

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements F
(Continued)

(6) Long-term equity investments 6) EHRERKE

Associates — Unlisted companies BMEPE—JF Fhaal

Share
of profit
of investees
Measurement Investment 31 December under equity 31 December Interest Voting
Method Cost 2012 method 2013 Held (%) Rights
2012% 2013%
BEN% REKA 12318 ZAMFNE 12A31H FIRELDI(%) FREL DI
Haikou Decheng Industrial and  Equity Method 30,504,300 30,874,651 - 30,874,651 30 1/3
Development Co., Ltd.
(‘Haikou Decheng’)
BOEHERERARAA ik
(goeEs))
Hainan Airlines Airport Equity Method ~ 1,011,715,103  1,069,932,831 26,931,664  1,096,864,495 24.5 17
Holding Group Company
Limited (‘HNA Airport’) (a)
BRESER(EB)ERAA BH%
(MEmMHER]) ()
1,100,807,482 26,931,664  1,127,739,146

AEBEBECR BTN FHEEBESTE
HE AR -

There is no significant restriction on the long term
equity investments.

(@) The place of incorporation and business of HNA (a) MBS IEREETFRR(EMES

14

Airport and its subsidiaries (the “HNA Airport
Group”) are in PRC, and there is no business
relationship between the Group and HNA Airport
Group. The equity interest held by the Group is
24.5% and the voting rights are 1/7. Although
the percentage of the voting rights held by
the Group is less than 20%, one out of seven
directors of HNA Airport of the board of directors
is nominated by the Group. Therefore the Group
is able to exercise significant influence over HNA
Airport, and regarded it as an associate of the
Group.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

s mERMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

EHMBRREEME 2

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements F
(Continued)

RERIERE (#)
BE R —IF LB AR (E)

(6) Long-term equity investments (Continued) (6)

Associates — Unlisted companies (Continued)

(b) Summarised financial information for the
Group’s significant associates is set out

below:

AEEERMECENTETHER
SIREAT

HNA Airport Group
BESERER

31 December
2013

2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012

2012412 H31H

Cash and cash equivalents EE s 1,227,331,129 1,323,646,075
Other current assets HimehEE 7,560,253,991 5,165,980,677
Total current assets TMENEEASE 8,787,585,120 6,489,626,752
Total non-current assets ERBEES 6,988,847,769 6,889,029,489
Trade payables FERTER X 60,227,782 5,928,508
Other financial liabilities HEthEpgaE 4,054,726,257 4,428,457,893
Other current liabilities HthadE 131,659,022 96,326,232
Total current liabilities mEAREEE 4,246,613,061 4,530,712,633
Financial liabilities =L 5,063,420,382 2,774,515,215
Other non-current liabilities HEHmadE 177,062,259 174,661,055
Total non-current liabilities ERBEESET 5,240,482,641 2,949,176,270
Net assets FEE 6,289,337,187 5,898,767,338

Equity attributable to equity holders
of HNA Airport

Adjusted to the fair value of
identifiable net assets obtained
by the Group

NI 2R Rl G
PEL: 2o

RRRGRERBESDE
ARRFEEAAEER
EITHE

4,073,344,850

403,653,090

3,954,997,652

412,075,128

Equity attributable to equity holders

HBEEBNEHNKS

of HNA Airport after adjustment AR AR R R 2 4,476,997,940 4,367,072,780
Percentage of ownership N £ B35 A% 11 24.50% 24.50%
Percentage of interest REBFEZE AN 24.50% 24.50%

Long-term equity investments

REBERE

1,096,864,495

1,069,932,831

BREEWEREESROERAE ~| 43
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IsEAMTE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(6) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Associates — Unlisted companies (Continued)

(b)  Summarised financial information for the
Group’s significant associates is set out

below: (Continued)

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

6) RIERE (&)
K- LHAA(E)

AEEEERLELENEIBZMHES
BRI -

HNA Airport Group

BRI IR
2013 2012
20134 20124
Revenue WA 1,252,243,485 995,296,419
Depreciation and amortisation TEeBREBEER (188,269,944) (161,148,115)
Interest income FLEM A 345,945,316 190,502,845
Interest expenses FMEEA (575,930,226) (861,899,446)
Total profit INEF L] 271,062,873 210,992,301
Income tax expenses FriSai (41,043,125) (35,585,235)
Net profit e wIpE 230,019,748 175,407,066
Attributable to share holders of SRS MRS IR
HNA Airport R B 895 F 1 109,925,160 132,557,927
Minority interests DR EREE 120,094,588 42,849,139
Other comprehensive income Hihizalkzs 153,020,000 247,044,746
Total comprehensive income e BEa 383,039,748 422 451,812
Attributable to share holders of B SIS IR
HNA Airport IR BER G WS 4258 109,925,160 133,235,673
Minority interests BN DI
RA W B 273,114,588 289,216,139

~| 4 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Mgk mE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB’) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5lzE855) » £ EEE A RS T)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

7 EHEMBHRREBMEE®)

(7) Fixed assets (7) BlEEE
Machinery Office
and Motor equipment
Buildings equipment vehicles and others Total
EEREEY BERE BHIA POREREM &%
Cost [R{E
31 December 2012 201212 831H 968,601,187 218,260,254 100,256,409 64,771,367 1,351,889,217
Transfers from CIP EEIREA 698,750 1,260,900 - 1,400,000 3,359,650
Other increase in current year ARG E 1N 239,938,976 83,065,386 54,311,681 13,847,305 391,163,348
Decrease in current year RERD - (212,803,262) (76,599,818) (11,081,732)  (300,484,812)
31 December 2013 2013F12A31H 1,209,238,913 89,783,278 77,968,272 68,936,940 1,445,927,403
Accumulated Depreciation e
31 December 2012 201212 A31H (259,397,482) (131,483,732 (67,526,724) (45,209,270)  (493,617,208)
Depreciation charged in AEHIR
current year (27,543,183)  (12,007,841)  (7,200,013)  (4,943918)  (51,694,955)
Decrease in current year RERD - 135325012 41,312,939 9,378,730 186,016,681
31 December 2013 2013F12H31H  (286,940,665)  (8,166,561)  (23,413,798)  (40,774,458)  (359,295,482)
Carrying amount FE
31 December 2013 2013F12A31H 922,298,248 81,616,717 54,654,474 28,162,482 1,086,631,921
31 December 2012 2012128318 709,203,705 86,776,522 42,729,685 19,662,097 858,272,009

(@@ Depreciation of RMB50,926,506 and
RMB768,449 has been charged to operating
costs and general and administrative expenses
for the year (2012: RMB50,516,015 and
RMB628,503) respectively.

@ AFEFALERDN - BEEROT
E 55l A AR ¥50,926,5067T A K&
A R 1768,4497T(20124F £ = 5 7
B AN R #50,516,0157T LA & A R #&
628,5037T) °

BREEHEREEROERAR
e csrm 140
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5

14

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(7) Fixed assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

7 EHHBHRFREBME®

(7) BIEEE %)

Fixed assets held under finance lease (b) FEHALETEE
As at 31 December 2013, fix assets with a M2013F12A31H - (R E 1 A A
carrying amount of RMB118,767,187 (cost of R #118,767,187L( R B A R ¥
RMB125,128,205) (31 December 2012: nil) (Note 125,128,205 )W E E B E B E %
10) are held under a sale and finance leaseback e g &M E s A(2012F12
— arrangement, which is analysed as follows: 318 - ) (fisE+) - EBHTMT
Accumulated Carrying
31 December 2013 Cost Depreciation amount
2013%F12A31H RE RETIE SREEE
Machinery and equipment BRI E 82,866,786 (4,015,544) 78,851,242
Motor vehicles BT A 38,543,679 (2,131,544) 36,412,135
Office equipment and others WENRR M M HoAth 3,717,740 (213,930) 3,603,810
125,128,205 (6,361,018) 118,767,187
Pursuant to the investment agreement entered (c) M2013FE @ AEBIRIEFEEEOEXRH

into between the Group and Haikou Meilan, the
international terminal building and its ancillary
projects, which have been completed and put
into use, were recognised in fix assets at a cost
of RMB236,748,630 in 2013. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying amount of these assets is
RMB234,834,912, of which ownership certificates
were in the process of application (Note 7(7)).

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

RN EERRERTE  FEDT
T 5 A {50 FR 9 B B i 8 K AR B T
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements F &HEAEHRFIEBMW 2

(Continued)
(8) Construction in progress (8) HEZEIFE
Transfer
to fixed
31 December Increase in assets in 31 December
2012 current year current year 2013
20124 REEA 20135
12A431H REIE N Bl & B 12A31H
Navigation display screen R eE
transformation - 1,412,064 - 1,412,064
Terminal Tower BRI B ek T2
renovation - 1,157,591 - 1,157,591
Traffic management and LBEEREERR
control systems = 1,066,763 = 1,066,763
Chillers expansion of FatRRRiE R KA
the West Gallery [y - 924,000 (924,000) -
Equipment operation BEBITEERR
monitoring system - 798,000 - 798,000
Operation management BITEBYRER
platform — 763,586 — 763,586
Kitchen project ET7REETRE - 698,750 (698,750) -
Airport broadcasting W5 ERE RS TR
system renovation 1,400,000 - (1,400,000) -
Others Hih = 1,911,206 (836,900) 1,574,306

1,400,000 8,731,960 (3,359,650) 6,772,310

BREEWEREESROERAE
e carm 14/
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(9) Intangible assets

9)

BICEE

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

Land use rights

T {5 e

Cost R{E
31 December 2012 2012412 A31H 179,637,283
Increase in current year NI A 45,078,000
31 December 2013 2013412 A31H 224,715,283

Accumulated amortisation
31 December 2012
Amortisation in current year

RETE 5
2012512 A31H
PN

(35,561,759)
(3,500,004)

31 December 2013

201312 H31H

(39,061,853)

Carrying amount
31 December 2013

BREDF =R
2013512 A31H

185,653,430

31 December 2012

2012412 A31H

144,075,524

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2013
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5

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(9) Intangible assets (Continued)

@

®)

(c)

(@)

7 AaHBMBHREREHME®)

Q) HEEE

Amortisation expenses of RMB3,500,094 (2012: @ AREEEREENBHESEAAR
RMB3,163,189) were charged to operating costs #3,500,0947T (20124 € : A R #&
in the current year. 3,163,1897T) * BFAFT A FEAA ©
The carrying amount of land use rights is (b) LHbE AR PTE R & F R o T a0
analysed as follows: T
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H  2012412A31H
Inside Mainland China — L FA AR B A3t —
between 10 to 50 years 10ZF504F 58,233,962 59,844,117
over 50 years 50 A £ 127,419,468 84,231,407
185,653,430 144,075,524
Pursuant to the investment agreement entered (c) M2013F E ' AEEBEBREFEHEFOE
into between the Group and Haikou Meilan, BMEBEINEEERBRERTE  £8E
the Group recognised land use rights of 52 TP 3% AfE A A B BR fn ol 22 K 4R
RMB45,078,000 for the international terminal FTREEBLHFERAESEXARK
building and its ancillary projects which have 45,078,000t A B E E - B b fF
been completed and put into use in 2013, of RiEZEEMRED (MEET)) °
which ownship certificates were in the process of
application (Note 7(7)).
As at 31 December 2013, LUR with a carrying (d) T2013F12A31H @ BREABEAARE

amount of RMB8,965,065 (original cost of
RMB11,852,138)(31 December 2012: nil), were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s long-term
borrowings of RMB1,524,225,000 (31 December
2012: nil) (Note 5(19)).

8,965,0657T (R B 7 A K. #11,852,138
70) (201246128318 : ) i {E A
- 1ER AREA,524,225,0000 K EBE
F(2012F12 8318 « £&) (MEEFE19))
faiwiky/ic

BREEHEREEROERAR
TE-ZFER 1 49
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(10) Deferred tax assets

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

(10) BEEFFHEE

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

20135128311 2012412 A31H
Deductible Deductible
Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax temporary
assets differences assets differences
EIEFREHR AR EREFTEH E:sil
&E FEHER BE THRiEER
Provision for asset impairment BERNEER 848,786 3,395,143 447,180 3,577,437
Accrued termination benefits RiRBHRET 1,150,899 4,603,596 1,166,880 6,375,492
Accrued airline subsidy expense FEIRMAR AR B ALK 2,550,000 10,200,000 = =
Accrued bonus for directors, BRES  Ex -
supervisors and key management  SREEAEME 4,517,239 18,068,956 2,258,620 18,068,956
9,066,924 36,267,695 3,872,680 28,021,885
Deferred tax asset to be recovered FEEHFMER(S14E)
within 12 months EOR S 8,185,125 2,875,767
Deferred tax asset to be recovered T E{4EE Y
after more than 12 months x| 881,799 996,913
9,066,924 3,872,680

As at 31 December 2013, no deferred tax liabilitie is
recognised (31 December 2012: nil).

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements H

(Continued)

(11) Accounts payable

The ageing of accounts payable based on their

recording dates is analysed as follows:

EHMBRREEME 2

(11) FEITERH

FENBRFIZE AR B AR BRER DATZA T -

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

Within 90 days 90K AR 9,732,312 5,152,321
91 to 180 days 91 R&E180K 1,492,839 316,553
over 180 days 180K A _E 785,473 1,778,380
12,010,624 7,247,254
(12) Advances from customers (12) 7AW IE

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H831H 2012412 A31H
User fees of VIP room EEEHERE 4,628,316 4,682,250

Consideration of land use rights b5 PR R R X
(Note 7(7)) (HiEE+(7)) 3,128,973 3,128,973
Landing fees KB 1,677,813 2,724,922
Airport fee (Note 5(28)(a)) 158 (172 71(28)(a) - 4,550,141
9,435,102 15,086,286

BREEWEREESROERAE 1 51
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

5 Notes to the consolidated fin
(Continued)

(13) Employee benefits payable

ancial statements

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

(13) FENTHBET #r B

31 December

31 December

2012 Additions Reductions 2013
20124 20135
128318 RN RER D 12A31H

Wages and salaries, bonuses 1% ®#% -
and allowances p=hep ikt 42,095,655 64,876,727 (93,310,405) 13,661,977
Staff welfare BTEMNE - 1,534,937 (1,534,937) -
Social security contributions HERRE 575 10,250,830 (10,206,795) 44,610
Including: Pensions Heh: BERBE - 6,775,920 (6,751,119 24,801
Medical insurance BERRE - 2,716,783 (2,710,338) 6,445
Unemployment insurance RERKRE - 350,271 (337,482) 12,789
Work injury insurance IERRE = 204,815 (204,815) -
Maternity insurance EERRE 575 203,041 (203,041) 575
Housing funds FEARES 531,567 4,438,410 (4,489,462) 480,515

Labor union and IT2REN

employee education funds BIHERE 859,698 1,727,043 (1,224,281) 1,362,460
Termination benefits BLREH 7,424,872 - (2,194,545) 5,230,327
50,912,367 82,827,947 (112,960,425) 20,779,889

(14)

Taxes payable

(14) EXFHE

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012

2012412 H31H

Enterprise income tax payable FER D EFTSH 11,168,629 11,037,359
Business tax payable FERZ S ETRR 3,180,037 6,245,380
Property tax payable BREEM 2,141,618 2,170,700
Others HAmh 248,883 533,627

16,739,167 19,987,066
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

s mERMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements # &#HMEHERIEEHMEE &)

(Continued)
(15) Interest payable (15) FETTFIE
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12831H 2012412 A31H
Interest of long-term borrowings with S EEAT B/
repayment of interest and R EAE R &
principal by instalment 2,000,096 2,949,000
Interest of corporate bonds NRMEFHHNE 49,746,667 49,746,667
51,746,763 52,695,667
(16) Dividends payable (16) FETTARFI
2013 2012
20134 20124
Dividends payable of ordinary shares at F Y FE E BRI
the beginning of year 666,000 666,000
Add: Dividends payable of ordinary shares fill : 7N i < & i@ IR AR
in current year (Note 5(26)) (K7 (26)) 111,678,194 80,446,210
Less: Dividends and withholding tax W ANEIREERRF &
paid in current year RINFHE (111,678,194) (80,446,210)
Dividends payable of ordinary shares B R FE A 5@ AR A
at the end of year 666,000 666,000

BEEMEBRSRAERA
“2 Zeeg 103
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(17) Other payables

(17) B fERH

31 December
2013
2013%F12H831H

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

Remuneration of senior management R EIEN S 31,495,793 -
Airport ground services fee payable FERHR Ut R 7S & 30,788,213 18,648,934
Construction fee payables FNIEFEIRERSE 20,175,523 24,536,724
Guarantee deposit ERNHRSRES 17,443,549 11,408,455
Accrued airlines development subsidy TEIR AR P EE F BL X 14,900,000 4,700,000
Accrued airlines increment subsidy TERE M AR I8 = AL X 6,737,499 =
Airline subsidy received on behalf KU A 4R #l B FR 4,835,204 -
Repairing and maintenance expenses RIEREMEEE 884,228 6,085,105
Others Hip 33,930,867 16,106,157

161,190,876 81,485,375

(18) Current portion of non-current liabilities

31 December
2013
2013%F12831H

(18) —FAZRIHIIF BB 18

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

Current portion of long-term borrowings

—F R REMER

(Note 5(19)) (H1aE7(19)) 109,744,200 115,139,000

Current portion of long-term payables —FRE| A KRR
(Note 5(21)) (HiaE7(21) 28,581,972 =
138,326,172 115,139,000

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2013
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(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(19) Long-term borrowings (19)

7 EHEMBHRREBMEE®)

[t 2/
B A

<E]
31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

31 December
2013
2013%F12831H

Secured borrowings EIER

Less: Current portion of

long-term borrowings (Note 5(18)) (B2 (18))

o —FAREHRREE

1,798,545,718 397,945,487

=7

A

(109,744,200) (115,139,000)

1,688,801,518 282,806,487

As at 31 December 2013, the weighted average
interest rate of long-term borrowings is 3.74% per
annum (31 December 2012: 3.73%).

As at 31 December 2013, bank borrowings of
USD250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,524,225,000) (31
December 2012: nil) are secured by the 51% interests
in Meilan Cargo held by the Company and land use
rights with a carrying amount of RMB8,965,065 (a
cost of RMB11,852,138) held by the Group. Interests
are payable every quarter and the principal is due for
repayment on installment before 30 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2013, bank borrowings of
USD44,993,475 (equivalent to RMB274,320,718)
(31 December 2012: USD62,993,475, equivalent to
RMBB395,945,487) are secured by the 24.5% interests
in HNA Airport held by the Company. Interests are
payable every quarter and the principal is due for
repayment on installment before 26 January 2016.

The bank borrowings of RMB2,000,000 as at 31
December 2012, which is secured by the Company’s
revenue, has been repaid in the year ended 31
December 2013.

R2013F12HA318 © K 5 15 X &9 N #&
B E R R AB3.74% (20124124318 :
3.73%) °

M2013%F 128318 R 17 & X £ T
250,000,0007T(#1 & A K #1,524,225,000
70) (2012412 A318 : E)RAKRATEAR
XM EEN NREEREIFRAEE 2+
5 A RERRE (B E 4 A R #8,965,0657T (R
BEAAR11,852,13870) tE A (MR
Q) ' FIEBEEXN—IK » KEEMN2016
F12A308 A D HAEE -

2013 12A31H : B 17 & X £ T
44,993,475 (T & AR #274,320,7187T )
(2012412 A31H : £762,993,4757TC * #T
A AR#395,945,48770) = AN A Al A &Y
BSR4 5% RIEEBE IR - FIEE
ZEXN—IR » NeER20165F1 H26H Al

DHEMERE o

R2012F12 318 » @A 7] A U 25 e
1#H) % % A A R #2,000,0007T &) 8 17 &
o BREE2013F12A31 A ILEEEE -

BREEHEREEROERAR
TE-ZFER
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(20) Corporate bonds

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

(20) 2~ ElfEs

31 December Issuance in Issuance Amortisation in 31 December
2012 current year expenses  current year 2013
20124 20135
12A31H AEBRT AFERSHER AREHH 12A31H
Long-term corporate bonds  RHIAEIES 791,253,935 = = 1,111,284 792,365,219
Related information is as follows: BEHFBBERNT :
Issuance
Par value Issuance date Maturity amount
[ELE BT BEHHR BITEH
13 March 2012 7 years
Corporate bonds NI 800,000,000 201243A13H 7 800,000,000

Interest accrued of the bonds is analysed as below:

31 December

B2 R R BT

Interest accrued
BRI 2

Interest accrued Interest paid in 31 December

2012 in current year current year 2013

20124 20134

12A318 AFEFHFE FFEFHE 128318

Corporate bonds NI 49,746,667 62,400,000 (62,400,000) 49,746,667

As approved by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission in Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2011] No. 2082, the
Company issued corporate bonds of RMB800,000,000
on 13 March 2012. The maturity of the bonds is 7
years, interest rate is 7.8% per annum, interest is
repayable annually on 15 March of the years and the
principal is repayable upon maturity.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(21) Long-term payables

21) REGERH

31 December
2013
2013%F12831H

7 EHEMBHRREBMEE®)

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

Payable for finance lease
Less: finance lease payable due within
one year (Note 5(18))

R ERER 116,070,035
B —FAEIEREARE
MER (B EA(18) (28,581,972)

87,488,063

Payable for the finance lease is analysed as follows:

FEf R E HE A ¢

31 December
2013
2013%12H831H

31 December
2012
2012412831 H

Jiangsu Finance Leasing Co., Ltd

B IHsRmEERREAA 116,070,035

Payable for finance lease represents the minimum
lease payments for the Group’s fixed assets held under
finance leases less unrecognised finance charges

(Note 10).

(22) Other non-current liabilities

FRER(MIEET) -

(22) AR R IE

31 December
2013
2013%F12H831H

ENRERAERSASEREBABEEE
M ERERENFRBEIR AR ERRE BRI

31 December
2012
2012412 831H

Deferred income: IEEUR S
Government grants related to assets B3 & 2 FE A A BT A B
— Fire alarm system — B R EH B EIR
He 12,870,000 10,770,000
Unrealised gains on sale AREREREEER
and leaseback transaction 5,466,331 -
18,336,331 10,770,000

BREEWEREESROERAE 1 57
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(22) Other non-current liabilities (Continued)

31 December

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

(22) AMIE BN A & (4%E)

31 December

2012 Addition  Amortisation 2013
20124 20135
124318 AL REEH 12A31H
Government grants related to B RERDEEES
assets - Fire alarm system 10,770,000 3,000,000 (900,000) 12,870,000
Unrealised gains on sale ERERMEEER
and leaseback transaction - 5,768,656 (302,325) 5,466,331
10,770,000 8,768,656 (1,202,325) 18,336,331
Government grants relevant to assets are amortised over HEEMBENBNEBEEEETERAER
the expected useful life of the assets, i.e. 15 years. 15F EESH o
Unrealised gains on sale and leaseback transaction are REZBALOXZTZIEKOAREIRERILOEBZ
amortised over the depreciation period of the leased IREENITEEEEITEH -
assets.
(23) Share capital (23) B
31 December 31 December
2013 and 2012 2013 and 2012
20139128318 & 2013F12A31H K
201212 H831H 2012F12H31H
(Number of shares) (RMB)
(B0 (AR¥T)
Shares held by domestic legal entities BNEAER
(“holders of domestic shares”)
Haikou Meilan BOERH 237,500,000 237,500,000
HNA Group Company Limited BMEEARAT
(“HNA Group”) s3] 3,512,500 3,512,500
Hainan Airlines Company Limited EEMERDER AT
(“Hainan Airlines”) (MgmmzEl) 5,287,500 5,287,500
H-Shares held by foreign investors BN EmEINE IR 226,913,000 226,913,000
478,218,000 473,213,000

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(24)

(25)

Capital surplus

7 EHEMBHRREBMEE®)

(24) BARLTE

31 December
2013 and 2012
2013F12831A K
2012512831 H

Share premium & A5 E 598,983,655
Other capital surplus HihEARRTE 100,500,999

Public demolition compensation of NN s
an associate 166,048
699,650,702

Surplus reserve

(25) BEF TR

31 December

31 December

2012 Increase Decrease 2013

20124 20134

12A31H RE b 128311

Statutory surplus reserve EERBATEE 246,394,231 = = 246,394,231
31 December

2011 Increase Decrease 30 June 2012

20114 20124

12A31H R D 12H31H

Statutory surplus reserve FEEEBAES 216,748,099 29,646,132 - 246,394,231

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company should
appropriate 10% of net profit for the year to the statutory
surplus reserve, until the statutory surplus reserve
accumulated to 50% of the registered capital of the
Company. The statutory surplus reserve can be used
to make up for the loss or increase the paid-in capital
after approval from the appropriate authorities. Since the
accumulated statutory surplus reserve of the Company
is more than 50% of the registered capital, the Company
has not made appropriation of statutory surplus reserve
in 2013 (2012: appropriate 10% of net profit, totally
RMB29,646,132).

BB EZEARKMBERREIRAREE

C AR EIRFEFNBN10%REVEE R

Al AR R

BAES  BEERATAHAES Rs5EEL
T EARBS50% o EEBBRATES LB ER
HEILIMRA - BIVERE
BHAES R EEEINANARGZEMELRN
50% A £ © AR F2013F E I KR IZEUEATE
BHNTES(2012FF : FFEA10%R
B - £ AR¥29,646,1327T) °

BREEWEREESROERAE
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5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements # &R EEBMWE =)
(Continued)

(26) Undistributed profits (26) K7 ECFE

As at 31 December 2013, included in the undistributed
profits, RMB1,879,006 is subsidiaries’ surplus reserve
attributable to the Company (31 December 2012:
RMB1,350,439), of which the appropriation made by
the subsidiaries for the year amounted to RMB528,684
(2012: RMB578,308).

Pursuant to the resolution of shareholders’ annual
general meeting on 27 May 2013 and general meeting
on 28 October 2013, 2012 final dividend of RMB0.138
per share and 2013 interim dividend of RMBO0.098
per share, amounting to RMB65,303,394 and
RMB46,374,800 respectively (2012: interim dividend of
RMB80,446,210) were declared and paid (Note 5(16)).

(27) Minority interests

Equity attributable to the minority shareholders of the
subsidiaries

M2013F12A318 * RAAOMFEFESEEBR
B ARIRFARIBHATESARTEAKEA,879,006
Jo(20125F12A31H « A & #1,350,4397T ) °
HAFRAAFEMIENGEBENERAFNA
#HhATE B AR BS28,684TL(2012F [ + A
R#578,3087T) °

BIE2013F5 H27 HIR R A E A g A K2013
FI0H28ERE R ERFE  ARAIAEE
&% 3K 220124 [F R i 3R & I8 A1 }220134F
EHRBBReRF - SREFSBAARE
0.1387C f1 A R #£0.0087T © B 1T H
473,213,0000% 5t & - 7 AR 238 £ IR F A
R #65,303,3947T M A R #46,374,8007C
(20125 % : JREE2012F E R HIIR & AR FI A
[R#80,446,2107T) * sm2 R MR (16)

(27) LERE Iz
BEASFRRLEBIREMN D AR R

31 December 31 December

Subsidiaries Minority shareholder 2013 2012
FREERE DR R AR 2013%F12H31H  2012412A31H

Meilan Cargo

Baixiang Logistic

FHEE BAMRERAF] 16,174,625 16,381,082

Meilan Advertising Haikou Meilan

ERES BOER 223 2,062

Meilan Duty Free Shop Haikou Meilan

EWRH 80X (83,591) (82,925)
16,091,257 16,300,219
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(28) Revenue and operating costs, general and

administrative expenses

7 EHEMBHRREBMEE®)

(08) BEWMAFIELRA - EREA

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Revenue EEUWA
Aeronautical: MIZEMERTE -
Passenger charges IRE RS & 174,616,062 159,726,149
Airport fee* s B> 138,593,584 124,448,235
Aircraft movement fees and FREHE[E K2
related charges = 59,571,701 53,978,284
Ground handling services income o AR AU A 60,853,790 55,694,277
433,635,137 393,846,945
Non-aeronautical: FERTZE R -
Franchise fee FEALE WA 159,177,174 136,888,777
Freight and packing EERBEKA 67,893,912 63,184,677
Rental He 33,713,717 27,396,888
VIP room charges EEEWA 29,067,147 31,691,201
Car parking (= 13,312,073 10,216,059
Others Hip 23,477,614 20,844,917
326,641,637 290,222,519
760,276,774 684,069,464

Airport fee represents Civil Aviation Development Fund
(2012: airport fee represents Civil Airport Construction
Fee and Civil Aviation Development Fund), which is
expected to be refunded from government. According
to the Interim Measures for the Collection, Use and
Management of the Civil Aviation Development Fund (&
MERESHWERERETHRE)) promulgated by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC effective from 1 April
2012 till 31 December 2015, the former Civil Airport
Construction Fee was superseded by the Civil Aviation
Development Fund which is charged to passengers at
the same rate as the former Civil Airport Construction
Fee.

* IS8 WB B ATETEESBNREY
RMEEES (2012F : #IBEARMES
ERBNRMEERES) - REBIMEIBEM
WHR2012F4A1H AR EHAKRMEBERE
EeHBERTETITIES) - HREHK
EMZERES  WHARBEFERISEREE
B BUR 2 - ZIETTE20155F12A4
318 - [ - [RHESERBRELL -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MBHmEMETE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(28) Revenue and operating costs, general and

(29)

administrative expenses (Continued)

Operating costs and general and administrative

expenses include the following items:

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

(28) ERWAMERKAR - EHEEF (&)

MR AR EEBATE R TIED B -

2013 2012
20134 20124
Employee benefit expenses BETENEHA 82,827,947 66,771,155
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEENEEM 51,694,955 51,144,518
Airport and logistic services fee Heig N ANEY AR B RIS & 32,690,001 46,292,222
Packaging materials AR AR 25,583,397 26,182,067
Utilities KEE 24,104,441 23,806,717
Repairs and maintenance costs #=E 11,029,376 11,906,261
Airlines subsidies expenses fi 4R B B v G 10,200,000 4,071,134
Other taxes HAb 18 8,398,937 7,444,049
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center Rii/E&EHLFES 3,619,096 2,992,785
Amortisation of land use rights {5 PR AR 3,500,094 3,163,189
Audit fee E:E 1,730,119 2,136,048
Other service fee charged by CPA firm Hit &t E15AT
WER ) AR 7% & A - 170,000
Travelling expenses EIRE 1,692,060 2,027,786
Taxes and surcharges (29) EZF 2 KA
2013 2012
20134 20124
Business tax R 19,304,398 21,844,970
City maintenance and construction tax T AR R R TR 1,470,868 1,472,595
Educational surcharge B &t 1,095,828 1,088,182
21,871,094 24,405,747

1 6 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

s mERMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements # &#HMEHERIEEHMEE &)

(Continued)
(30) Financial expenses — net (30) BI75E FH-F5E
2013 2012
2013 20124
Interest expenses B 78,911,770 69,110,654
Including: Bank borrowings Hrh o RITE 12,485,727 17,009,954
Corporate bonds NGINEE= 63,511,284 52,100,700
Finance leases BEEE 2,914,759 =
Less: Interest income T R A (18,904,641) (19,240,059)
Net foreign exchange gains b 5 F e (10,553,440) (600,078)
Others Hih 774,397 895,709
50,228,086 50,166,226
Interest expenses are analysed by the repayment MESHIREITEREATIEENESHS
terms of bank borrowings and bonds as follows: T -
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
2013%12H31H 2012412 831H

Bank Corporate Bank Corporate
borrowings bonds borrowings bonds
RITER NEES RITEIX NEES

Wholly repayable within five years &4 — #3835k H7E
FEZ REER 12,485,727 - 17,009,954 -

Wholly repayable after KE—HERBE
five years hEZEMES - 63,511,284 = 52,100,700

12,485,727 63,511,284 17,009,954 52,100,700

BEEWEREEROERATF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MBHmEMETE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements # &R EEBMWE =)

(Continued)
(31) Provision/(reversal of provision) for asset (31) BEREEX ~(#[0])
impairment
2013 2012
20134 20124
Provision for/(reversal of provision of) e BR R BRIB K
bad debts ($[E) 538,712 (1,146,194)
(32) Investment income (32) REWMz=
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Share of profit of investees under DR EZE MR Bk
equity method — HNA Airport B W s — E IS % 26,931,664 32,476,692
Gain from disposal of equity interest A& H & I Es — B
— Hainan Meilan International Airport B IS IR 1T B TR A A
Travelling Co., Ltd. (“ Meilan Travelling”) ([EBRTTH]) - 667,119
26,931,664 33,143,811
There is no significant restriction on the repatriation of REENFERE WeE B R E AR
investment income.
Investment income derived from unlisted companies AEERBIFLTEARANEERT A
for the year amounted to RMB26,931,664 (2012: A R #26,931,6647(2012F F : A R
RMB33,143,811). 33,143,8117T) °
(33) Non-operating income (33) & EIMUA
2013 2012
20134 20124
Government grants R BY 2,447,000 2,168,000
Gains on disposal of fixed assets BEEERENS - 302,689
Others Hith 181,132 310,827
2,628,132 2,781,516

1 6 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

IR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements # &#HMEHERIEEHMEE &)
(Continued)

(34) Income tax expenses (34) S EH

2013 2012

20134 20124

Current income tax B HIFT 1S5 51,856,386 42,691,563
Deferred income tax FIEFTIS R (5,194,244) 549,060
46,662,142 43,240,623

HER G FHERNFEEBERAERTER
AENMSHAMRAEHERDT

The reconciliation from income tax calculated based
on the applicable tax rates and total profit presented
in the consolidated financial statements to the income
tax expenses is as below:

2013 2012
20135 20124
Total profit IbERGE 393,773,507 346,757,624
Income tax expenses calculated at EASEERREGTEN
applicable tax rates Frisat 98,443,377 86,689,406
Effect of tax incentive M EENTE (48,271,809) (41,925,364)
Effect of change in the tax rates MEREHTE (4,163,517) -
Income not subject to tax JEFERTLULA (3,366,458) (3,622,913)
Costs and expenses not deductible for MR AR E A
tax purposes 1,223,630 1,602,494
Under provision in previous year LARTFEFri5RiE 2,796,919 497,000
46,662,142 43,240,623
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MigmsMaE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (%45 5z A9}

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(35) Earnings per share
()

Basic earnings per share are calculated by

P DB SARET)

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

(35) Wz
(@) EABRWDEAFBRARALEK

dividing consolidated net profit attributable to AR E) & OF 7F FBEBR AR R A1 3 IT1E
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the SN RARE IR TG E
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding:
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Consolidated net profit attributable to 538 R A A 7 @A R
ordinary shareholders of G HFFE(ARETT)
the Company (RMB) 342,034,354 297,963,109
Weighted average number of RRABEITEING BIR
outstanding ordinary shares of hnfE g (AR)
the Company (share) 473,213,000 473,213,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB) EXRGRKE(AREIT) 0.72 0.63
(b) Diluted earnings per share is calculated by (b) WHEERWSAREREEE
dividing the consolidated net profit attributable to RARENEBN ARG LB E

ordinary shareholders of the Company adjusted
based on the dilutive potential ordinary shares
by the adjusted weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. As there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year (2012:

BE OHF T B B A FH B 1R M AR R) 3
TEINE BARA INEFIIBGTE - B
REE  ARRATGEEEREMED
BELBEIR(2012FF « £) - At
HEERKSSERERSRILS -

nil), diluted earnings per share equals to basic

earnings per share.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B issmkMsE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5t BES) - 2 SBE BARETT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements F &HEAEHRFIEBMW 2
(Continued)

(36) Dividends (36) B&F

In the year, 2013 interim dividend of RMBO0.098 per
share (2012: interim dividend of RMBO0.17 per share),
totaling RMB46,374,800 (2012: interim dividend
totaling RMB80,446,210) was declared and paid to the
shareholders of the Company.

A final dividend of RMBO0.084 per share, totaling
RMB39,730,000 was proposed by the Board of
Directors on 24 March 2014 (2012 final dividend of
RMBO0.138 per share, totaling RMB65,303,394). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013. It will be recognised in owners’ equity in the
year ending 31 December 2014.

RAFE » ARANKRE2013FEFHRE
& F A&k A R #0.0987T (20124 [ -
2012 EH B3R & IR A & Ik A R #0.17
JL ) B A A R #46,374,8007T (2012
FE 20128 F RS BRF BT AR
80,446,2107T) °

R2014F3 7248 - EFSEH D IK20134F
EREE SR AR ARK0.0847T © A5+
A AR 139,730,0007T(2012F R HFIR &
BEF - B A RB0.138TC © Bt A ARE
65,308,394 T ) ° & F£2013F 12 A31H IE4F
B WERFWARERTBEHRE LBREE
& MBREZE2014F12A31HIEFEERN
MR TR

BREEHEREEROERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
IsEAMTE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

16

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(37) Supplementary information to the consolidated
cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows
from operating activities

7 AHMBHREREHME®)

(37) Ban@Emman

REF BB RS LR B R LR E

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Net profit SEF 347,111,365 308,517,001
Add: Provision/(reversal of provision) i : 52,/ (&[5 )y
for asset impairment BERBEER 538,712 (1,146,194)
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEENE 51,694,955 51,144,518
Amortisation of intangible assets Em A EEH 3,500,094 3,163,189
Amortisation of deferred income R U 2 B 5 (1,202,325) -
Losses/(gains) on disposal of BEETEEEN
fixed assets 1Bx/(Fl13) 183,536 (302,689)
Financial expenses 5 E R 68,358,330 68,510,576
Investment income AWz (26,931,664) (83,143,811)
(Increase)/decrease in RIEFTIS I A
deferred tax assets (3&m), mb (5,194,244) 549,060
Decrease in inventories 7 & 1R 9,214 9,771
Decrease in operating £ R I B /YR
receivables 12,905,179 33,882,531
Increase in operating payables £ FETIR B /93 00 53,993,405 21,653,618
Net cash flows from T RBE AR
operating activities WEMEFH 504,966,557 447,737,570

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
IR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

5 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(37) Supplementary information to the consolidated
cash flow statement (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

7 EHEMBHRREBMEE®)

(37) B nBEXRHAEN ()

b) HEREDLFEWFEEER

2013
20134

2012
20124F

Cash and cash equivalents at end of & NIEEEEMHN

year
Less: cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

FRHEH

2,998,410,937

W RERREFEYD

FHRRE

(1,207,561,423)

1,207,561,423

(366,887,159)

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Re kR eFEWHEINE

1,790,849,514

840,674,264

Cash payments relating to other operating

activities

) XNEMELLTEHRHNEE

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Payments of Ground Service Fee EVSANES RN N AL G
collected on behalf of hE RS &
Haikou Meilan 113,675,353 123,870,555
Payments of travelling and ST ERESME
other expenses 33,636,941 29,669,574
147,312,294 153,540,129
B EMEREEROERAR 169
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MigmsMaE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5li#BAS) » 23 E I BA RS T)

SEMER

Segment information 7~
The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been AREBGREEERRETELIITEE NEEX
identified as the executive directors and senior management FETHSAEERE - EIEEBEMANIPHRE AT
lead by the chairman. The management reviews the Group’s (HEBRIEER BEEBER LMHEEAD
internal reporting in order to assess performance and ERRIE o
allocate resources. The management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.
The management considers the Group conduct its business EEERRAEEER —ETENLE X - A
within one business segment — the business of operating R E & — (AW IR ARG RS - BB -
an airport and provision of related services in the PRC and RASENREEZREFRE - HEETURF
the Group also operates within one geographical segment o ANEE EE A —Eh I8 VAR TS o
because its revenues are primarily generated from and its
assets are located in the PRC.
7 Related parties and related party transactions -+ FAEABEERERS
(1) The parent company (1) BRAIER
(@) General information of the parent company: @ BRAREXREBER:
Place of registration Nature of business
FE it EBME
Haikou Meilan Haikou, Hainan Province Transportation and ground handling services
psamES] BEEEOM TR A Ze 48 o N 0 T IR AR TS
(b) Registered capital and changes in registered b) BRAEMERREEL
capital of the parent company:
31 December 2013
and 2012
2013F12H31B K
2012%F12831H
Haikou Meilan
BOER 2,028,913,102
17 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
IR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

7 Related parties and related party transactions + B FEEZERERZ S5 &)

(Continued)
(1) The parent company (Continued) (1) EREIERE)
(€) The proportions of equity interests and voting ) B RAEARRQFEFFAR L GIF R R4
rights in the Company held by the parent EE 5 -
company:

31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012
201312831 B KX2012512831H
% Interest held % Voting rights

FEAR EE 1% FORELLBI%
Haikou Meilan
HOXER 50.19 50.19
(2) Information of subsidiaries 2) FrAalEx
The general information and other related information FRAAIMERNER RAREE R R D o

of the subsidiaries is set out in Note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

sk mE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

7 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(3) Information of associates

B BELFEREX

t BBAERERRE

X5 4E)

Place of Registered Interest Voting
registration Nature of business capital held (%) rights
it EBHE AMER  FREHI(%) FORHELL D
Haikou Haikou, Property development, 101,681,000 30 1/3
Decheng Hainan Province resort operation, eco-agriculture
development and gardening
BAEH BEaEOm MERE  KEEREERE
HRERERAE  REZ
HNA Airport  Haikou, Airport operation and ground 3,020,151,992 24.5 1/7

Hainan Province

SRRSIER BEEEOT

handling services; airport
investment, holding,
constructing and rebuilding
B5E LB N E R
WniRE - IR - #F -

(4) Information of other related parties: (4) HEMEFE 5 IR
Relationship with the Group
HEAEBNEEF
HNA Group Has significant influence of Haikou Meilan
BEE HENRBEATE

Hainan Developing Holding Company Limited (“Hainan Developing”)

BEEERERARAR ([ERER])

Hainan Airlines

AEmmE

Hainan Airlines Food Company Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Food”)

BEMERMARLF(EMRRM])

Hainan HNA Property Management Co., Ltd (“HNA Property”)

BREERARLB(ERYE])

Has significant influence of Haikou Meilan
HENRREATE

Under control of Hainan Developing
RGBS

Under control of HNA Group
Si=s e e okt

Under control of HNA Group
= E SE 1 pbeat]

1 7 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
s MEE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% 5llz+BF5)

7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(4)

Information of other related parties (Continued):

(4)

P 2RREMBARET)

+t BBFTRERERZ#)

E bR T 157 ()

Relationship with the Group
HASENEE

Beijing Capital Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Capital Airlines”)
tradmEaRAR(EHm=E]l)

HNA Group Finance Co., Ltd (“HNA Group Finance”)
BMEERBERAR(NEMHM L)

Hainan Airlines Aviation Information System Co., Ltd (“HNAAIS”)
BEEMMEEERFERAT(EMEE])

HNA Safe Car Rental Co., Ltd.(“HNA Safe”)
B ERAEHERRAR(DEMEBE])

Tianjin Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Airlines”)
REMEAREFAR(REMZE])

Western Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Western Airlines”)
AEmEEREEAR([ABME])

Grand China Aviation Ground Service Co., Ltd (“Grand China”)
HETBRSREERAR([HEEE])

HNA Cargo Transportation Co., Ltd. (‘HNA Cargo”)
BMEERRAR(EMEE])

Meilan Travelling
ERIRITH

Deer Jet Co., Ltd.(“Deer Jet”)
ZhEMeBRABMEMARBAERAR(=02E])

Hainan HNA China Duty Free Merchandise Co., Ltd. (‘HNA China Duty Free”)

BEERTeERRERAR(ERTR])

Under control of HNA Group
X8 & BRG]

Under control of HNA Group
X8 S B Rl

Under control of HNA Group
X8 = B

Under control of HNA Group
X BB R

Under control of HNA Group
X8 S BRG]

Under control of HNA Group
X8 S B

Under control of HNA Group
XM B

Under control of HNA Group
XM B

Under control of HNA Group
i=s e = 1okt

Under control of HNA Group
XM B

Under common control of HNA Group

RS B AR

BREEHEREEROERAR
TE-ZFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MBHmEMETE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

7

17

Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(5) Significant related party transactions
(@) Pricing policies

The Group’s pricing on raw materials purchased
from related parties, and services provided
or received from related parties are based on
market price.

(b)  Purchases of goods and services

+t BABFTRAEREXZ @)

(b5) EAFHZ S
(@) TEHE

AEBERBY T RBNERARES
BT S HERABRYTIRHE S KN
BIRATSERIEREBER -

b) FEBEYXEZEH

2013 2012
20134 20124

Hainan Airlines Az 20,040,998 26,182,067
Haikou Meilan HOER 18,755,909 18,460,854
HNA Property sak /e 15,204,829 11,820,950
HNA Cargo BREE 5,542,399 -
HNAAIS A= A 3,182,274 3,495,292
Meilan Travelling EWRTTAL 1,944,375 -
HNA Safe BEAE 1,817,640 -
HNA Food ER 196,140 -
HNA Group R pEIE] - 16,635,595
Grand China HEED - 3,466,227
66,684,564 80,060,985
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
IR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

7

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(56) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(c)

(@)

(5) BABHXEZ (@)

+t BAEATRAEREXZ®)

Rendering of services (c) FEHRELH

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Hainan Airlines YR 113,161,462 107,832,499
Capital Airlines EE S 42,971,370 22,644,494
Tianjin Airlines RiEMZE 13,665,741 8,108,798
HNA China Duty Free B R 5,824,530 5,228,498
Meilan Travelling EMIRITAE 4,120,000 4,000,000
Western Airlines FaEbzE 2,502,238 3,494,447
Hainan Food MR 875,335 684,545
Deer Jet —n&fE 821,600 =
Others Hith 424,099 408,468
184,366,375 152,401,749

Remuneration of key management (d) [FHREFHEASFHH
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Remuneration of key management FAsEIE A B E 2,179,246 2,432,811

Key management personnel include executive
directors, non-executive directors, president,
vice president, company secretary, chief financial
officer and supervisors of the Company.

MREEABEBRITES FUTES

R -
=

s RAIMWE -

BREEWEREESROERAE

TE-ZFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MBHmEMETE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5li#BAS) » 23 E I BA RS T)

7

17

Related parties and related party transactions + BB AFEEZERERZ S &)

(Continued)

(5) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (5) EAXBH G (%)
€ EFREFZH
2013 F EHMES R E FH B

(e) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments for the current year ended

31 December 2013 are as follows: B
Salary and

Name Remuneration allowance Pension Total
] < TERMHE BEETEMR CH
Liang Jun 2 - 213,300 22,032 235,332
Hu Wentai AR - 198,200 22,032 220,232
Wang Zhen FH(2013%F

(appointed on 27 May 2013)  5A27R{F4r) - 129,900 22,032 151,932
Yang Xiaobin 15/VE (20134

(appointed on 27 May 2013)  3H4B{Ewm) - 159,200 22,032 181,232
Yang Xugiang 1 arsa (20134

(appointed on 27 May 2013)  3F4H %) - 138,200 22,032 160,232
Chan Nap Kee,Joseph Ry 50,000 - - 50,000
Yan Xiang A 50,000 - - 50,000
Xu Baliling friake 100,000 - - 100,000
Feng Da'an BARE 100,000 - - 100,000
Fung Ching, Simon HEAE 100,000 - - 100,000
George F. Meng TER 100,000 - - 100,000
Dong Guiguo ERESE] - - - -
Han Ai'min BER - 169,549 22,032 191,581
Zhang Shusheng IRIMLEE 20,000 - - 20,000

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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7

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(56) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments for the current year ended

+t BBFTRERERZ#)

()

BARHR 5 (4)
) EFREFFHH(E)
12EEBUESTRESTNFHD

31 December 2012 are as follows: T
Salary and

Name Remuneration allowance Pension Total
s Bs TERMBE HEESHEIMHT A
Liang Jun 2E 70,000 202,400 15,916 288,316
Liu Lu 218 (20134

(Resigned on 4 March 2013) 3 A4 R EHT) 28,342 32,750 2,203 63,295
Dong Zhanbin T (20124

(Resigned on 5 July 2012) 7A5BET) 41,658 164,400 11,509 217,567
Xing Xihong MEAL (20134

(Resigned on 4 March 2013) 3 A4 B EET) 70,000 42,000 4,653 116,653
Hu Wentali X 50,000 216,650 15,916 282,566
Zhang Han'an FER(2013F

(Resigned on 27 May 2013) 5427 AE(T) 50,000 - - 50,000
Chan Nap Kee,Joseph PR 50,000 - - 50,000
Yan Xiang ) 50,000 - - 50,000
Xu Bailing ik 100,000 = = 100,000
Feng Da’an HRZ 100,000 - - 100,000
Fung Ching, Simon BIE 100,000 - - 100,000
George F. Meng hER 100,000 = = 100,000
Dong Guiguo EEE 20,000 - - 20,000
Zhang Shusheng Rl e 20,000 - - 20,000
Han Aimin BER 20,000 137,450 15,916 173,366

BEXMARESRHERAT {77
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7 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(5) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (5)

17

() The five individuals whose emoluments are the

highest

The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the year include two
(2012: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The

+t BABFTRAEREXZ @)

BABHR G (#)

0 FBxREAF A

2013F EAKEFH M E =R B LA
THEREMUEER(2012FE « =&
) EFMERBRELERYT  Hib=
(2012 : ML) MFH et 5

emoluments payable to the remaining three (2010: FIRAAR
two) individuals during the year are as follows:
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Remuneration [ - 30,000
Salary and allowance T& KwElh 515,618 305,562
Pension BESTEIHER 66,096 31,830
581,714 367,392
Numbers of individuals
A
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Emoluments bands: NS E -
HKDnil — HKD1,000,000 B0 7T- 1,000,0007T 3 2
(@) Interest Income @ FIEWKA
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
HNA Group Finance V& A B 75 11,392,621 13,196,971

Calculated in accordance with deposit rates of

commercial banks over the same period.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(6) Significant receivables from and payables to
related parties

@

(b)

Cash at bank

+t BAEATRAEREXZ®)

(@ EEEw

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

6) EAXBH TR - ENHIEREE

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

HNA Group Finance VAR B 75 623,518,437 422,874,660
Accounts receivable (b) FEWERH
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12831H 2012412 A31H
Capital Airlines =R e 11,440,028 9,882,856
Tianjin Airlines REMZE 4,065,540 2,119,818
Meilan Travelling ERIIRITAL 3,070,000 3,000,000
Hainan Food BME S 1,526,848 1,486,469
Hainan Airlines G ZE 447,072 5,469,005
HNA Safe BB 227,840 80,000
Western Airlines FaEBAnZE 54,343 565,326
HNA Group GRS E 37,120 29,176
HNA China Duty Free pishiaskes) - 1,944,162
Others Hith 2,027,464 1,782,475
22,896,255 26,359,287

S EMER SR MO AERD T 1 79

TE-ZFER



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BIismR M (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

18

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(6) Significant receivables from and payables to
related parties

(c) Advances to suppliers

()

+t BEAFEEREZS®)

R HE

31 December
2013
20135F12H831H

6) FEABEH B - EITHIEERRE (&)

31 December
2012
2012412 A831H

Haikou Meilan (Note7(7)) O (HE+(7)) 157,534,570 439,361,200
Others Hih 82,006 —
157,616,576 439,361,200

(d) Other receivables (@) EfENH
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%12H31H  2012F12H31H
Hainan Airlines SR 914,106 818,564
Others Hi 286,098 164,008
1,200,204 982,572

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(6) Significant receivables from and payables to

related parties (Continued)
(€

(")

Interest receivable

+t BAEATRAEREXZ®)

6) EAXBH T - ENHIEEREE (&)

€ [EWRFIE

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

HNA Group Finance VAR B 75 4,847,677 5,197,468
Accounts payable N ERERH

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

2013%F12H31H 20125412 A31H

HNA Property S 4,307,138 2,453,473

HNA Cargo B EE 2,210,139 -

Meilan Travelling EHIRITAL 1,944,375 =

HNAAIS S 433,333 =

HNA Safe S B 333,360 =

Hainan Food BMR M 75,940 =

9,304,285 2,453,473

BEEWEREEROERATF
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7 Related parties and related party transactions + BEEABERERZ S #H)

(Continued)
(6) Significant receivables from and payables to (6) EAXEFH T IEW - FETHIBLEE (&)
related parties (Continued)
(9) Other payables (9) HAHEMNHK
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013F12H31H 2012412 A31H
Haikou Meilan A O ER 62,284,006 18,648,934
Hainan Airlines B ZE 13,822,714 13,388
Meilan Travelling EMIRITA 3,324,152 3,906,541
HNA Property sk /ES 653,446 1,126,134
Others Hith 1,029,567 889,105
81,113,885 24,584,102
(h)  Advances from customers (h) FEMWFLIE
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
20135128318  2012412A31H
Haikou Meilan (Note 7(7)) AR (M E+(7)) 3,128,973 3,128,973
HNA China Duty Free STk 61,901 61,901
3,190,874 3,190,874
() Directors’ emolument payable () ENEFEFH
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H  2012412A31H
Directors’ emolument ==l 1,955,501 2,002,095

-I 8 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(7) Significant commitments in relation to related
parties

The commitments in relation to the contracts entered
into with related parties by the Group but not yet
necessary to be recognised in the balance sheet as at
the balance sheet date are as follows:

Investment and construction

+t BBFTRERERZ#)

(7) EXEFH 5 A

NTAAEBREEGRERAD  BEROME
THEEEBRBR EVIRAEREE 5 A B
AFHEIE

RRRE

31 December
2012
2012412 831H

31 December
2013
2013%12H31H

Land Use Right Transfer Agreement

and Investment and Construction
Agreement

with Haikou Meilan

— Receivable from Haikou Meilan

for Land Use Right Transfer FA RS RN
(Note a-1)
— Payable to Haikou Meilan under —FREOERIFZ

the Investment and Construction
Agreement (Note a-2)

M OEERAT BRI
15 Ak et S IR B S AR h ik

— A8 O EBURELZ T ifE
(Htita-1)

(28,160,761) (28,160,761)

REEZRESR(Hita-2)

587,318,800 587,318,800

559,158,039 559,158,039

On 26 August 2011, the Company entered into
a Land Use Right Transfer Agreement and an
Acquisition Agreement with Haikou Meilan in respect
of construction of an international terminal, expansion
of west gallery of the terminal and a number of
ancillary projects in the Meilan Airport (the “Project”).
On 12 December 2012, the Acquisition Agreement
was terminated and superseded by an Investment
and Construction Agreement (the “Investment and
Construction Agreement”) entered into by the Company
Haikou Meilan on the same day.

(@ M201148A26H * AR A EEFOXHH
R EEMIS BRI E - b RIS
T2 DA R 5 B E T2 (LA T 78
[ZIE B )9 BIETSL 7 4 fF i 88 8 1 ok
R U s - 20125128128 » RaISL
MUEEHERL  AARQREFOZEBR
B—BETRIRERR RERA -

BEEMERESRAERAR
—2 Zzag 100
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7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(7)  Significant commitments in relation to related

18

parties (Continued)

(a-1) Pursuant to the Land Use Right Transfer Agreement,
in order to facilitate the construction of the Project
and the obtaining of relevant property ownership
certificate(s) as a whole by Haikou Meilan, the
Company will transfer the land use right of the land
with a site area of 125 acres to Haikou Meilan at a
consideration of RMB31,289,734. As at 31 December
2013, the Company has received a deposit of
RMB3,128,973 from Haikou Meilan (31 December
2012: RMB3,128,973).

(@-2) Pursuant to the Investment and Construction
Agreement, Haikou Meilan undertakes that, upon
completion of the construction of the Project and
before the transfer of the assets of the Project to
the Company, Haikou Meilan shall not transfer or
dispose of any assets of the Project to any third
party, and upon completion of the construction of
the Project and before the satisfaction of the closing
conditions of transfer of the assets of the Project to
the Company, the Company is exclusively entitled to
operate the Project. The total consideration of the
project is RMB1,026,680,000, including the estimated
construction cost of RMB876,500,000 and land use
rights on the price of RMB150,180,000. The Company
shall provide funds to Haikou Meilan according to
the progress of the construction of the Project. The
construction of the Project will be completed no later
than 31 December 2015. The above resolution has
been approved by the extraordinary general meeting on
4 March 2013.

Up to 31 December 2013, the Company has made progress
payments totalling RMB439,361,200 to Haikou Meilan in
respect of the Project (31 December 2012: RMB439,361,200).
In the year, the construction of the international terminal
and the ancillary projects totalling have been completed
and put into use, the Group has recognised fixed assets
of RMB236,748,630 according to the related construction
costs and LUR of RMB45,078,000 according to the agreed
land transfer price, respectively, totalling RMB281,826,630
(Note 5(7) and 5(9)), which has been deducted from the
prepayments. As at 31 December 2013, the remaining
balance of advances to Haikou Meilan amounted to
RMB157,534,570 (31 December 2012: RMB439,361,200).

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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t BBARERERS @)

(7) BAREFHT & (&)

(a-1) BRIELHEREERREZLNT @ ARF
1z AR 131,289,734 7T KB % [7) /8 O £ B
B8 NN B 4912500 £ i A - DAER
HOEBETMWEIER TR T RIGH
BEIMEMUE 2 FER - N2013F12A4
318 ARRIEKEEOEBE N Lt
5 PR 3R A R #63,128,9737L(20124F
128318 : AR#¥3,128,9737L) °

(a-2) BEREERRH  BOZHEEEER
ERBFEIRER  TARANZERR
THRERARNAREEZBE ZEEA -
FrEmAERNE= FEEEEZEEZ
EMEE ' BARRZHEREZER 2B
RiEF - ZBEGBARESEAARKE
1,026,680,0007T * BIEFEFTEEKRRAR
#876,500,0007T LA K+ 3 {58 FA A 0B AR,
#150,180,0007T * AR AR FRZIE B M2
BREEREOXMIERES - ZHEB 2K
THEMR20156F12 A31H S ARI TR °
it B &£2013F3 A4 8 B F A BI %
BARERERB ©

M2013F12A31H » AR AIE FE QX R
TR ERZRE S AR439,361,2007t(2012
128318 : A K %439,361,2007T ) ° A A 4
B ZBERZEEMEEREABRIREBERED S
THHRAFER - ARRIEBEBRBEENBERAR
RAOEH L HEREESFIERAECEEARE
236,748,6307T & 1= i A #£45,078,0007T © &
H A R #281,826,6307T (i 5 R (7)AN(Q)) * B4
FERRERRES RN - R2013F12A831H * &
MIEERRE S RBRE R ARK157,5634,5707TC
(20124124318 : AR#439,361,2007T) °
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8 Financial instrument and risk

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (primarily foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(1) Market risk

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities are
carried out in Mainland China and a majority
of the transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from the recognised assets and
liabilities, and future transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, primarily with respect to US
dollars. The Group’s finance department at its
headquarters is responsible for monitoring the
amount of assets and liabilities, and transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, to mitigate
the foreign exchange risk. During the year ended
31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group did not
enter into any forward exchange contracts or

currency swap contracts.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying
amounts in RMB equivalent of the Group’s assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are summarised below:

N T ERHEER

ARENKERDEEMSESRAR  mHE
R(EERIMNERB MM XER) - F/ARERMR
BER  AEEERBNEAREEIHHSHT
SHARRRM - DR H RSB B E AR
BENNZE -

(1) T5E R
(@) SMNEE [

AEBHNTEQUMURTRER - =
BEBUAREEE - BREEDHE
REINE R EME B R KRR IMNER
5(ONEBEMBERINER 5 EHE
ERIBAET)RAGEIINERR -
AEEABTIEIFIE T EmEEIN
MXGMINEBERBEMHRE A
SN A g il o N e
RAFEAREFRYPE  AEBX
BFEMMERPIINESHNKEETRE
4 o

R20135F12A318 K2012612731
B AEEFARNINESBEEMI
BEBARENERARBNSBEIR
LN

31 December 2013
2013F12831H
usbD Others Total
Hih/ME1E B a%

bis
dl
m

Financial assets denominated in ~ MNE &S @& E

foreign currency — Cash at —E%ES

bank and on hand 1,526,483,965 33,938 1,526,517,903
Financial liabilities denominated in 44 gt 8 (&

foreign currency — Bank —RITIERK

borrowings

1,798,545,718 - 1,798,545,718

BEEMERESRAERAR
“2 Crag 100
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8 Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

18

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

N EMTIERERARZ)

(1) TEEREE)
(@) SMEE S (E)
31 December 2012
201212 H31H

usD Others Total
ZIUIERE H & TE B =¥

Financial assets denominated in 4N 4 gh & &=
foreign currency — Cash at bank —&#E& 4

and on hand 2,420,282 34,998 2,455,280
Financial liabilities denominated in 9MNES R B &
foreign currency — Bank —RITE

borrowings 395,945,487 - 395,945,487

As at 31 December 2013, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against the USD while
all other variables had been held constant, the
Group’s net profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB23,805,4083 (31 December
2012: RMB34,4383,455) lower/higher for various
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
USD.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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8

Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-
term interest bearing borrowings including
long-term borrowings and corporate bonds.
Financial liabilities issued at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group determines the relative proportions
of its fixed rate and floating rate contracts
depending on the prevailing market conditions.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s long-
term interest bearing borrowings with floating
rates were mainly USD-denominated bank loans,
amounting to USD294,993,475, equivalent
to RMB1,798,545,718 (81 December 2012:
USD62,993,475, equivalent to RMB395,945,487)
(Note 5(18)).

Increases in interest rates will increase the cost
of new borrowing and the interest expenses
with respect to the Group’s outstanding floating
rate borrowings, and therefore could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
position. The Group’s finance department at its
headquarters continuously monitors the interest
rate position of the Group and makes decisions
with reference to the latest market conditions.
The Group may enter into interest rate swap
agreements to mitigate its exposure to interest
rate risk. During the year, the Group has not
entered into any interest rate swap agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, if interest
rates on the floating rate borrowings had been
10% higher/lower while all other variables had
been held constant, the Group’s net profit would
have decreased/increased by approximately
USD145,666, equivalent to RMB888,113 (31
December 2012: USD204,975, equivalent to
RMB1,288,369).

N €I EREERE

(1) T5ERE &)

(b)

T % J 2
AEBNANERRBREIEEENRHE
RERMATEEL - FBF XS/
BEFEASEERASRENXR
S BEMENeREEFEAEER
BARBEMNEERR AEEREE
IR ) T 35 3R 35 SRR E B B A1 R ROZ 8D
FEE RAEELLF - R20135124
31 AEERBFHFNEEEEH
FERRRAETFEBORITER
& %8 A& 3% JT294,993,4757C 0 A A
R #1,798,545,7187T (2012412 A 31
B : 37162,993,4757% e AR
395,945,4877T) (FIzEF(18)) °

AEBABA BRI EEEEEN
FRF o ME b FH& 18 NFT IR B E
5RO R AR DA R AN SR B 1) R 7B B9 DA E
PAXAROHTEREBNME L -
THARENPBEAEEEANT
MEE EEEQKESKFIONMEN
ARFELFEE  SEHAEANELE
TR R B3R 22 R R B KA R AR -
MAFEREE L EMNRE R -

RAEE  MRVFSFIRAERE
FRFE EFFE T FR10% @ mHE AL E &
REFTE - NEBWFHEER Dk
HAN4)3E7T145,6667T (201245 [F = =
JL204,9757T ) - T & AR %888,113
JL(20124F F : AK#1,288,3697T) °

BREEHEREEROERAR
TE-ZFER
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Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

)

(3)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit
risk mainly arises from cash at bank and on hand,
accounts receivable and other receivables.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at bank since most of them
are deposited at state owned banks, listed banks or
HNA Group Finance. Management does not expect
that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the credit
exposure on accounts receivable and other receivables.
The Group assesses the credit quality of and sets
credit limits on its customers by taking into account
their financial position, the availability of guarantee
from third parties, their credit history and other factors
such as current market conditions. The credit history
of the customers is regularly monitored by the Group.
In respect of customers with a poor credit history, the
Group will use written payment reminders, or shorten
or cancel credit periods, to ensure the overall credit
risk of the Group is limited to a controllable extent.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each subsidiaries
of the Group and aggregated by the Group’s finance
department in its headquarters. The Group’s finance
department at its headquarters monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s short-term and long-term
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
and securities that are readily convertible to cash to
meet operational needs, while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities from major financial institution so that the
Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants
on any of its borrowing facilities to meet the short-term
and long-term liquidity requirements.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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(3)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities of the Group at 31
December 2013 are analysed by their maturity date
below at their undiscounted contractual cash flows:

N &I EREERK®)

(3) B (E)
REEARBRA  AEEZBEEREERS
BEEARTENERBS AR
RIATE

31 December 2013
2013F12A31H

Within Beyond

1year 1to2years 2to5years 5 years Total
—F R —H=F “HEE EENE CL

Financial assets SHEE
Cash at bank and on hand EBES 2,998,410,937 - - - 2,998,410,937
Accounts receivable JEUBR 3R 82,122,118 - - - 82,122,118
Other receivables Hi e 3,686,441 - - - 3,686,441
Interest receivable FEUFI S, 5,293,245 - - - 5,293,245
3,089,512,741 - - - 3,089,512,741

Financial liabilities tRAs
Accounts payable FERER R 12,010,624 - - - 12,010,624
Other payables HifER R 161,190,876 - - - 161,190,876
Interest payable EIFI 2 51,746,763 - - - 51,746,763
Corporate bonds REESH - - - 800,000,000 800,000,000
Long-term borrowings REER 109,744,200 414,589,200 1,274,212,318 - 1,798,545,718

Interest and expense payable  BIREMREIE -
for long-term borrowings EFMNERER

and bonds 135,178,219 120,255,909 229,281,482 13,520,000 498,235,610
Long-term payables REBERK 28,581,972 28,581,972 78,601,423 - 135,765,367
498,452,654 563,427,081 1,582,095,223 813,520,000 3,457,494,958

BEEWEREEROERATF
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8 Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

(3)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
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N EMIAEREERE®)

B) HEEE (&)
31 December 2012

2012124318
Within 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years Beyond 5 years Total
—FUR —3=fF —HRE AFUE A
Financial assets SREE
Cash at bank and on hand E¥Ee 1,207,561,423 - - - 1,207,561,423
Accounts receivable FEUBR 3K 96,799,948 - - - 96,799,948
Other receivables H b 2,970,111 - - - 2,970,111
Interest receivable TEUR 2, 5,557,907 = = = 5,557,907
1,312,889,389 - - - 1,312,889,389
Financial liabilities SEAR
Accounts payable FERTBR R 7,247,254 = - = 7,247,254
Other payables Hib T3 81,485,375 = = - 81,485,375
Interest payable RIS 52,695,667 - - - 52,695,667
Corporate bonds NAlfEFH = - - 800,000,000 800,000,000
Long-term borrowings RAER 115,139,000 113,139,000 169,667,487 - 397,945,487
Interest and expense payable ¥R ENRERE R -
for long-term borrowings EEFSRER
and bonds 74,283,445 70,012,622 190,727,891 75,053,333 410,077,291
330,850,741 183,151,622 360,395,378 875,053,333 1,749,451,074
Bank borrowings and corporate bonds are analysed by RITERRAREHEERAITWT :

repayment terms as follows:

31 December 2013
20135128318

31 December 2012
20124F12A31H

Bank Debentures Bank Debentures
borrowings payable borrowings payable
RITER DEIEH RITIER RAMRES
Wholly repayable within RE—HERAE
five years-borrowings TEZAER 1,798,545,718 - 397,945,487 -
Not wholly repayable within RE—HEFEE
five years-bonds REZEMES - 800,000,000 - 800,000,000
1,798,545,718 800,000,000 397,945,487 800,000,000

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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8

Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

N €I EREERE

(4) Fair value (4) = EEGE
Based on the lowest level input that is significant to NABEAELERMBNENR  BEAAE
the fair value measurement in its entirety, the fair value B 2EEms AEEEEEZNa A AEME
hierarchy has the following levels: R IKERRE
Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F—EX: EREEXEBEERMSE LXK
for identical assets or liabilities. KR IRIE -
Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included FER  BRE—EREABIIMABEED
within level 1 that are observable for the EEEERNEEATERNE A
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as B °
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).
Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not F=EX  HBAEEXEENTAIEBERGA
based on observable market data (that is, =
unobservable inputs)
(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair @ THURILEEFEERKERELILE
value By EEME &
Financial assets and liabilities not measured at REBNEBRK AT ENSEE EAN
fair value mainly represent receivables, payables, CHABEFTERE  BWFIE - BN
long-term borrowings, corporate bonds and long- HIE - REER ArEFNREAE
term payables. RE -
Except for financial liabilities listed below, the BRTemBENAN  HETAAR
carrying amount of the other financial assets BEAENEREENBENEREEE
and liabilities not measured at fair value is a BEARBEEERD
reasonable approximation of their fair value.
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
2013%F12A31H 20124128318
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
REEE DREE REEE DR EE
Financial liabilities THAR
- Corporate bonds —RAIEH 792,365,219 790,400,000 791,253,935 831,920,000

BREEHEREEROERAR ~| 91
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Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

(4) Fair value (Continued)

(@)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (Continued)

The fair value of corporate bonds is determined
at the quoted price in the active market and is
categorised in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
The fair value of the corporate bonds of the
Company is determined by the quoted prices of
Shanghai Stock Exchange on the last trading day

prior to 31 December 2013.

Commitments

Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet necessary to

be recognised on the balance sheet

N EMTIERERARZ)

4) D EEGE(E)

@ THUIAEEGTEBREFERLILE
ErEEMEE(E)
GHEERMSHARES - UERM
BHOREREEAAEE  BRE
—EH - REERRESHNALEE
LA EBEAERS12A318 2R &I
—XRZAREREE -

RKHEIR

EARM L A qE FIE
EEAMETHVEEREREBER LI RHERMES
A

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H831H 2012412 A31H

Land use rights, buildings, machinery
and equipment related to the
Investment and Construction Agreement
with Haikou Meilan

Bg O XM L HIREER
R AR RA Y L3 e FRAE
Y - R M EMRIE

587,318,800 587,318,800

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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10 Leases

11

The future lease payments of the Group’s assets held under
finance lease (Note 5(7)(a)) are summarised as follows:

+ mE

AEERBREHEEABTEE(MER@)
ARENESELNAT :

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H 2012%F12A31H

Within one year —FUR 28,581,972 -
One to two years —F|=F 28,581,972 —
Two to three years —RH=4F 28,581,972 =
Over three years =% e 50,019,451 -

135,765,367 -

As at 31 December 2013, the unrecognised financing
charge amounts to RMB19,695,332 (31 December 2012: nil)
(Note 5(7)).

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

MR2013F12H31H * A RN E & F &
B A A R #19,695,3327T (2012412 A 31
B :&)(fzER70) °

t- EXEE

AEBEEAEERRNBERERA TREA KB
WFFERE - WM ARREHRE R - W EHEAF
sSAME RS - RESERRENERSRENURE

RTHRFAFBENGERE  AEEAEIHEX
MR RORANSE  RARRREER « EITH
PRk & B EIAREER

BEEMERESRAERAR
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(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

11 Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the

+_

Group monitors

capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including bank borrowings,

corporate bonds and long-term payables) less cash and

cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘shareholder’s

equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net

debt. The gearing ratios of the Group at 31
and 2012 were as follows:

December 2013

BEREE#)

HETERNEMAR &K AREMNAEREE
LEREITHER o ZUERIRBEBFHERULE
REE o B FRERBER(BRFBRITER - AF
BHEMRAENF)BERSMRSEEY - B4
RREHEEBBERPIIIRARRERRER
FEEZ A o 201312 A31H K2012412 431
H AEEEAEREXRFENT:

31 December
2012
2012412 831H

31 December
2013
2013%12H31H

Total borrowings
Long-term borrowings
Corporate bonds
Long-term payables

A
RITHEK
RAMES
NN

1,798,545,718 397,945,487
792,365,219 791,253,935
116,070,035 =

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

o B MREFEY

2,706,980,972
(2,998,410,937)

1,189,199,422
(1,207,561,423)

Net cash I8 4 HEm (291,429,965) (18,362,001)
Shareholder’s equity % B8 A 2 2,669,343,113 2,439,195,915

Not applicable Not applicable
Gearing ratio BEXRBELE TiE A A

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a net cash position
of RMB291,429,965 (31 December 2012: RMB18,362,001),
being the excess of cash and cash equivalents over total

borrowings.
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12

Notes to the Company’s financial statements

T2 AR HRRME

(1) Cash at bank and on hand (1) EE&Ez
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H 2012412 A31H
Cash on hand EFRES 313,183 76,551
Cash at bank SRITFER 2,993,820,854 1,199,858,968
2,994,134,037 1,199,935,519

(2) Accounts receivable 2) EWIR
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12A31H 2012412 A31H

Accounts receivables JE IR FR

— from aeronautical services — R ERMZEEI A 72,052,916 76,642,083
— from non-aeronautical services —RERIEMZ WA 12,813,827 20,324,666
84,866,743 96,966,749
Less: provision for bad debts - SEEREE (3,395,143) (8,577,437)
81,471,600 93,389,312

BREEWEREESROERAE
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(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements +- A GBMEHEME2)

(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued) 2)

FEW IR (#4)

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H  2012412A31H

Accounts receivable by customers A e =E )
— from third parties — FEMEE = BR K 62,417,560 73,553,469
Less: provision for bad debts R EERVE(S (3,395,143) (8,577,437)
59,022,417 69,976,032
— from related parties — FEUR EE s 77 BR K 22,449,183 23,413,280
81,471,600 93,389,312

Credit terms granted to customers are determined on
an individual basis by the management with a general
range from 1 to 3 months.

(@) The ageing of accounts receivable is analysed as
follows:

19

ARG TREEFPNERPHAKERE
ERIEZET - —RR1E3EA -

@

JE U8 BR R R L A B FRE D A BR R 9 AT 2P
T

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

Within 90 days 90ARMURN 68,863,289 65,843,712
91 to 180 days 91 KE 180K 3,432,256 6,812,630
181 to 365 days 181X E 365K 1,898,418 15,255,325
Over 365 days 365K 10,672,780 9,055,082

84,866,743 96,966,749

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has
performed an impairment assessment on
accounts receivable from third parties on an
individual basis, based on which accounts
receivable of RMB8,174,412 (31 December 2012:
RMB21,551,229) are past due but not impaired.
The ageing analysis of these accounts receivable
is as follows:

+Z AREBHREMETE )

@)

JEW AR (&)
(b) H2013%12A318 ' KA A EEE

BRI (6 B R E %8 5 = A B AR 5k 84
BHRAIBETEH HPESBARE
8,174,41270(20124F12 A318 : AR
¥21,551,2297T ) B @ B R FHRRE
Al REARABRNRES AT

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

91 to 180 days 91 RXZE180K 1,680,000 3,016,040
181 to 365 days 181K 2365K - 13,317,158
Over 365 days 365K E 6,494,412 5,218,031

8,174,412 21,551,229

The balances aged within 365 days related to
a number of customers for whom there is no
recent history of default, which are expected
to be recovered within one year. Those aged
over 365 days are to be settled through CAAC
Settlement Center, the management is discussing
the payment schedule with the counter parties.

365K LA BR iR B0 3 IH A FE U S LB 1T
WEERLSMNE=F  BHAIE—
FRUWE - 365K EEREFHFIEEE
AEZTERMBEERORAWE - XA
RERHENE= AT AEI N
REFERFIE -

BREEHEREEROERAR
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12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

19

+Z AREABHREM T2

2) FEYWRRH (&)

(c) As at 31 December 2013, accounts receivable (c) TH2013F12A31H  [EUREAEE 5 BRI
from related parties of RMB4,186,732 (31 A R #4,186,7327(2012F 12 A31
December 2012: RMB4,955,083) are past due B : AR#¥4,955,0837) B A HI{ER
but not impaired. The ageing of these accounts BRE o ZBRBERFERRAT ¢
receivable is as below:

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

2013%12A31H  2012412H31H

91 to 180 days 91 XZE180K 1,515,571 2,833,814

181 to 365 days 181K 2365K 1,815,818 1,553,786

Over 365 days 365K A 855,343 567,483

4,186,732 4,955,083

The balances aged within 365 days are relate 365K A A BR BRI I A FE UK LA 1T

to a number of customers for whom there is no W EIE AR AL SR AR 5 - TEHARI R —

recent history of default, which are expected to FRULE ; 365K _EBREBREIFIBALE

be recovered within one year. For these aged B ENER TN AR ARD
over 365 days, the Company is discussing the FEUIFRIE o

payment schedule with the related parties.
(d) The movement of provision for bad debts is as d) EUERFIZREENAFEEZEFERAT :

follows:

31 December Reduction 31 December

2012 B 2013

20124 Additions Reversals Written off 20135

12A318 10 Z[ i 12A318

Provision for bad debts BRER 3,577,437 - (182,294) - 3,395,143

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements +Z

(Continued)

(3) Other receivables

PRI BHRERMEE 2

(3) Bt EWA

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013F12H31H  2012412A31H

Franchise fee from intragroup companies  JEWEBE R Al e E 2,091,018 4,566,018
Others Hith 2,334,860 2,389,115
4,425,878 6,955,133

The balances aged over 365 days are related to
a number of related parties for whom there is no
recent history of default, which are expected to be
unrecoverable. No provision was made against these
receivables as at 31 December 2013 (31 December
2012: nil).

The ageing of other receivables is analysed below:

7201312 531 H &2012F12H31H * &
A A E At E UK BR BR B MB35 R MR TB = &
BB TR EEERATFEELUE
FIRE o HthFEWRFR B RT IR AR AES -

H i EUKBRER AT AT

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H 201212 A31H

Within 90 days 90K A 342,036 300,266
91 to 180 days 91 RXE180K 217,440 3,075,031
181 to 365 days 181K =365k 331,325 205,372
Over 365 days 365K A E 3,535,077 3,374,464

4,425,878 6,955,133

BEEMEBRSRAERA
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12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(Continued)

(4) Long-term equity investments

+Z AREABHREM T2

(4) EEHRERE

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H  2012412A31H

Subsidiaries (a) F R Fl(a)
— Unlisted companies —JEEmAT 11,427,825 11,427,825
Associates (Note 5(6)) By AR (M7 (6))
— Unlisted companies — 3 EmAA] 1,127,739,146 1,100,807,482
1,139,166,971 1,112,235,307
(a)  Subsidiaries (@ FoAE]
31 December Increase in Decrease in 31 December Interest Voting
2012 Current year Current year 2013 held (%) rights (%)
20126 2013%
127318 AREE RERD 12A31H RSBl RRELLDI%)
Meilan Advertising IHELS 950,000 - - 950,000 Direct 95 100
Indirect 4.75
HH9%
ft4.75
Meilan Duty Free Shop ~ %F %% 277,825 S = 277,825 95 100
Meilan Cargo IHEE 10,200,000 - - 10,200,000 51 60
11,427,825 = - 11,427,825

There is no significant restriction on the

conversion of long-term equity investments into

cash.
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12

Notes to the Company’s financial statements

+Z AREBHREMETE )

(Continued)
(5) Fixed assets 6) BlEEE
Office
Machinery and equipment
Buildings equipment  Motor vehicles and others Total
EEREEY SR EHTE BOARERIM G
Cost RE
31 December 2012 201212 A31H 968,601,187 218,260,254 99,077,479 58,242,128  1,344,181,048
Transfer from CIP HERIRREA 698,750 1,260,900 — 1,400,000 3,359,650
Other increase in current year ARG EMIE N 239,938,976 83,065,386 54,132,181 11,808,848 388,945,391
Decrease in current year KEFD - (212,803,262)  (76,575,879)  (11,105,671) (300,484,812
31 December 2013 2013%F12A31H 1,209,238,913 89,783,278 76,633,781 60,345,305  1,436,001,277
Accumulated depreciation 2:E
31 December 2012 201212 A31H (259,397,482)  (131,483,732) (57,362,351) (40,613,834)  (488,857,399)
Depreciation charged in AREFFHE
current year (27,543,183)  (12,007,841) (7,074,049) (4,527,281)  (51,152,354)
Decrease in current year KERD - 135,325,012 41,312,939 9,378,729 186,016,680
31 December 2013 2013%F12A31H (286,940,665 (8,166,561) (23,123,461) (35,762,386)  (353,993,073)
Carrying amount FE
31 December 2013 2013%F12A31H 922,298,248 81,616,717 53,510,320 24,582,919  1,082,008,204
31 December 2012 201212 A31H 709,203,705 86,776,522 41,715,128 17,628,294 855,323,649
(a) Depreciation of RMB50,387,708 and (@ AREEFADEKAE - EEBRANN

RMB764,646 has been charged in operating
costs and general and administrative expenses in
2013 (2012: RMB 50,245,415 and RMB604,056)

respectively.

Z A AR #50,387,7087T M A R #
764,64670(20124F & © 5 A & ¥ K
AMEBEANTEDAARK
50,245,4157T & AR #604,0567T) ©

BEEREARBSRAERAT
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12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

(5) Fixed assets (Continued)

20

(b)

()

+Z

NEIMABHRRME 2

(65) BElEEE &)

Fixed assets held under finance lease (b) FEHALETEE
As at 31 December 2013, fix assets with a M2013F12A31H - (R E B A A
carrying amount of RMB118,767,187 (cost of R ¥118,767,18770( R B A R ¥
RMB125,128,205) (31 December 2012: nil) (Note 125,128,205 T )M EIE B E R A E &
10) are held under a sale and finance leaseback HE#ERERNHEA012612 A
arrangement, which is analysed as follows: 318 &) (E+) - Ao
Accumulated Carrying
31 December 2013 Cost depreciation amount
2013%F12H31H 8 ZIHiE REEE
Machinery and equipment 2R 82,866,786 (4,015,544) 78,851,242
Motor vehicles Eig TR 38,543,679 (2,131,544) 36,412,135
Office equipment and others PR R EAM 3,717,740 (213,930 3,508,810
125,128,205 (6,361,018) 118,767,187
Pursuant to the investment agreement entered (€ TH2013FE  AEEREBEEOXEME

into between the Group and Haikou Meilan, the
international terminal building and its ancillary
projects, which have been completed and put
into use, were recoquised as fix assets at a cost
of RMB236,748,630 in 2013. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying amount of these assets is
RMB234,834,912, of which ownership certificates
were in the process of application (Note 7(7)).

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements +- A8 HEMEE2)

(Continued)
(6) Construction in progress (6) FEEITHE
Transfer to
31 December Increase in fixed assets 31 December
2012 current year in current year 2013
20124 REBA 20134
12A31H REEIN ElE&E 128331H
Navigation display screen R eE
transformation - 1,412,064 - 1,412,064
Terminal Tower renovation Fn k& S 1
PriRieE Iz = 1,157,591 = 1,157,591
Traffic management and TBEBEREERSR
control systems - 1,066,763 - 1,066,763
Chillers expansion of FoiE ERiEE
the West Gallery R I 2R % B 4 - 924,000 (924,000) -
Equipment operation RIBETEERS
monitoring system = 798,000 = 798,000
Operation management BTEETRIER
platform = 763,586 = 763,586
Kitchen project BT VREREIE - 698,750 (698,750) -
Airport broadcasting S EE RS
system renovation PaE T2 1,400,000 - (1,400,000) -
Others HAph — 1,911,206 (836,900) 1,574,306

1,400,000 8,731,960 (3,359,650) 6,772,310

BREEWEREESROERAE
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Notes to the Company’s financial statements

+Z AREABHREM T2

(Continued)
(7) Intangible assets BIEEE
Land use right
+ i {5 A fE
Cost JRE
31 December 2012 2012%12H31H 179,637,283
Increase in current year ZNF ¥ 1% 45,078,000
31 December 2013 201312 831H 224,715,283
Accumulated amortisation HETEEE
31 December 2012 2012412 831H (35,561,759)
Amortisation in current year PN e (3,500,094)
31 December 2013 201312 831H (89,061,853)
Carrying amount REFEE
31 December 2013 201312 831H 185,653,430
31 December 2012 2012412 A31H 144,075,524
(@)  Amortisation expenses of RMB3,500,094 (2012: @ AEEEREENBHELSBEAAR

RMB3,163,189) were charged operating costs in

the current year.

(b) The carrying amount of land use rights is

analysed as follows:

®)

#3,500,0947T(20124F E : A R #&
3,163,1897T) ' 2EEaT AL ER A

T R P & N F R D4 10

T~

31 December
2013
2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012
2012412 A31H

Inside Mainland China — 7 PR AR B A —
between 10 to 50 years 10%I504F 58,233,962 59,844,117
over 50 years 505 A 127,419,468 84,231,407
185,653,430 144,075,524
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
s MEE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB’) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 5lzE855) » £ EEE A RS T)

12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(Continued)

(7) Intangible assets

(c) Pursuant to the investment agreement entered
into between the Group and Haikou Meilan,
the Group recognised land use rights of
RMB45,078,000 for the international terminal
building and its ancillary projects which have
been complated and put into use in 2013, of
which ownship certificates were in the process of

application.

(d) As at 31 December 2013, LUR with a carrying
amount of RMB8,965,065 (original cost of
RMB11,852,138)(31 December 2012: nil) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s long-term
borrowings of RMB1,524,225,000 (31 December

2012: nil) (Note 5(19)).

(8) Accounts payable

The ageing of accounts payable based on their

recording dates is analysed as follows:

+Z AREBHREMETE )

(7) HEEEE
(c) H2013FE @ AEEBEREEEFOE
HMEIMEEERBREAT  £8E
5E T I 3% A {E A A B BR M vk 42 & 4
HIRBE THERAESHEARK
45,078,000 A B B E - H LHifF
FRAREF R HHE A o

(@) H2013F12A31H @ FEEEAARE
8,965,065 7T ( [R{E & A K #11,852,138
7)) (20124F12 318 : )L {FE A
7 1A ARE,524,225,0007T REAE
(201212 A31H : &) (KFER19)
HHEARY) o

8) [ENEN
e BRFIZE ARR A AR BRER D AT A0 TS

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013F12H31H  2012412A31H

Within 90 days 8,379,073 5,152,321
91 to 180 days 91 R E180K 950,914 316,553
Over 180 days 470,498 1,778,380

9,800,485 7,247,254

BEEMERESRAERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
IsEAMTE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

+Z AREBHREMET )

(Continued)
(9) Revenue EEINA
2013 2012
20135 20124
Aeronautical: Az | 575
Passenger charges IRER S E 174,616,062 159,726,149
Airport fee 58 138,593,584 124,448,235
Aircraft movement fees and TR PR K2
related charges el 59,571,701 53,978,284
Ground handling services income AR IS UL A 44,162,144 40,837,490
416,943,491 378,990,158
Non-aeronautical: IERZE 1 SRS ¢
Franchise fee BRI A 159,177,174 136,888,777
Rental it 36,713,717 30,396,888
VIP room charge BEEEWA 29,067,147 31,691,201
Car parking (=== 13,312,073 10,216,059
Others Hih 23,384,772 20,785,918
261,654,883 229,978,843
678,598,374 608,969,001
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
IR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

12

Notes to the Company’s financial statements +2- A8 Bf#EHREMEE &)

(Continued)

(10) Financial expenses — net

(10) FIEEHH - F5E

2013 2012

2013%F 20124

Interest expenses B 78,911,770 69,110,654
Including: Bank borrowings Hrp o SRITIEK 12,485,727 17,009,954
Corporate bonds NEfES 63,511,284 52,100,700

Finance leases MEHE 2,914,759 =

Less: Interest income B AR WA (18,835,284) (19,071,645)
Net foreign exchange gains b 5 F U e (10,560,150) (600,393)
Others Hith 584,177 744,508
50,100,513 50,183,124

Interest expenses are analysed by the repayment terms

MBS HRRITIER R R REFNEERD

of bank borrowings and bonds payable as follows: T :
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
2013F12H31H 2012412 A31H
Bank Corporate Bank Corporate
borrowings bonds borrowings bonds
RITER NEES RITER NGl
Wholly repayable within RE—HEFBE
five years RFEZANER 12,485,727 - 17,009,954 =
Wholly repayable after RE—HESFAE
five years hF 2 BrES - 63,511,284 = 52,100,700
12,485,727 63,511,284 17,009,954 52,100,700

BREEWEREESROERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MBHmEMETE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

12

20

Notes to the Company’s financial statements +Z

(Continued)

(11) Investment income

NEIMABHRRME 2

(11) HE Wz

2013 2012
201345 20124
Share of profit of investees under equity AR A E R A RE
method — HNA Airport RE W — BMEISIER 26,931,664 32,476,692
Share of profit of investees under cost LA AN A 4% B = B AR
method — Meilan Cargo e WS - EWEE 5,501,728 4,080,000
Gains from disposal of equity interest Rt & U as
- Meilan Travelling — EBIIRTTAL - 112,989
32,433,392 36,669,681

There is no significant restriction on the repatriation of

investment income.

(12) Non-operating income

AR P FEREWEECMERRS

(12) ZEIMEA

2013 2012

20134 20124

Government grants BT R B 2,447,000 2,168,000
Gains on disposal of fixed assets BEB8ERENE - 302,689
Others Hi 181,132 310,827
2,628,132 2,781,516

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

IR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

T ARIMBHRRME R

12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

(13) Income tax expenses (13) A EH

2013 2012
20134 20124
Current income tax B HIRT S 48,373,151 38,392,532
Deferred income tax IRIEFTISTR (5,194,244) 549,060
43,178,907 38,941,592
The reconciliation from income tax calculated based BERMBROF BEERAERANEFTE
on the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in RFTISELFAETRAISTHER
the financial statements to the income tax expenses is
listed below:
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Total profit A EazE 386,174,471 335,402,915
Income tax expenses calculated at HE AR R ERN TSR
applicable tax rates 96,543,618 83,850,729
Effect of tax incentive B (48,271,809) (41,925,364)
Effect of change in tax rates MEEHHTE (4,163,517) -
Income not subject to tax FEFE AN TR U A (4,054,174) (4,569,586)
Costs and expenses not deductible for TSR AR E R
tax purposes 327,870 1,585,813
Under provision in previous year LART & E FRSE18 2,796,919 -
43,178,907 38,941,592

BREEWEREESROERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

MBHmEMETE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20135 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

+Z AREBHREMET )

12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

(14) Supplementary information to the Company’s
cash flow statement

(14) BomBEHTEN

(a) Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows (@ FEFEHARBAEE TEH e s

from operating activities

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Net profit HAE 342,995,564 296,461,323
Add: Reversal of provision for e BEREEEED
asset impairment (182,294) (1,146,194)
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEBENE 51,152,354 50,849,471
Amortisation of intangible assets A BB 3,500,094 3,163,189
Amortisation of deferred revenue I S s 25 5 (1,202,325) -
Losses/(gains) on disposal of BREEEEEN
fixed assets Bk (k) 183,536 (302,689)
Financial expenses VEER 68,351,620 68,707,901
Investment income REW R (32,433,392) (36,669,681)
(Increase)/decrease in deferred SR EE
tax assets (=), F (5,194,244) 549,060
Decrease in inventories FEHRD 9,214 9,771
Decrease in operating receivables 4 e U TE B AR 14,038,708 73,583,760
Increase in operating payables £ e ST TR B J93E 0 54,084,357 36,500,011
Net cash flows from operating activities KRB E AR
RengFs 495,303,192 491,705,922
(b) Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (b) HzRELEEYFEEISI
2013 2012
2013%F 20124

21

Cash and cash equivalents at end of IR& RIS ZEY

year FRERE 2,994,134,037 1,199,935,519
Less: cash and cash equivalents at ¥ : JH& RIBELEEBE YN
beginning of year FRER (1,199,935,519) (822,579,699)

Net increase in cash and Be MRS EYFILINEE

cash equivalents

1,794,198,518

877,355,820

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&4 5I:E55) » 2R E 7 AARKT)

12 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(Continued)

(14) Supplementary information to the Company’s

cash flow statement

(c) Cash payments relating to other operating

activities

T ARIMBHRRME R

(14) 22

(©)

AN E
i JnE

KIETER (#)

XITEMEE L EE RN EE

13 Net current assets

2013 2012
20134 20124
Payments of Ground Service Fee ENARES AL )
collected on behalf of Haikou Meilan MRS E 113,675,353 123,870,555
Payments of travelling and STNERESHE
other expenses 27,050,460 27,901,610
140,725,813 151,772,165
TZ FRBEE
The Group
AEE

31 December

2013

2013%F12H31H

31 December
2012

2012412H31H

Current assets
Less: Current liabilities

MBEE
wRBRIE

3,091,910,536
(410,894,593)

1,315,269,732

(843,219,015)

Net current assets FEREEE 2,681,015,943 972,050,717
The Company
PN
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H 2012412 A31H
Current assets mENVEE 3,087,529,236 1,307,951,951

Less: Current liabilities

W RBARIE

(433,266,263)

(365,499,733)

Net current assets

FREBEE

2,654,262,973

942,452,218

BREEWEREESROERAE 21 4|

TE-ZFER



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
IsEAMTE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIzFBH9) - £ BB BARET)

14 Total assets less current liabilities

+H BEERRBERE

The Group
AEE
31 December 31 December
2013 2012

2013F12H31H  20125%12A31H

Total assets BEAG 5,667,228,837 3,867,245,352
Less: Current liabilities WO RBAaE (410,894,593) (343,219,015)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEAEE 5,256,334,244 3,524,026,337
The Company
RN T
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%F12H31H 2012412 A31H
Total assets BERG 5,669,651,645 3,868,407,036

Less: Current liabilities

B R AE

(433,266,263) (365,499,733)

Total assets less current liabilities

REERRDAME

5,236,385,382 3,5602,907,303

2 ~| HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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